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EXCELLENCE & BEYOND

Excellence Is what we aspire, live and deliver. It is
the driving force in évenything we do, taking us closer
to our vision - 19 be the “Benchmartk of Excellence
in Premler Banking."

We have completed a decade In the banking industry
and continue in our commitment to Service Cuality,
bringing the most Innovative banking products and
services to our customers, Excellence in Service
Cuatity remains at the come of our business phitosophy,
ensuring at the same time that our products and
processes cater to the diversified financlal neads of
our valued customers.

We look beyond from where we stand today - aspiring
to achleve greater haights,
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VISION

Benchmark of excellence in Premier
Banking.

MISSION

To he the leader in Premier Banking; trusted
by customers for accessibility, service and
innovation. Be an employer of cholce, creating
vaiue for all stakeholders.
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Defining Our Strength
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CORE VALUES

Customer Focus

At Silkbank, the customer remains at the core of all activities.
Service Quality s our key differentiator.

Integrity
At Silkbank, we are honest and upfrant maintaining tha highest
level of personal and comporate integrity.

Teamwork
Teamwork is our key strength. Our success lies in unity.

Creativity

Out of the box thinking is the enabling Factor for us to be recognized
as an innovative organization.

Meritocracy
Merit remains our key primary criteria for rewarding performance.
Humility
Humility remains at the core of all our relationships.
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Beyond Brilliance
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CONSUMER BANKING

At Silkbank, we strive for a better understanding of
our customer needs, offering them an array of
premium, unique and innovative lifestyle producis
for an inspired living. Our quest, to always remain
a step ahead, propels us to do more for our customers,
Our commitment [s rewarded as we record the highest
number of acquisitions for Ready Line, Personal
Loans and Credit Cards for the year 2018.

We look forward to many more milestones, cementing
and strengthening the relationship with our customers.
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with Commitment

EMAAN ISLAMIC BANKING

Our foremost purpose is to adhere to the belief of
our customers, providing them inner peace through
our well-struciured and designed Shari‘a-compliant
products and services, while ensuring excellence in
Service Quality.

We envislon to grow with our customers by staying
true to our commitment of continuously adding
innovative products to our portfolio and increasing
our distribution footprint.

Annual Repart 2018
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BRANCH BANKING

Fram day to day transactional needs to long-term
financial security, our Branch Banking Business
provides excellent solutions to our customers. From
Current and Savings accounts to Term Deposits and
Bancassurance, our products have been especially
crafted to help customers manage their finances
with ease, Our highly-trained personnel refiect our
commitment fo a high quality service delivery thraugh
our branch footprint.

Yes we can

Annual Repart 218
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with Convenience

ALTERNATE DELIVERY CHANNELS

The customer needs do not necessarily follow working
hours and this has led us to structure our services
around our customers' convenience, Our Alternate
Delivery Channels allow our customers to bank from
"Wherever® they are and "Whenever" they want, making

the Bank always accessible whatever the hour through
SilkDirect internet Banking, SilkMobile, VISA Debit
Cards and Utility Bills Payment Services.
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SMALL AND MEDIUM
ENTERPRISES

Every business requires financial stability and
prosperity. At Sllkbank, we help our customers
evolve their businesses in pursuance of realizing
their dreams, We not just lend solutions, but also
act as their trusted advisors, providing them a
richer experience through our value-added senvices,
including Trade Services, Cash Management,
M‘'Power and SME Cash Ease.
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@ through Prosperity

CORPORATE AND
INVESTMENT BANKING

We know what it requires to take our corporate
clientele closer to their ambitions. Our high
quality and trusted Relationship Banking, driven
by aur expertise in Debt & Eguity Advisory
Services, Capital Management, and Mergers &
Acquisitions guidance, reflects our commitment
to manage and exceed our customer expectations,
as they progress towards greater prosperity.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We believe that our success runs parallel with our
customers’ ascent, We strive to design our products
and services to meet the specific financial needs
of our customers, delivering convenience,
accessibility and security at all times. We remain
persistent In our commitment to deliver excellence
in our products and services in the years to come,

Annual Report 2018
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PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES

Branch Banking

Silkbank Current Accounts

Caters to a plethora of financial neads of 3 diverse customar
base.

B ALL-IN-ONE ACCOUNT
Provides the ultimate protection and security to customers
with amazing banking and transactional benefits.

N BUSINESS VALUE ACCOUNT
A unlque business Current Account that provides customars
with protection and transactlonal benefits tallored for any
business. Itls the first account that provides comprehansive
husiness inventory coverage for up to Rs. 10 million.

B ONLINE EXPRESS
Online Bxpress gives the customer complete online sclutions
under one roof with a variety of tier-based transactional
henefits.

H SALARY PREMIUM PLUS ACTOUNT
An exceptional Current Account offering & host of financial
conveniences, protection and lifestyle benefits with hassle-
free salary processing.

B ASAAN ACCOUNT
Provides financlal conven’ence through the simplest
process. All it takes Is a CNIC, an Inltial deposit of Rs. 100
and a ane-page form.

Silkbank Savings Accounts

Silkbank Savings products offer a host of atiractive features
and competitive returns with the convenience of a Current
Account.

B MUNAFA ROZANA
The only Savings Account in Pakistan that pays profitin
cash daily. Profit on funds is calculated and paid into the
custemer’'s account on a daily basis.

H PLS SAVINGS ACCOURT
Provides the benefits of a Savings Account with the
convenience of a Current Account.

B SUPER SAVER ACCOUNT
Provides customers with the highest monthly retums on
higher deposits and profit calculation on a daily profit basls
with a manthly payout.

Silkbank Term Deposit Accounts

B SALANA MUNAFA ACCOUNT
Offers the highest profit with payout on maturity, Customers
can also avail an overdraft facility of up to 80% with other
transactional benefits.

B SILKBANK MAHANA MUNAFA ACCOUNT
Offers the highest profit with a monthly payout. Custamers
can also avall an overdraft facility of up to 90% with other
transactional banefits.

15J Annual Report 2018

B FLEX] MUNAFA TERM DEFPOSIT
Sllkbankintroduced Mexi Munafa Term Deposit praduct for
Individual customers that provides them with a flexible,
convenient and secure platferm to save and eamn profits,
This product offers customers with upfront, monthly and
yearly Profit Payout options an competitive rates.

FLEXI MUNAFA

& Advance Profit Payout
u Mahana Prafit Payout
= Salana Profif Payout

Bancassurance

Silkbank offers ane-window operation for customers to enjoy
assorted insurance coverage [ plans through a bouguet of
products; Mehfooz Har Pal, Roshan mMustagbil, SIlk Health
Plan, Sunehra Kal, Silk Health Line, and Silk Secure Takaful.

Alternate Delivery Channels

SilkDirect Internet Banking

With Sllkbank Direct Internet Banking, customers can enjoy
and manage their accounts anywhere, anytime.

Silkbank Phone Banking

Why walk to the bank when you can talk to the Bank! Silkbank
Phone Banking officers ensure that the custemers’ financial
needs are taken care of with ultimate accessibility, convenience
and securlty, 247,

SilkMoblle

Experfence banking on your smartphone with SilkMohlle, where
Silkbank stays with you all the while,

Silkbank Debit Cards

Silkbank successfully upgraded its VISA Debit Card from
magnetic stripe to EMV compliant card, This step will Further
strengthen the security of customer transactions performed at
ATM and POS, We have also added PayPak, VISA Gold and VISA
Platinum Debit cards in our product suite, Now the customer
will have an optian of choosing a debit card that matches their
usage requirements.

Utility Bills Payment Service

Customers can now use thelr Sitkbank VISA Debit Card at any
Silkbank ATM to pay their utflity bills or fop-up their mobile
phones, round the clock, free of chargel

Corporate and Investment Banking

Corporate Banking

Corporate banking is a one-stap shop for clients ranging fram
local corporate to multinational companies. We understand
customers’ business needs, which is why we offer customized
solutions. Our experienced team gives our corporate customers
complete attention and ensures that they receive a premium
service abways.

Investment Banking

Silkbank has an experienced and professional investment
banking team that has baen a prominent player In the market,
We provide a complete amay of Debit & Equity advisory and
placement serdces through ourvast distribudon network of
potential investors.

Middle Markets

Upholding the motto of *Yes we can”, Silkbank stretchesto a
nationwide natworl, fully equipped to the vast and extensive
middle market customers, Structured working capital lines are
provided along with Current / Savings Accounts In order to

enhance trade volumes of madium entemirises, allowing them

to grow.

ey

SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
o
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Consumer Banking

Personal Loan

Silkbank offers the best Personal Loan for all yaur needs, Now
you can apply for a fresh loan of up to Rs. 2 million. You can
also transfer your outstanding loans fram other banks and
avall a wide range of benefits while enjoying the same monthly
installment or even less, With Slikbank Personal Loan, you can
live up your dreams and enjoy [ife to the fullest. It Is fast,
convanient, flexible and affordable.

Silkbank Ready Line

Ready Line is an evergreen Running Finance facility, specifically
designed to meet your emergency financial needs with credit
Facility of up to Rs. 2 million. It not only provides a peace of
mind, but alsc helps custamers meet their emergency cash
needs and that too with the utmost convenience and freedom.

Silkbank Credit Cards

The most innovative cards of the country, Silkbank Credit Cards
provide customers with 0% mark-up for an entire year upon
transfer with Card Design Personalization and Customization.
Silkbank Credit Card customers can enjoy up to 50% discount
on assoried merchants and outlets with the added facility of
Extended Payment Plan (EPP).

SILKEANK CREDIT CARDS

Fo

Milfion

Small and Medium Enterprises
M'Power
Silkbank's M'Power is a running finance facllity, which s
structured according fo your preferences and provides the best
solution to meat your financing nesds with cradft financing of
up to Rs. 15 million. It helps you to leverage every business
opperunity that comas your way and gives you a greater
freedom to focus on every important aspect of your business's
growth.

SME Cash Ease

SME Cash Ease {Local Bill Discounting Program) is a liquidity
solution for SME level businesses to maintain 2 profitable
warking relatlonship with thelr client companles.

Emaan Islamic Banking

Emaan Islamic Banking, maugurated In 2012 with 10 branches
nationwide, is geared towards providing Shari*a-compliant
banking products along with & high level of customer satisfaction,
Emaan Islamic Banking offers an amay of products to meet the
financlal needs of customers, including Cument Accounts, Savings
Accounts, Term Deposits, Takaful and Saving Plans.

SERVING YOU
THE BEST

Yes we can
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Dear Sharsholders,

Desplte the challenges at the economic front, Silkbank has exhibited strong performance
during the year. Both deposits and advances recorded a handsome ncrease, having a posilive
impact on the profit and loss account. These results reflect the management's continuing
commitment Tn meeting the expectations of the stakeholders.

The Board continued to operate effectively in discharging its obligations. During the year, the
performance of the Board was evaluated by the Institute of Corporate Gavernance (PICG),
hased on the guidelines issued by the State Bank of Pakistan, The PICG findings have been
fully explained in the Board of Direciors Repaort. Overall, the performance of the Board and
its Commitiees as well as each individual Director has remained satisfactory,

Going forward in 2018, the Bank will continue its efforts to further improve the performance

any .- and enhance stakeholders' value. With the mplementation of its strategies, vour Directors

M e 5 S a g e y are of the view that the growth and profit trajectory of the Bank will continue in the years
o come.

| ’ PP
C h aTr m a n S | am thankful for your continued goodwill and trust.
R s

Munnawar Hamid, OBE
Chairman
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The year 2018 ended with a mixed performance of the economy, inflation remained below the
target for the fourth consecutive year. In the same vein, growth in private sector credit was
strong and investments edged up in terms of GDP, At the same time, a sharp deceleration in
revenue growth compared to expenditure and an increased dependence on Imports to meet
the growing domestic demand, led to widening of the twin deficit to unsustainable levels. The
real GDP growth was broad-based, as all the three major sectors: agriculture, industry and
services, contributed towards the acceleration in growth. The agricultural sector, in particular,
perfarmed fairly well at the back of record crop vields and growth in the |lvestock sector, The
Industrial sector grew by 5.8 percent during FY18, slightly higher than the 5.4 percent growth
achieved in FY17,

Curmrent account deficlt along with depreciation in the exchange rate, led ta an Increase in public
debt accumulation during FY18. Compared to an 8.8 percent increase In P17, public debt grew
by 16.5 percent during FY18. Out of the PKR 3.5 trillion debt accumulation during FY18, PKR 1.1
irlllion was due o revaluatlon losses on account of the depreciation of the US dollar agzinst
major cummencies and deprecigtion of PKR against the US dollar. As a result, the gross public
debt rose to 72.5 percent of GDP as of end-June 2018 from €7.0 percent at end-june 2017,

in the above context, the real GDP growth target of 6.2 percent for FY19 appears ambitious. The
industrial sector, in particular, may witness a slowdown due t0 an expected reduction In consumer
demand. More specifically, consumer durables and construction and allied industries may witness
slower growth In production.

Current expenditure grew by 12.6 percent during FY18 compared to a 10.7 percent increase in
the pravioUus vear, with the major impetus coming from higher provinclal current expenditure.
However, growth in federal cumrent expenditure decelerated slightly to 8.1 percent in FY18 from
104 percent in the previous year.

Meanwhile, revenue growth significantly decelerated to 5.9 percent in FY18 from 11.0 percent

in FY17. This deceleration was mainly led by a sharp contraction in non-tax revenue. Against

this, the growth in the tax revenue was broad-based with both the FBR and provincial taxes

picking up pace during FY18. The FBR tax collection grew by 14.3 percent in FY18 compared fo

& an B.0 percent increase in the previous year. This also reflects one-off receipts from the tax
Rev | eW amnesty scheme announced for the reglstration of undeclared domestic and forelgn assets.

Private sector credit to GOP ratio rose to an B-year high of 174 percent, It is imporant to note

, that desplte the Tncrease in recent years, private sector credit to GDP ratio In Pakistan at the
end of FY18 Is much lowsr than the peak of 27.2 percent just a decade agn. This ratlo stands
lower compared to reglonal economies, such as indla [48.5 percent), Bangladesh (476 percent),

and Sri Lanka (5.7 percent).

Meanwhile, budgetary borrowings from the banking system remained elevated during FY18 with
the government borrowing around PKR 22 trillion in Q3-FY18 alone. The growth in the asset
base of the banking sector has moderated during FY18, primarily, due to a decline in net-
investmeants. The overall risk profile of the banking sectar has improved in FY18, mainly, dus
to strengthening capital adequacy and improving asset quality.

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) has inched up fo 159 percent and NPLs to loans ratio has come
down to 7.9 percent; lowest since FYUB. Banks' after-tax earnings, however, have declined by
147 percent, mainly due to & lower gain on sale of securities, one-off provisions and an increase
in administrative expenses.

Post-election political environment gained stability towards the end of 2018, as economic
canstancy remained the focus of the new government, There was an increase In macro sectors
of the economy with massive CPEC Investment.

Sllkbank's upwards growth trajectory from last year was malntained In 2018. Once agaln, a
dedicated effort was put in by all staff In deliver'ng a profit after tax of Rs. 1.330 billlan, which
is an Increase of 17% over the previous year.

Customer experience will continue to be the key differentiator; hence our focus will be to meet
and exceed cystomer expectations, identifying problem areas and service recovery. To name a
few, the Bank introduced customer-centric processes such as credit card selfpick up and appointment
delivery of returned cards, ATM functionzlity over the weekends and holidays, cash counter
timelines and an effective floor management to provide a fulfilling customer service experlence.

Annual Repart 2018




PRESIDENT’S REVIEW

On the Calt Center side, our performance has gome theaugh transformation didng 2098 and resultad In improvement of sendoe
lovels and customer Feedback, During the first guarter of 218, call center serviee levels decined o 305 bk due 1o restructy

in July 2HE opward, the sanvice [evels Increased to 9056 in the fast quarter of the year 2018, Calls abandoned ratlo also improve
from & high of 22% to 136 along with customer feedback improving from 7% to 25%. The Complalnt ment unit accom

g response ratio. of more than 30%, whereby the complaint aging trend depicted & decrease from 439 in fandary, 2018 o 7% in
Pecember, 2018,

Branch Banking segment had & stellar 208, su g m a all KPI's. The deposit h:in Bramch Banking se surpassed
khe overall | deposit growth tmuﬁmmmﬁwgan vﬁgﬁs & Teskimory mﬁme mmn gl the passion n?thmeﬂéntig team
to take the next level. Branch Banking maintained its pasition ahead of budgeted targets throughout Od, with
total de reaching PKR T8 billion by December 31, 2018, An overall heaithy deposit growth of PKR 12 billion was achieved
during the year 2M8. Branch Banking also remained ahead of its yearly P&L budgeted figures by PKR 127 million, with an EBIT of
414 million against 3 budget of PKR 287 milfian, mmtﬁ 4% over plan, Widening the produdt suite was also amangst the many
reasons for this accomplishment. A new product, urafa Term Deposit was also | ed towards the last quarter of the
year to %ﬁ steady deposits. The entire team responded to this initiztive and was able bo bring in PKR 1.88 Billion in the last
quarter o

Silkbank VISA Debit Card {"VDC') continted to show strong h during 218, and added 36 383 new YOUS, increasing the total
card base to 135,389, VDC over Point of Sales during m?? ratorded 3 4 of PKR 1.48 billlon against 341,280
transactions, refleciing a g of 16.53% & 2U50% respectively, a5 comparad to 2017, with the highest POS monthly spend of
PKR 136.24 million during June, 2018, Silkbank ATMs drﬁm&e& a cash volume of PKR 2118 billion through 1,921,882 transactions
during the year, with a monthly average usape volume of PKR 1.78 billion.

Bancassuratce Business has shown a consistent growth In the year 2018 a5 well, the team stands at s double d&ilh&mhm of 1%
agins’t the préndous year,. Total business [ssued [n 2018 vas recorded ab PKR 12641 million versus PER 114, o in 2017,
Thee totsl revenue generated. in 2018 & PER 85 million and YT cancellations remained under control at 2%, deplcting the gueall
of booked business, Qur product besket became more customer-ceniric with the sddition of Two new insurance partmers. Eran
productivity has progres 43' increased throush various promotional inftlatives. with Bancassurance Business closing G4-15 with
an fssied premium.of PER 40 million a5 compared [0 PKR 26 million in Q4-17,

Emagn Islamic Bardng hat an oulstanding performance in 218 amd successfully rated a Profit Before Tax (PRT) of PER 822
millign. On the deposits side, Emazn Islamic Sanking registered a growth of PXR 16703 milllon versys tast
change. Further, B3.28% of the deposit h was achieved in CASA, with the depesits closing at PER 30, mitlion at the year
end. On the gdvances side, a growth of PKR 9,374 milion was registered, translating into an increass of 53.48% and closed the
book at PKR 26,802 million. A f'gzlﬂﬁmnt imcrease in customer relationships was achieved ? solicitation of 6,446 accounts, taking
the total customer bass to 22882, Focus on Service Quality was maintained throughout the year as a key differantiating Fartor,

Consumer Banking consolidated its focus around market dewelopment in 2018, with initiatives including the launch of Employes
m and Branch Banking Cross-sell Channel which helped to expand our reach into untapped segments. The new

rmance o

Banking
inftlatives helped our unsecured Enr.'.llni Met Recaivables (ENR) increase to PR 18 bllion in 2018. On the marketing front, Silkkank
COHISAET BT wade preminently In print and stectronic media throughout e year, which further strengifened our

brand swareness and invigorated market interesk

Silkhank Consumer Assets continued 1o deliver high srowth rates with folal dsbursements ameunting to PKR 3.7 billion in Personal
Loans and PKR 3.8 billior in 8eady Line. The ENR mix For these products have crossed PER 15 bitlion on a combined basis, which
resulted in taking dur market share to 38% amongst our peer banks, Consurmier assets closed the year with a profit figuse of PKR
1.27 Billion, exceading the assipnad targels,

Silkbank Credit Cards business continued to show its ntial in 2018, where for the Frst time since its launch, ERR by PRR
1 billion during the year (o PR 4.5 bifllon, while spend increased by 25% from Lhe previous year (o PXR 19 billlon in 2014, Sifkhank
acguired 50,000 riew cradit cards in 2018 and was the market leader in fresh acquisitions r}[;: the third consecutive vear, Portfallo
heatth imdicators reflected a posithne trend, with the wtilization rate increasing from 23% to 2% and the activation rate fram T6%
Eo 84, Silkbank Credit Cards launched s fisst ever TV, *Far a Million Reasons®, which created markel awareness and positive
word of mouth, SHkbank now offers value deals and discounts at more than 300 allisnce parivers, which 15 more than any other
card gmdu:t i the market, The credit cepd product offering has glso been enhanced with other initiatives, namely, the additlon
of { cashbedk redemptlion af selecied n autlets ment of cashbedk value proposion and oredit protector insizance
phan, supplementary card baoking via helpline armd laanch of credit card referral program.

Corparate Banking Gr:aﬁ ({86} continued s foous on self liguidating trade related transactions in 2018. The trade business of
the Bank increased by 4% to reach PER 377 billion, with yield on. advances rsing from 8.8% in FY17 to 9.4% in FY18, genemating
g:tﬂw from funds of PKR 756 million. Comporate deposits were up 14%, versus last yaar, supported well by cash management

Gur consumer produds.

SME Business reflected an 8% increase in advances versus last year, EBIT mflected an impressive 24% increase over the prévious
year, The SME Business akso financed its book up to 81% of the assels portfollo.

Silkbank Trade Processing Services team is well versed In local and intemational trade protocols, providing high quality service 1o
our frade customers. Tha trade THSs gﬁ[m sTFmented izto Imports, exports and e g business, manned b
respective sector sﬁ-reéda'llsrsﬁ having the get a5 well as experiance to provide prompt #nd Smely senvics b our customers. [{
i5 also ensured at the same Hme that strobg adherence to the regulatony fra is malntained.
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The Premises Uit remained focused on branch optimization. This incorporates identifying and developing high patential branches
at minimal cosfs, yet keeping intact the lonk and feel of Silkhank. New branch projects were completed well within time with
quality work and cost efectiveness. Through the branch optimization projects, which Included both relocation and renovation
of the existing Infrastructure, the premises unit succeeded in annual sevings of PER 18 million approximately,

During the year 2008, SAMG's contribution was rermarkable with a positive PRL impact of PRE 1,533 million against a budgeted
amount of PKR 1,268 million. Alsa, SAMG was-able to bring down the overall NPL to advances ratlo from 33.63% In 20068 to as
low as B.45% by the end of the year 214, The team was 2150 successful in recovering PKR 23 million out of the written off loans.
ORECD & Bank cwned properties were disposed off at a prica of PKR 2,518 mitlion, reflecting 2 galn of PXR 880 miltion,

Elsk Management Emu%F{HﬂE} wias [nstnimental In ehsuring that ali business se operated within the confines of the
intermal podivy and the 56F gubdeilmes, Tallor-made solutions were also offened by RN for larpe business deals, espedally keeping
i e the risk and reward facter, In addithon, sided by a strong recoveny stream of written off consumer loans, RWG played a
pivotal rale in boosting business growth during the year. RMG maintained a Baison with the Business Units o hetﬁistmmfe
selfliguidating trade lines, with a view to enhance non-funded business for the Bank. RMG alsy upgraded the "Dbligar Risk
Rating” model for Corporate and Commerclal Customers by releasing its revised version 1.3, The department also kept a close
wetch on the sccounts identifled as having developed "Potential Weaknesses®, Business units wese raquired to provide q:t:mﬂy
updetes on such accounts, which were then comprekensively reviewed by BMG 2nd strategies going forward were deliberabed
upon with gl stakeholders. As per practice, this list was also shared with the Risk Committee of the Board during the guartesdy
meEtmg and eir inpat was sought for impbementation, In.additlon to the above, 8MG ensured smooth SBP Inspections.

in the weorld of automated technologies, Sitkbank [T depardment excelled in providing extensive support bo the newly established
35 branches across Pakistan. The new branches include 20 Emaan [slamic and 15 Conventional branches. A major milestone was
achieved with successful Implementation of Core Banking System (T-24 Releass upgrade from ROB to R18), The upgraded system's
Go-Live date was February 5 2018, resulting in improved performance of the T-24 system functicnality. As per the mandste of
SBP, successful deployment of GoAML, issuance of EMV WVISA Debit chip card, IT Govemance & Risk Maragement Framework
wire compheted In tarpat time by 3-6-2018. During the year, IT has dlso delvered several valoe-added wcks to the business
tearns, which included Emplovee Banking, Flexl Advance Profit, Instant. Padnts Redemption -as part of the Credit Card Loyalty
Program and Local Biller & its acceptance in SilicMobile, The first year end dosing was successfully completed on T-24 Upgraded
Release R16 for the fscal year 2018 and also achieved progressive balancing of GLs in T-24 as well as in Oracle Financial of all
Corventlonal and Islamic Branches. Alternate Distribution & e-delivery thanneis kept on adding valse to the product offerings
of the Bank and have enhanced the accessibility of its banking services. SikMobile regisirations have reached 49,640 customers,
and with the ongoing addition of new features, our digital plathorm will continue &5 strang momentem,

In 2018, Hurnan Resources remaimed. focused on employee engagement and developrment by aranging varous tralring sessions
for team building, perforiiance management and service excallence, Emp Bﬁm&rﬂ activitles were also caried out dufng
the year, increasing morake and motivation of the employess. To promote as a brand and achieve the status of Employer
of Choice, the HRD participated in job fairs erganized by leading business instiutes of the country and recruited more than 100
students in the summer intemship. program to provide them with the professional experience and develop a pipelme of future
hires, The Bank also participated in the & salary sunvey, which Fh#ﬂd in determining comparative compensation levels
besldes understanding the market Eﬁlﬁnnhg among our peer banks, This will align our compensation structure with market
stamiards, which will help in top talest retention.

Sitkbank's Marketing Services Deparfrment serves &5 the brand custodian of the Bank. This entails ensuring canformity to the
corporate and brand guidelines of Silkbank for a conslstent look and feel acrass the foctprnt and the different delivery ¢ ;
Moreover, the unit alse provided the nécessary marketing aﬁﬂjarmhuiiunal support to the businesses. The Marketing Services
Team ks alse entrusted with the task of monitadng the print and electronic media and take affirmative action to ensure that the
clientele and the public at large, view Silkbank from a positive perspective, During the yesr 2018, the Marketing Services Team
stccessfully supported severs business campalgns, as well as ran press refeases across all media, especially” affer the closune
of guarterty and annial accounts.

Sitkbank's success in 2018 is atiributed to the dedicated and cellabarative efforts of the entire Silkbank Team. The Bank has
always been commitied to grow it5 business in & way that is beneficial and sustainable for its employees, as well a5 far the
communities it aperates in, Silkbank extended its sopport to various causes which included education and heatth, besides
empoweTing youth znd sporis development, Silkbank also continued #s efforis in becoming an soo-friendly institution through
energy conservation and & paperiess envircnment. With greater focus on customer service delivery, Innovation and meritheracy,
we are confident that Slikbank will keep its growth momentum B the years to come and will con to provide an exceptional
level of service to its customers,

We would alss Bke to express our gratitiede o our customers and also to our Board Members, Regulators and all other stakehalders
for their invaluable support and guidante during the year.

Yas we can}

e

ot Tasin
President & CED
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Significant benchmarks can only be attained by a
skilled and dedicated team, having a clear visipn
to steer forward towards a common goal. Silkbank
takes pride In having such a team, committed and
dedicated to cantribute to the advancement of the
organization. This dedication and commitment
resulted in the Bank achieving excellent results in
the year 2018.
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- CORPORATE INFORMATION
| AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

Board of Directors = Human Resources Committee
| MupRawas Hamid Chalrman Khalid Aziz Mirza
Eralld Azlz Mirza Direcior ' Munrawar Hamid
el Dot | Rashld Akbvar Chughta
| Rashid Akhtzr Chughiai Directar ' Ealepm Ahmed
Shahrad En'rér Murad . L'hh'a-:::m !

Tatha Eami_n.hn:t:d ' Dm:-c*-:rr | Auditors
i Tarig Igbal Khan, FCA Direcsos

Euﬁ?{ Ha'l.';laz-Eha.':'fha . Drre:::m

Kimat Shahzad Abmed Tarn President & CED
Shaukat Tarin Adwisar to the Chairman

; Mys. Grant Thomton Anjum Rahman (GTAR)
- Chartened Accountants

' = ; Legal Advisor
| Ghani Law Assnriates
Company Secretary |
' Faiz Ul Hasan Hashimi : Registered Office
! : Stikbank Limited,
| Chief Financlal Officer 13 F-7 Marke,
Syed Liaquat Al | Islamabad,
. . Direct Tel: (061) 26060-26-27-28,
| Audit Committee ' PARN: (051) 26080-T7-T8-T4 Ext: 111
Shahzad Enver Murad s Clibmisasie
i Ras Emell; companysecetary@sikbank.com.pk
Hasim HQeg
= ' Website: www.slkbank.com.pl

Tarig Igbal Khan, FCA
Wajih Zaidi

Share Registrar

Risk Committes ' Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDCPL)
i Shigre Regisirar Department
(DL House, BB-B, Block 'B';

Tarig lghal Khan, FCA | Actinig Chairman [ Mamber

_ﬁﬂ“_fit:_{“:;ﬂ : EMH“E:" SMCH.S., Main Shahra-e-Falsal,
| amima Ll (H BEy I"r' H&ral:H-?HUU
i Tel: Customer Suppost Services [Toll Free) 0800-COCPL [23275)
IT Committee i Fax: (02-21) 34328053
. Masim Beg | O _ Emalk, Info@cgcpak.com
Zubalr Nawaz Chattha Member ' Wehsite: www.cdcpakistan.com
' faved Yousuf Edhi
|
|
|
I 1
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Sitting from left to right: Khalld Aziz Mirza
Director

Standing from left taright:  Zubair Mawaz Chattha
Director

Shaukat Tarin
Advisor ta the Chairman

Azmat Tarin
President & CEQ

Sitting from left to right:

Standing from left to right:

Tarlq igbal Khan
Director

Rashid Akhtar Chughtai
Director

Nasim Beg
Director

Talha Saeed Ahmed
Executive Director
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Shahzad Enver Murad

Diractor
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PROFILE OF BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE - Chairman

Mr. Munnawar Hamid was elected as an Independent
Dirgctor and Chairman of the Board in March, 2008
and was re-elected as a Director by the shareholders
of the Bank. Mr. Hamid was also appointed as the
Chalrman by the Board In August, 2011, August, 2014,
and August, 2017 and held this position till January,
2019,

Mr. Hamid galned experience of commence and industry
while serving In a major chemicals company, 1C1 Pakistan
Limited, as Chief Executive, as well as Chairman of a
number of subsidiary companies of Global Corporations
in Pakistan, which include 101 Pakistan and Pakistan
PTA (now Lottee Pakistan PTA Lid.). He has also served
in London as & Global Senlor Corporate Planner €1
PLC for its Pharmageuticals, Agrochemicals and Seeds,
and especially, Chemical Businesses. Subsequently, he
was appointed a8 an advisor to the CEO of I PLE
Lendon, for South Asiz. Mr. Hamid has also been
gssociated with & number of Boards, high-level
consultative bodies, Public Sector Organizations, leading
Advanced Educational Institutions and the Financial
Sector of Pakistan, and has over 48 years of experience
in the felds of business & corporate management and
operations. In October, 1987, he was appointed as an
Officer in the Mast Excellent Order of the British Emplra
(OBE) by HM, the Queen, for services to 1Tl and
Economic Development in Paklstan. Mr. Hamid Is a
graduate from Punjab University, and atso holds BA
(Hans) and a Master's degree from Cambridge University
(Gonville & Caius College), UK.

Mr. Tarig igbal Khan - Director

Mr. Tarlg Igbal Khan was elected as an Independent
Director on the Board of the Bank in December, 2010
and was also re-elected as a Director by the shareholders
of the Bank in August, 2011, August, 2014 and in
August, 2017 end has held this position since thien.
He Is ales a member of the Audit Commiltes and Risk
Committee of the Board, Mr. Khan is the ex-Chairman
of National Investment Trust Limited. He has aiso
served on various positlons [n Federal Board of Revenue
(FBR) and Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECF}. Mr. Khan has also played a significant
role a5 Pakistan Banks Assoclation's Chalrman.
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Wr. Khan is & Chartered Accountant by profession, and
has over 38 years of experience. He has served on the
Boards of varous other banks and companies. Cumently,
he halds directorship in the following listed companies;

Name of Organization Posliion Held

Listed Companies

# Interrational Stests Limitad Ditwctar

i National ReBnery Limited Direchor

o Packapes Limiled Direckor

# Pakistan Oif Fields Director

Ursted Companies

® FFC Energy Linvitad Director

Now-Profit Orgasfzations

H pslamic nlermationil Medical Trust Trastes

i High Alffuds Sustinability Thust Trastes

o Pakisian Acadeimy of Ergineesing Tristes
Endomment Fund

® Humian Element Foundatian Trustea

Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza - Director

Mr, Knalid Aziz Mirza was elected a5 an Independent
Director on the Board In August, 20714 and was ro-
elected by the shareholders of the Bank In August,
2017, He 1s also a chairman of the HR Committes of
the Board. Mr. Mirza s a Masters of Commerce (M.Com)
from University of Punjab, Lahore ~ Pakistan, and has
about 53 years of work experience.

Mr. Mirzg served for 13 years In varlous positions In
Investment Corporation of Pakistan (ICP), and Credit
& Finance LCorporation Londan. Subsequently, for about
two decades, he remained on the professional investment
staff of the International Finance Corporation (IFC)
(Member, World Bank Group). Besides this, he has also
served as the founding Chalrman of Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (three years); Sector
Manager For Financlal Sector Development, East Asia
& Paclfic Reglon, The World Bank, Washingion DL, USA
(about Four years); Chalrman and Chief Executive
Monopoly Control Authority {one yean); founding
Chafrman and Chief Execotive Competition Commission
of Pakistan (three years): amd Member, Competition
Appellate Tribunal {about eight months). Mr. Mirza
|oined the Lahore University of Management Sciences
ILUMSY in 2010 and at present, is a Professor of
Practice.

Mr. Mirza 5 also an Independent Mrector and Chalrmian
of the Board of Orix Leasing Pekistan Limited & Awwal
Modaraba and an Independent Director on the Boards
of Medgulf insurance, Bahrain as well as Murree Brewery
Company Limited,

Significant among his regular consultancy assignments
are Finance Consultant, WAPDA; Advisar, Investment
Climate Reforms Unit, Government of Punjab: and
Evaluatar, Investment Evaluation Unlt, Tre World Bank
Group.

Mr. Talha Saeed Ahmed - Executive Director

Wr. Talha Saeed was appointed &5 an Executive Dlractor
on the Board of Sikbank in Apell, 2015 and was re-
piected as an Executive Director by the sharchotders
of the Bank in August, 2017.

He has 30 years of well diversified experience at senjor
positions in pading financial institutions. He has held
& number of important appointments n NDFC, ANZ
Grindlays Bank, Union Bank and Standard Chartered
Bank. He is presently the Group Head of Wholesale
Banking, fooking after Corporate, Treasury, Financial
Instiutfons, Investment Banking and Smatl & Medlum
Enterprises Business. Previously, he heid the position
of Group Head Retall Banking, looking after Branch
Banking, Consumer Assets and Small & Medium
Enterprises. He held the position of General Manager,
Small & Medium Enterprizes in Standard Chartered
Bank, He was zlsoa member of the Senior Management
Commitiee in Standard Chartered Bank.

In addition to the abave, Mr. Saeed has held the
position of a Director an the Board of Lahore Stock
Exchange and served as Convener of The Regulatory
Affairs Commitiee of Lahore Stock Exchange. He is
presently a Director on the Board of Agritech Limited,
a publically-listed fertilizer manufacturing unit, He has
attended many fraining courses and workshops in
Pakistan and abroad, and has also attended conferances
on SME's, ofganized by Intemational Finance Comoration
(IFC) He is a certified trainer of IFC on SME banking.
Some of his major achievements during his caresr are,
pioneering programmed-based lending to SME’s in
Pakistan, setting up SME businesses from scratch in
three banks, and sefting up consumer business in
Silktank,

M. Saeed holds & Master's degree In Economics from
Quald-i-Azam University, Islamabad and 'Is a Commerce
graduate from Hailey College of Commaerce, He s a
fellow meémber of the Institute of Bankers in Pakistan
and & Certified Director on the panel of Paklstan
Insttute of Corporate Governance, He Is alse a tralner
for Mational Institute of Banking and Finance and Stake
Bank of Pakistan for Small & Medium Enterprises
Business, He has also conducted tralning on SME's in
Islamic banking.

Mr. Nasim Beg - Director

Wir. Nasim Beg was appointed as the nominge Director
of Mfs. Arll Habib Corporation Limited, on the Board
of the Bank with effect fram fanuary 18, 2076 and was
re-elected as a Director by the shareholders of the
Bank in August, 2017.

After having studied at the Cadet College Hasenabdal,
he gualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1870, and
glso holds & Bachelor's degree in Commerce from
Karachi University,

Mr. Nasim Beg was the founder Chief Executive of Arif
Habib Consultancy and was the founder Chief Executive
{now Vice Chairman) of MCB-Arf Habib Savings &
Investmients Limited (Formery Arf Habib Investments
Limited}, &8 teading Asset Management Company of
Pekistan.

Mr. Beg serves on the Board of Silkbank Limited as
well a5 on the Boards of several Ardf Habib Group
companies and apar from belng Chairman of the REIT
Management Company, he also chairs the Board of
Power Cement Limited,

Mir. Beg has a work experience of 48 years in the
manufacturing Industry, @5 well as the Arancial sector,
in domestic as well as international markets, He was
g part of the task force set up by the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF] to develop
the Voluntary Pension System, Mr. Beg was the founder
Chaiman of the SECP sponsored Institute of Capital
Markets and was a member of the Prime Minister's
Economlc Advisory Councll,

Mr. Azmat Tarin - Prasident & CED

Mir. Tarin is the President & CEQ of Silkbank since
Cctober, 2008, Prior to which, he was the Executive
Director in Silkbank. He is & career banker with an
experience of over 29 years. He started his career in
Branch Operations In Lincoln Savings, California, In
19849,

Subsequently, he moved o Saudi American Bank in
Riyach, where he was involved in a project of centralizing
operations. Mr. Tarin has alse attended the Management
Associate Program at the Saudi American Bank. His
first banking assiznment in Pakistan was with Union
Bank Ltd. from 1293 to 2006 a5 Head of Retail Banking,
where he was a part of the core team that turned the
bank Tnto one of the most profitable Banks of the
country, In addition, he served on the Board of Union
Leasing from 2001 to 2006, He is also serving as a
Director of Sinthos Capltal Holding Lid,

Mr. Tarin s & Master of Business Administration (MBA)
In Management Sclences from Pepperdine University,
Los Angeles, Callfomia.
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Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha - Director

Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha has been associated with
the family business since his early days. He bears an
impressive profile detailing an unprecedented track
recard, bedecked and evenly interspersed with illustrious
achievements and services on various fronts during
his professional career.

From his educational recard to professional acumen,
Mr, Zubair Nawaz Chattha stands out par excellence,
After completing his B.A, he went for a graduation in
Law and completed his LLB in 1992. He also holds
degree of LLM. On the academic front, he has had
renowned institutions amang his alma maters, including
University of Punjab, Lahore and Harvard Law School,
Usa,

Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha belongs to a business family
owning businesses with the brand name “Gourmet” in
Palkistan, After completing his education, he joined his
family business with his father and brother. At the
time, Gourmet was operating with sweets and bakers
retail shops in Lahore and 3 production units. He
introduced the idea of production of carbonated scft
drinks under the brand name Gourmet. It was a tough
decision 1o compete well-established brands in the
soft drink industry. 1t was his vision and commitment
through which he was able to introduce Gourmet brand
as an alternate option in the beverage industry which
was previously dominated by multinationals.

He managed the portfolio of focd related items and
promoted the family brand “Gourmet™ by introducing
marketing and integration strategies. He was instrumental
in setting up dairy and confectionary units and acquiring
a sugar mill. He also introduced and promoted the
“Conglomerate Diversification™ by venturing into other
businesses including Gourmet Petroleum, investment
in banking sector through equity investment in Silkbank,
where the group holds 12.5% of the bank's paid up
capital and acqulsition of News TV channel. His vision
is to Introduce "Gourmet™ worldwide as a Pakistani
Brand. He is, at present, planning to expand the
business in UK and UAE.

Annual Report 2018

Mr. Zubair joined Police Service Pakistan (PSP) through
qualifying the competitive examination in 1995, After
completing the training for PSP, he remained posted
on various sensitive positions. All these public sector
pasitions required highest level of administrative
capabilities. Mr. Zubair demonstrated extraordinary
skill and expertise in handling complex situations on
these assignments. During his service, he remained on
leave In different periods for attending to the new
gourmet projects. He resigned from govemment service
and his resignation was accepted w.e.f August 1, 20186,

Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtal - Director

Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtal was elected as an
Independent Director on the Board of the Bank in
August, 2017. He is also a member of HR Committee
of the Board.

Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtai is an Economist / Banker
by profession and has over 44 years of experience. He
has served on varlous positions in the Banking Industry
and other companies. He has also served as the Deputy
Govemaor of the State Bank of Pakistan, Chalrman of
Islamabad 5tock Exchange, President & CEOQ of ZTBL
& SME Bank Limited, and Director of Natlonal Commuodity
Exchange.

Mr. Chughtai holds a Master’s degree in Economics
from Peshawar University and other professional
qualifications from different national and international
badies. He has further attended numerous international
conferences, courses, seminars and meetings.

Mr. Shahzad Enver Murad - Director

Mr. Shahzad Enver Murad was appointed as an
Independent Director on the Board of the Bank in
September, 2017. He is also the Chairman of Audit
Committee and a member of Risk Committee of the
Board.

Mr. Murad brings with him more than 41 years of
expetience In providing consultancy services and serving
In various loczal as well as multinational banks. He has
played significant roles as Chair of the Finance Committee
& Co-Chair of the Tender Commitiee of Karachi Port
Trust, CEQ and Managing Director of NBP Leasing Ltd.,
CEQ and Managing Director of Union Leasing Ltd.,
Advisar to Chairman of Union Bank Ltd. and Deputy
Country Head of Oman Internafional Bank.

Mr. Murad halds a degree in Bachelor of Arts from
University of Punjab and Is a Certified Director from
ICAP. He also holds professional qualifications from
different national and international bodies and has
attended and conducted conferences, courses, seminars
and meetings.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Sitting from left to right:

Goharulayn Afzal
Chief Operating Officer

Khurram Khan
ChiefFinancial Giflcer-
Conventlonal Banking

Uzman Navead Chaudhary
Group Head Compliance,
ICD & Legal

Syed Liaquat Ali
Group Head Finanze /
Chief Financial Officer

Standing from left to right:

Kaleem Ahmed
Head of Human Resources

Junaed Rayaz Chaudhry
Head of Consumer Risk

Shuja Ahmed Alvi
Head of Investment
Banking & Regional
Corporate Head (South)

Javed Yousuf Edhi
Group Head IT &
Digital Banking

Ali Keshif Rizvi
Head of Treasury &
Financial Institutions

Sitting from left to right:

Shahram Raza Bakhtiarl
Director - Retail Banking

Kamran Bashir
Group Head SAM & REAM

Rashid Pervaiz
Head of Branch Banking

Kzsim Feroze Khan
Director - Special Assets
& Projects

Standing from laftto right:

Jawad Majld Khan
Director - Islamic
Banking

Talha Saced Ahmed
Executive Director -
Wholesale Banking

Mansoor Mukhtar
Head of SME Eelationship
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Wajih Zald]
Head of Internal Audit

Muhammad Saqib Pal
Chief Risk Officer
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THE MANAGEMENT

Azmat Tarin

Tatha Szeed Akmad
Goharulayn Afzal

Kasim Feroze Khan
Shahram Raza Bakhtiari
Jawad Majid Kian
Muhammad Sagib Pal
|aved Yousuf Edhi
Kamran Bashir

Uzman Maveed Chaudhary
Mansaor Muldhtar .
Kaleam Ahmed

All Kashif Rizvi

Junaed Raysz Chaudhry
Shuja Ahmed Al

Syed Lizguak Al
Khurram Khan

Wajlh Zaidi

Rashid Perrakz
Fair Ul Hasan Hashmi
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President & CEQ

Execative Director - Whoesaie Banking

Chief Operating Officer

Difector - Special Assets & Projects

[eglar - Eniall BarnE

Director - Islamic Banking

Chief Risk Officer

Eruu.p Hea;i.l.nﬁ.;r.nnatiun Technology & Digital Banking
Group Head 5AM & REAM

Growp Heed Compliaios, ICI & Legad
Head of SME Relztionship

Head of Human Besources

Head n;f:;iz.;awrr & Finencial Institutions
Head of Consumer Risk

Flesd iy ivves et Skl & Redwoal Cofponite Hidd oy
Group Head Finance / Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financial Officer « Conventional Banking

Head of internal Audit -

Head of Branch Banking

Company Secretary

CORPORATE PROFILE

Background:

Silkbank is a scheduled commercial bank listed on all stock
exchanges In Pakistan with its Central Office located in Karachi.
On September 15, 2001, under the supervision of SBP, the
nstitution then known as Prudential Commercial Bank Limited
was acquired by Saudi Pak Industrial and Agrfcultural Imvestment
Company (Pvt) Umited and renamed as Saudi Pak Commercial
Bank Limited.,

On March 31, 2008, a Consortium comprising International
Finance Corporation, Bank Muscat S.A.0.G, Nomura European
Investment Limited and Sinthos Capital Advisors (led by
Mr. Shaukat Tarin and Mr, Sadeq Sayeed) acquired a nu}'nﬂqr
steke in Saudi Pak Commercial Bank Limited, which was
subseguently rebranded as Silkbank Limited on June 01, 2008,

Major shareholders of the Bank as on December 31, 2015 are
Sinthos Capital comprising of Mr. Shaukat Tarin,
Mr. Sadeq Sayeed and Mr. Azmat Tarin, Mjs Arif Habib
Corporation Limited, International Finance Corporation {IFC),
Nomura European Investment Limited, Bank Muscat SA.0.G
and Mr. Zulgarnain Mawaz Chattha and Mr. Zubalr Nawaz
Chattha of Gourmet Group.

The Bank is engaged in providing Rnancial services via 123
branches located in 38 cities throughout the country and
offers a réange ef retail, consumer, corporate and slamic
products,

CONSCRTIUM PARTNERS

\
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REPORTS AND STATEMENTS
TO THE MEMBERS

For almost a decade, Silkbank, through perseverance
and hard work, steered the Institution through
impediments and difficulties. The resolve and
resilience of the team paid off, reflecting well in
the financial results of 2018,
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Dear Sharcholders,

The Directors are pleased to present the 25t Annual Report and
the audited financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2018.

2

Economic Review

The Fy-18 ended with a mixed performance of the ecanomy. The
real econamle activity galned further mamentum and Infation
remalned below the target for the fourth consecutive year. In the
same vein, growth In private sector eredit was strong and imvestment
edged up In terms of GDP. However, a sharp deceleration in
revenue growth compared to expendiiure and an increased
dependence on imports to meet the growing domestic demand,
led to widening in the twin deficit to unsustainable levels.

The real GDP growth was broad-based, as all the three sectors-
agriculture, indusiry and services, contributed towards the
aceeleration in growth. Current account deficits along with
depreciation of exchange rate, led to an increase In public debt.
As a result, the gross public debt rose to 72.5% of GOP as at the
end of June, 2018 fram 67.0% at the end of June, 2017. In this
context, the real GDP growth target of 8.2% for FY-19 appears
unachievable. The Industrdal sector, In particular, may witness a
slowdown due to an expected reduction in consumer demand.
Maore specifically, construction-allled and consumer durabla
industries may witness slower growth.

Revenue growth decelerated to 5.9% in FY-18 from 11.0% in
FY-17. This deceleration was mainly led by a sharp contraction
in non-fax revenye. Against this, the growth in the iax revenue
was broad-based with both the FBR and provincial taxes picking
up pace significantly during FY-18. This also reflects one-off
tece!pts from the tax amnesty scheme announced for the registration
of undeclared domestlc and forelgn assets.
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Banking Sector

Frivate sector credit to GDF ratie rose to an 8-year high of 17.4%.
It is important to nate that despite the increase in recent years,
private sactor cradit to GDP ratlo in Pakistan at the end of
FY-18 is much lower then the peak of 27.2% a decade ago.

Budgetary bomowings from the banking system remained high
during FY-18. The govemment borrowed around Rs. 2.2 tidlllon
in Q3-FY-18,

The growth in the asset base of the banking sector has moderated
during FY-18, primarily, due to a decline In net-investments. The
overall risk profile of the banking sector has improved in FY-18,
mainly, due to strengthening capital adequacy and Improved asset
quality.

SILKBANK'S PERFORMANCE DURING 2018

Financial Performance

The Bank has posted an after tax Profit of Rs. 1,328.83 million
for the year ended December 31, 2018,

During this period, total deposits of the Bank grew by Rs, 22.38
billign to Rs. 132.66 billion and gross advances Increased by
Rs. 13.43 billion to Rs, 103.56 billlon,

Summarized fAnandal performance of Silkbank Limited for the year
ended December 31, 2018, is as follows:

Rs. Tn millicn

Met mark-iip Income 6,600 5,486
Reversal/ {Provisions) impairment

S ps (1,268) (554}

Men mark-up income 3415 2943
Men mark-up expense {6,674} (6,489)
Profit / {Loss) before Tax 1,877 1,386
(Tax) j Reversal of rax {547} (251}

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 1,330 1135

Rupee
Basic Eamings [ (Loss) per share 015 0.13

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2018

SECTORAL PERFORMANCE
Retail Banking

Branch Banking

Branch Banking remains ona of the mast critical businesses far
the Bank, serving over 175,574 customers, and consisting of
approximately 88% of the Bank’s deposit base. Branch Banking
maintained its position ahead of budgeted targets throughaut the
year. Total deposits as at December 31, 2018 stood at Rs. 78
billion, an overall heatthy deposit growth of approximately Rs, 12
bitlion achieved during the year 2018. Accordingly, Branch Banking
remained ahead of its PEL budgeted figures by Rs. 127 million
{Actual EBIT Rs, 414 million against a budget of Rs. 287 milllon)
i 44% ahvad of budgeted numbers.

The trajectory seems to be heading Tn the rght direction and we
hope to see Branch Banking produce even better results In the
coming years.

A

{

ADC Business

Silkbank VISA Debit Card ("VDC™) continwed to show a strong
growth during 2018, and added 36,383 naw VDCs, Increasing the
tatal card hase to 135,389, VDC usage over Point of Sales (POS)
during 2018 recorded a spend of Rs. 1.48 billion with 381,260
transactians, reflecting a growth of 16.53% & 20 50% respectively
as compared to 2017, The highest POS monthly spend of

Rz, 136.24 milllon was recorded during June, 2018. Silkbank ATMs
dispensed a cash volume of Bs. 21.16 billion through 1,921,802
transactions during the year, with a monthly Avermge usage volume
of Rs. 1.76 bllllan,

Alternate Distribution & e-delivery channels have added value to
the product offerings of the Bank and have enhanced the reach
and access(bllity of lts banking senvices. SllkMobile reglstrations
have reached to 49,840 customers, and new features are
continuously belng added ta attract customers fowards a grester
usage of its digital platform.

Bancassurance

Bancassurance Business has shawn a consistent growth in the
year 2018 and stands at a double digit growth of 11% from the
last year's perfarmance. Total business Issued in 2018 was

Rs, 126 million a5 compared to the issued business of Rs, 114
million in 2017, With the addifion of two new insurance partners,
our product basket became more customer-centric, Branch
productivity has significantly increased through various attractive
promos and a drive of *Participation from All*, and total proposals
generated in 2018 were 1,299 as compared to 1,071 of 2017.

pollk <=

ancassﬂtance
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Wholesale Banking

Treasury & Financial institutions

Maney Market Desk posied dapitsl gaing of Fa. 24 millian from
sale and purchass of Pills, T-bills & Sukuks. In additian, income
from MAFF (arbitrage income) was: recorded ot argund Rs, 34
million In @ masket where "spreads® pamowed throughout the
year Parformance af the foreign exchange desk remained i line
with budget at Rs. 140 milllon.

Through international and foal cormespondent barking netwiork
and arrangements, Financial Instittions (F Deparimant mgde
available treasury; trade and payment solutions for Conventhonal
atid Emaan slemic Banking dusing the year 2018, generating
Bs, BT million as non-funded eamings.

Fl alse made available ample credit lines with counterparty
instinutlons, resulting In smooth absarption of credlt trarsactions
under country and Fl dsks on account of Treasury, Trade Finamoe
atvd Guaramtes Businesgas,

On the back of average advarees af Rs, 40,00 billion, the set
advances Increased from Bs. 3505 BilEon, an ncrease of 13.5%.
Consequently, Yo¥-18 mel revenue ncraased 1o Bs, 3.93 billian,
higher by $6.4%, Trade valumes showed an expansion of Rs. 4.5
Btllbon- with 14% Increment and stood at Bg; 377 hitlion In
Fy¥-18 from Rs. 33.1 billion in FY-2017.

Consumer Banking

Thie Corsurner Banking Division continues to pesform excepticnalhy
well, maintaining its growth mosmestem.

Unsecured Portfolio

I 2018, Corsumer Banking Divisian kept Hs focus on market
denvelopment and expansion. From lsunching the employee banking
to- expanding our reach into unizpped markets, which alss included
branch banking cross-sell dhanmel, various Initiathees wene undertaken
throughout the year.

Personal Loans and Ready Line has continied with its fradition
of overschievemenl by reglstering beyond eapected numbers in
ferms of proftablility and acquisitions dudng 2018, The Cansumer
Banking Divisian bosked additlopal 11,842 accounts In Personal
Loans and 16,208 In Ready Ling, The tota] dishursed amounts
were Rs. 386 billion in Personal Loans and Bs. 23.84 hilflon in
Ready Line. The Consumes Banking Diviaton has crossed Ra_ 13
bitiian ENR maark In PIL asd BL combined, which resisited in Silkbank
diominating the marcet with a 38% share among 11s pesrs,
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During the year 2018, the Corsumer Benking Divislon decided 1o
laumch the First ever Above the Line (ATL) campatgn in Persanal
Loan &5 8 expansion Initlative. The cempalgn, “Aono Kay Live
Kuch BRi™, was a great success and aided in increasing sequisition,
product swarenass a5 well a5 geining market share:

I lime wilth our goais, poll acqulsitlon stratepy was utillzed o
atwract customers thraugh numenss campalgrs, Simultansousty,
to retabn the existing customers, campaigns such as top-up
promoiions and crecit imit enhancement programs were launched,
As & result of thess concerted efforts, the Bank hias an active
custamer base of 23,595, taking the tofal to Rs, 6.4 billian.

SILEBARK READY LINE

Durirg the yesr 2018, the Consumer Banking Divisien underook
vasious spend erhancement initiathies which Tncluded tactical
prarmotions, cashbadk campaigns, VIS Debit Card activation,
balanpe ransfers, etc, The Consumer Banking Divisian also képt
its focud on promeling digifal mediums fike SkDired Intermnet
Banking and SilkMabile. Asant fam these, g-bllling and SMS abars
were 2lso prametad, As & result, we weie agble fo close 2018 with
Ready Line ENR of Rg, B.63 killign,

After the suposss of our campalgn, “Khwahishon ko chatne do™
In 2017, we dedided to re-rum this Abowe the Line (ATL) campalgn
in order to expand our market and Tncrease top of the mind
awareness. At the end of the year 2018, Ready Line had an actes
customer base of 41,545,
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Credit Cards

The year 2018 has besn an outstanding yesr for Sikbank Credit
Cards, where for the frst time since the laundh of the Credit Cand
business, the CNR has grown by R, 1 Bilfion 1o Rs. 4.5 hillion,
with spemd of Rs. 1% billion, megistedng a year on year growth of
2%, Sfikbank gdded 50,000 new credit cards in 2018 and was
the market beader in fresh acguisitions for the third consecutive
yisar, o berms al porthalia health indicators, (he wtilizafion fate
incroased to 2% from 23%, while cradit card activation rate
increased to 84% from 7%, Dudng 2018, Sikbank Credit Cards
laundhed ks first awer TWE, “For-a Milon Beasons®, which creafed
rarkel Byarensss and 8 posithee image. Sllkbank mse sbove it
cormpetitors by offering value deals and discounts ab 300+ alliance
pariners, which was more than any other Gand producl in Che
market, The product offering was also enhdnced with numenous
oiber Indiatives, namely, the addtion of instant ceahbad redempdion
at selected partner sutiets, enhancement of cashback walue
prepasition and credit prolector indufanes plan, supphementany
sard baoking via kelpline and taanch of credit rd refermal program,

SILKBANK CREDIT CARDS

Fora

Million Reasons

Secured Portfolio

Silkcharik M Power, 2 unndng finance facllity sacared agalnst
residenlial and pommescisl propesties; dlands al an ENRE ol

Rs. 236 hitkion with 325 active customers. Svan though the
acquisition was put on hold due to current SME related econpmiy
challenges as well a5 foreclosure (ssues, we were st able to
overachieve the annaal profitability target by Bs. 42 million,

Emaan Islamic Banking

Emnaan Islemic Banking perfommed autstandingly In 2018, seocesshily
gererating a profit before fax (PET} of RBs B22 milfion, On the
liabllity side, Emadn [slamic Banking reglstered a growth of

Rs, 16703 milfion (117%), CASA grew by 83.28% and the deposit
book was closed st s 30,960 million, Advances side reglstersd
a growth of Rs. 8,374 milllon and dased at Rs. 26,902 millkan,
Focus an Service & Quality was meintalned throughaut the year,

EXCELLENCE

ISVALUE

Technology

A pmber of lechnology based infiatived ware 1aken 1o suppon
businesses, regulatory compliance and enhance customer semvices
guality in 2078, During the yoar, extensive Support was provided
to newly esfablished 35 branches across Pakistam A major
mibeglape was schieved with successfl Implementalion of Cosa
Banking System (T-24 Release upgrade from ROBto R1B6) The
Bank successfully deployed Go-8ML 03 per the mandate of SBP.
Moreover, in compliance of SBE Instructions, T Govemnance &
Risk Managerment Framework wes completed within targeted time
and zll policfes and related documents wene appraved /
recommendad by the Baard 1T Committes and duly ppreved by
the Board of Directors-fior implementation and compliance,

Human Resources

Hurnan Resaurces remained focused on employess” angagement
gnd development and aranged varbaus training sesslans for f=am
building, performance management and service excelience, sntanding
the skill set for employees and Improving the cverall culture of
the Bank. Employee Engagement astivitles were also carried out
during the year, Increasing morale and engagement of the
ermployees, To promete the Bank @5 8 brand and achieve the
statis of Emgloyer of Cholce, the Bank sarticipated in job Rl
crganlzed by leading business Institubes of the couintsy and
recrulted mone than 100 students In the summer (Rtemship progam
to provide them the profiessional expedence and develop & pipeline
for futicre hiring. The Bank also participated in the annyal satary
survey, which helped In determislng compensation lavels and
understanding market posifoning among the peer banks, This
woldd uttimately Facilitate in retaining top tatent and aligning the
compensation stracture with markel standards.
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Special Asset Management Group (SAMG)

During the year, 8 remarkable impact on Profit & Loss account
of Rs. 1,633 million was contribubed by SAMG against a budgeted
amount of Rs. 1,268 million,

The Real Estate Asset Management team also successfully sold
various Other Real Estate Owned (CREOQ} / Bank Owned properties
at a price of Rs. 2,518 million against the written down value of
Rs. 1,638 million, posting a gain of Rs. 830 million.

Customer Service & Quality (CS & Q)

The Bank's focus was on customer retention and loyalty, focusing
on customers” problems and service recovery. The Bank has
imtroduced customer-cantric processes like Credit Card self-plek
up and appointment dellvery of retumed cards, ATM functionalfty
aver weekends and holidays, cash counter guldelines to serve
customers within defined senvice level and has Improved upon
floor management for customer guldance.
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Corporate Social Responsibility & impact
of Business on Environment

The Bank clearly understands its responsibility in protecling the
environment and consenving natural resources. The Bank Is cognizant
of the environmental consequences of its actlons and work towards
developing a sustalnable business model that benefits all
stakeholders.

Prior to the issuance of guidelines on green banklng by the SBP,
the Bank already had an SEMS Policy (Soclal and Environmental
Management Systams Policy) in place since 2009, to ensure that
the Bank's existing porfolio should be based en enviranmantally
friendly industries and projects. The SEMS Palicy includes social
& environmental screening of the different types of financing,
project categories, applicable requirements, social and emvironmantal
procedures, controls and reporting. The SEMS Policy will continue
to be applicable in addition to the Central Bank's suggested
framawork for green banking Initiatives,

Morecver, In 2014, the Bank Installed solar systems which are
currently being used by 38 branches to feed essentlal power
requirements, which Include ATM, IT systems, essentlal lighting
and alarm systems. These branches use solar power duting the
daytime and switch automatically to the national grid at night.
During power oulages, these branches rely on solar energy to
provide back-up suppart. The Bank plans to convert all its ATM
booths to green AThs eventually. Thesae hybrid systems also help
the Bank to save electricity during weekends and public holidays
as the branches swifch to solar power to save Riel cost, The credit
approval process for Corporate Banking is being carried out through
wark-stream, & paperless system, for the last ten years, SilkDirect
app called DigiSil, Is currently launched on a trial basis for staff
anly.

The Bank, over the years, has been Increasingly substituting manual
systems with automated solutions In Its endeavor towards a
paperess environment. The Bank Is In the process of digitizatlon
of its processes which will almost entirely eliminate paper for
account opening and booking of both retall lending products as
well as depasit accounts.
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Board of Directors

During the year, Mr. Shamsul Hasan was appointed as Deputy
Govarnor of State Bank of Pakistan and therefore, tendared his
resignation. To fill the vacant position, the Beard appointed

Mr. Salman Tarin as Director of the Bank. The Board subsequently
appointed Mr. Azmat Shahzad Ahmed Tatln, President & CEO of
the Bank, as a Director of the Bank effective January 23, 2018,
subject to the approval of the SEP.

Mr. Munnawar Hamid, Chairman of the Beard, upon completing
his 3 terms a5 an ndependent director of the Bank, tendered his
resignation, requesting the Board to appoint an independent
director as the new Chairman of the Beard of the Bank. The Board
accepted his resignation with effect from January 02, 2019,

The Board extends its deepest appreciation to Mr. Munnawar
Hamid and Mr. Shamsul Hasan for their valuable and consistently
high guality contribution to the Beard and Board Committees.
This went & long way In the effective directlon of the successful
development and management of the Bank through Its various
difficulties over the years, towards what |5 expected now to be
a prosperous future. At present, the composition of the Board Is
as follows:

Types of Direchor
independent Director

Names of the persons who, at any time
during the financial year, were directors
of the Bank:

Mr. Khalid Azlz Mirza

Mr. Nasim Beg

Mr. Rashid Akhrar Chughral
fr. Shahzad Enver Murad
Mr. Tarig Igbal Khan, FCA
ir. Talha Saced Ahmed

fr, Zubair Mawaz Chatiha
Mr, Munnawar Hamid, OBE*
. Mr. Shamsul Hasan*

*4s stated above, Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE & Mr. Shamsul
Hasan have resigned from the Board.

Do N mn A Ry

Composition of Board Committees

In accordance with the SBP guidelines, the Board has formed the
following Commiltees, composition of which are as follows:

Aupdlt Committes
I Shahg:gd Envar Murad

Tariq Igbel Khan, FCA
Wi h Zaidi

_ Tariq Iqbel Khan, FCA | Acing Cheimman / Member
Shahzad Enver Murzd Member

Muhammad Alif Kausar Sacratary

Naaim g
Zubair Newsz Chattha

Javed Yousuf Edhi Secratary

Human Resources Commities
Khalid Aziz Miza
Mr. Munnawar Hamid®
Rashic Akhiar Chugtsi
" Kaleem Ahmed
*As siated above, Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE has resigned
from the Board with effect from January 02, 2015,
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Performance Evaluation of the
Board of Directors

In compllance with the guldelines on performance evaluation of
the Board of Directars, Issuad by the State Bank of Pakistan, the
Board appointed Pakistan Institute of Corporate Govemance (PICG)
as an external evaluator to cary out performance evaluation

exerclse for the Board of Directors of the Bank for the year 2018,

The PICG has conducted performance evaluation exercise which
was divided into two parts: Board as a whaole (which also includes
the Board Committees) and individual direclor evaluation (undertakan
by the Chairman). Apart from these, the Board members wera
also provided an opportunity to give their apihion on any emenging
issue.

As per the PICG results of the Board evaluation, the evidence
provided was satisfactory about the balance and performance of
the Board and its Committees and the effectiveness and
commitments of each Director.

The rating criteria set by PICG for the Board evaluation was as
follows:

m Excellent: All board members perform or ensure that all facters
within this question are always done. (9+ 10+)

m Good: All board members perform or ensure that all Retors
within this gquestion are alweys done. (B+)

8 Salisfaciory: Most board members perform or ensure that most
of the factors within this guestion are done same of the times.
6+74)

® Meed Improvement: Only a few board members perform or
ensure that the factors within this guestion are done. (4+ 54

8 Unsatisfactory: Most of the board members do not perform
or ensure that factors within this question are done. (34
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Results / Ratings by the PICG:

= Board as a whola
Followlng are the ratings on the broad topics covered In a
guestionnalre on evaluation of Board as a whole, assigned
by the PICG:

Board As A Whole
Stategic Plamning
Board 2nd CEO Eflctivenses
Board Infarmation
Board Frocedures
Chairman
Independent Direclor
Control Envircnment

Brard Compensalion

Audt Committes
IT Gommittee
Risk Managemant
Nomination & Human Resources

Corporate and Financial Reporting
Framework

The Board is eotnmitted to its respansibilities under the Code of
Corporate Govermnanca of the SECP. In doing so, it wishes to make
the following statements:

@) The financlal statements prepared by the management of the
Bank, prasent falrly its state of affairs, the result of its operation,
cash flow and changes in equity.

b} Proper books of account of the Bank have been maintained,

¢) Appropriate accounting policles have been congistently applied
in preparation of finandal statements, and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d Interational Financlal Reporting Standards as applicable In
Pakistan have been followed in preparation of financial
statements and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed.

2] The system of internal control is sound in design and has
been effectively implemented and monitored. Management’s
statement on internal control 1s endosed herewith which is
endorsed by the Board as required by the State Bank of
Pakistan, The Board is ultimately responsible for the Bank's
system of intemal control and reviewing iis effectiveness.
However, such 2 system 1s deslgned to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve objactives and by fis
nature can provide only reascnable and not ebsolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The process used by the Board to review the effectiveness of
the system of Internal control Includes, Inter alla, the following:
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N An audit commirtee has been formed with approved tems
of reference and reports to the Board. It reviews the
approach adopted by the Bank’s Internal audlt department,
as well as the scope of and its relationship with the external
auditors, It also receives repors from fhe internal audit,
and any material cantrol weakness that is |dentified, is
discussed and agreed actions are taken In areas of concem,

li} An organlzatlonal structure has been established which
supports clear lines of communication and tlered levels of
authority with the delegation of appropriate responsibility
and accountability.

i) Business sirategies agread at divislonal level are approvad
by the Board. In addition, thete is an annual budgeting
and strategle planning process. These strategies are reviewed
durlng the year to reflect any significant changes in the
business environment.

iv) The principal features of control framework indude:

B Evaluation and approvals procedures for major capital
expenditure and other transactions.

B Regular reporting and menitaring of financial parformance
using operating statistics and monthly managements
accounts which highlight key performance ind/cators and
variance from budget and quarterly forecasts.

B Review of the health, safety, environment and contingency
management processes and other significant polides.

m Further, reviews of the system of intemal control are
also camfed out by the Intemal audif department and
management conclusions on Intemal control are confirmed
by divisional management to the Beard.

E There are no significant doubts upon the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concerm.

B There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate govemance, as detailed in the
listing regulatians.

fi The value of investments of Provident Fund and Gratulity
Fund is Rs, T€3.00 million and Rs, 554.000 millian,
respectively, as per the un-audited financial statements
of these funds for the year ended December 31, 2018,

Risk Management Framework

Concerted efforts hiave been carried out over the years for
improvements in the Risk Management Function, which have
resulted in better cantyol & risk environment, plus creating an
averall “Rigk Cutture” within the Bank. With the growing shift
towards Basal Implementation and enhanced foous for management
of risk on an Integrated besls, following are some Important
aspects of the Risk Management Function at Sfikbank Limited:

Credit Risk

Managing of credit risk is considered one of the key functions at
ki, Independent Risk Management Uinlts catering to the Corporate
{ Commercial / SME and Consumer segments are fully operational
and clearly follow the lald out Procedures formulated in the form
of policies { Manuals and Product Programs. Credit Risk is thus
continyously manitored by the respective sanctioning units. Broad-
based Credit Approval Authorities have also been delegated to
various approvers far credit sign offt Additionally, Credit
Administration units are in place for all segments of the Bank,
effectively taking cate of all the documentation and safe keeping.
The Bank has developed in-house Obligor Risk Rating (ORR)
models / systems for Corporate, Commercial and SMEs, which are
regularly reviewed [ updated: resultantly, RMG has upgraded The
Ohligar Risk Rating model for Corporate and Commerdal Customers
by releasing the revised varsion 1.3. Besides this, RMG also has
a robust Early Warming System (EWS) reporting in place. RMG had
also put in place a facllity, Risk Rating model, which now stands
fully Implemented on a bank-wide basls and effectively measures
the risk In relation to each facllity granted to &ll customers. These
processes are capable of ldentifying problem loans at an sarly
stage for fimely remedial actions. Results for establishing these
systams are now beginning to reflect In the management letter
Issued by the extemnal auditors and the annual reports complied
by the SBP Inspection teams through reduced instances of system
and procedure fallures,

Under Comrsumer Banking, a separate collection unit operates for
follow up and recovery of loans, which was responsible for &
strong recovery stream of written off consumer loans, thus ensuring
a pivotal role in bolstering business growth for the Bank during
the year. A centrallzed Special Assets Management Unit is also
in place and is primarily responsible far handling the NPL accourts
and recovery process, Tha unit is performing its task in a profess/onal
and efficient manner. RMG has also kept a close watch on the
accounts identified as having developed *Potential Weaknesses™.
Business units are required to provide quarterly updates on such
aceounts which are then comprehensively reviewed by RMG, and
strategles going forward are debated upon with all stakeheolders.
As per practics, this list s also shared with the Risk Commitiee
of the board during the guarterly meeting and thelr input Is
Invariably sought for iImplemantation.
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Besides varlous management committees of the Bank, Credir Risk
is also overviewed by the Risk Committee of the Board on an
ongoing basis. Regular guldance 1s sought from the Board on
credit related matters and the findings are implemented In letter
and spirit. Marked reduction in the NPL portfolio has ensued
resultantly.

Operational Risk reperiing under OLED has been initiated in the
Bank and & detailed procedural guidaline has been duly approved
by the Senigr Managemant. All segments and departments of the
Bank have been advised for regular reporting. Workshaops for the
benefit and understanding of reporting units are being held for
all related staff, enabling them to report all incidenks to RMG for
reporting and capturing of loss data within the Bank.

After sucressful implementation of the framework, we have now
started collection of the required loss event data on monthly
basis, and are now dealing with the issues hands on. This data
Ts the fArst step towards forming the historlcal pool which will
help In Tmproving aur procedures further. Board's Risk Comrrittee
Ts regularly updated on the progress being made In this regard.
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Board of Directors” & Committees’ Meetings during 2018

During the year 2018, following Board and its Committees meetings wete held. Aitendances by the Directors & President BCEQ were

as follows:

Risk Commitiee
Mestings

IT Committes

Meetings

Directors

" Audit Committes Human Resources |
— v
Altended Held Attsnded

An Internal Contral Unit Is also aperatlonal with the primary task Held Atiended | Hek! | Attended

A Middle Office function (independent of the Treasury) has been
established within the Bank with the primary responsibility of
monitoring the market risk function and onward reporting to the
Head of Risk Management Group. Investment Committee {10,
Market Risk Policy Committee {MRPC) and Asset and Ligbilities
Commities (ALCO) are also functioning ta suparvise and approve

of overviewing and ensuring implementaton of various operational

guldelines and manitoring toals and reconclliation across the Mr. Munnewsr Hamid, OBE 6 8 - - 5 5 . - -

Bank. Additlenally, an independent Intemal Audit function Is also Mr. Khalid Aziz Miiza 8 B " | - 5 5 _ o -

n place within the Bank, reporting to the Audlt Committee of the 3

Board. A Proper Compllance Department Is also functlonal, Inter Mr. Nasim Bog 6 i 4 | 4 N N = = 4

alla. to ensure that all legal and regulatory requirements are Mr.; Rashid Akhiar Chughtai 6 B - | - 5 5 - - -

properly addressed in additien to the Implementation of Anti- o, A

money Laundering and Know Your Customer (AML / KYC) Policies. M s B a0 = 8 4 | A = = | 4 i =
M. Tariq Iqbel Khan, FGA 6 5 a | 4 . 4 .

In this respect, appropriate training to relevant staff has been Mr. Talha Saced Ahmed 6 B - | z 3 5 g - 3

imparted, including training on strict menitoring of transactions : [

and AML / KYC, Buslness Continuity Plan (BCP) is also In place Y. Zubair Nawaz Chiattha 6 3 ) £ - - d - | 4

to deal with any eventuality. Self-assessment of Key Risk Indicators Mr. Azmat Shahzad Ahmed Tarin ] 5 - - - z “ A i

{KRI's) and compliance of standards, codes and guidelines is
regularty carmied aut and documented.

Directors’ Tralning

All Directors on the Board are fully conversant with thelr dutles
and responsibllities as Directors of the Bank. Three Directors of
the Bank have cbtained the required centification whereas, four
Directors of the Bank stand exempted from the requirement of
the said certification and the remalining Directors will obtain ft
with'n the prescribed time.

Hald Aftended |  Held

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the meefing,

Pattern of Shareholding

The patiern of shareholding as required under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate Governance is as follows:

Combined pattern of CDC and Physical Shareholding as at December 31, 2018

Categories of Shamsholders

Market Risk exposures. At Silkbank, we have a well-defined ™ Directors, Chief Exscutive Officer and thelr spouse(s) 9 439 559,686 484
Liquidity Policy, duly approved by the Board. Presently, various and minor children |
axcal-based tools are in use [o generate MIS on Market Risk and : R
reporting to the senlor management and regulators. We have also | Besnckted Compswies, Undoreings anc o B i SHEERARLON REE
successfully set up the “Web Tach system and T-Risk Moduls”, Executives” 13 38,27.47M 043
which Is capable of generating sophisticated modeling reports Public Sactor Companies and Corporaticns 48,362 496 0.53
and Independent monltaring of various treasury functions In a Barks. De ot Financa Ins = 3483278 0.04
I 'm!l“ L ]

live environment. Nen-Banking Finance Companies, Insurancs Companies,

Operational Risk Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds !

PRISNOTNG S Mutual Funds 1 20,880,417 023
Under Operational Risk, appropriate Opetational Policies and rerelgn Campenics ! 05, A
Procedures have been documented and disseminated for managing General Public = Foreign 21 156,623,496 1.72
operational risk on a bank-wide basis. Operational Risk Manual = W= @& s L Ganeral Fubll A
has since been prepared and approved by the Board. Risk Control g 22 CwemmEchER 0 i it by
self-assessment questionnalres have also been sent across to Othors 428,057,130 4N
varfous segments of the Bank and based on thelr feedback, we Total: 9,081,861,237

plan to implement the proress on a bank-wide basls during the
CUITERE yeur.

|
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"in accordance with the Pakistan Stock Exchange (P5¥), definition of the term “Exacutive” wsed fn clause Mo, 5.6.1 {d) (Disclosure of
Price-Sergitive Information To The Exchange) of Chapter & of PSX Rule Book, the Board of Directors of the Bank has passed & rezolution
in its 154™ meeting feld on October 28, 2016 & set the threshold for the term “Executive™ as the CEQ, 00, CFO, Head of Intemal
Audit and Compary Secretary by whatover ndme called, and covering employees of the Bank of Grade - & and abave,

The aggregate shares held by the Directors, Chief Executive and their spouse(s) and minor children along
with Assodated Companies, Undertakings Related Parties and Mutual Funds as at December 31, 2018

Categony Wise |
Mo, of Folios |
COG A

I mbar af
Shares Hexd

Categary Wize
Srares Held

Percentage

Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE
aid Aziz Mirza
Mir. Rashid Akkter Chughtai
bir. Shafrad Enver Murad
Pr. Tiaic Igbaf Kihwan
Mr. Subair Hewar Chaltha
M. Aernad Tarin
Wirs. Farah Naz Tarin Velo Axmat Tarin
Wire. Saima Shahzad Mursd Wio Shahzad Enver Mirag

: Azsociated Companies, Underskings and ' ’
5. No. Rielated Partios (§% & above sharehoiding] 8 5,606,762 083 6238

At Habib Coeporabion Limied
Mr. Shakat Tanin®
Imternafional Flnancs Comnoration
MF, ZLiarin bz Chatiha
Mesmusra Eyropean Invastment Limited
Bank Musest 8 00 G

COC - Trustes Mational Investmant {Unit) Tnist

*The. (otal shareholding of Mr, Shoukal Tarin scluslly stands &t 1,108,091.791 shates, e 12,78% in the Bank, oul of which as of
Deember 31, 2018, an amownt of Afty seven milon (57030 000% skares of M. Shaukst Tarin have been kept with Pear Securitles
Limited,

During the yaar, Mr. Bhovare: A1 Malil Area Manager - Branch Banking of Silkbank Limited, has purchased 3,000 shares from the open
market, The Bank has mpored the same 1o the Pakistan Steck Exchange In compliance of clause No, 5.6.7. () of PSX Regulations,
Apart from this, there was no other frading In Slikbank skares camied out by #ny of the Direttors end Executheps or thelr spouses and
minoy chikaren during the wear,

The retirlng apdiions, being eligibie, offer tamselves for re-appointment ti the conclusion of the neat Anneal General Meeting. The
Audit Commities of the Baard has recommended Ms, Grant Thomton Anjum Rahman (GTAR], Charened Accountants, the retiving awditors,
&5 the-statutory awditors of the Bank for the Rrancial year 2018,
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Compliance with Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) and Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

Az st December 39, 20048, the équity of the Bank |s-Bs. 14,46 billfon éxcluding defigt on revaluation of assets. This indudes share
capital [met of lsses and dismount on shares) of B8, 1363 Billicn against the minimuem requirement of Be 10 billon as prescribed by
SEP. Further, the Capital Adequacy Ratle (CAR) of the Bank is 10 92% against the minimurn CAR requirement of State Bank of Pakisian
{587 of 11.90%. The CAR requirement of 11.80% is made up of minlmam CAR of 10% plus. 1.50% of Capital Conservation Bulfer {

Tha Img-térm entlyy rating of the Bank [5 A- [Single A Minus) and the shortterm rating 15 A-2 [8-Two) &5 determined by "JCR VIS" Credit
Raling Company Limited, The outlook on fhe assigned rting is "55ahle”,

Future Outlook

Going forward in 2078, In addition to implementing the Bank’s declamd strotegy to improve profifability by greater covermge, assed
performance gnd productivity, effoms will be made to build cote deposit base which will compiement overall Bank's strategy to reduce
reliance on SFS deposit and simaltamecushy, dilite cost of fands. Therefong, foows will be or brirging in small thdeets CASA NTES, The
Bank now further intends to issue another Tiee-IT instrument in 2018, preferably on the islamic side, to bring furdher improvement in
the CAR and the funds so raised, will b2 wtillzed towards the Bani's business operations and further expansion dedng 2015 The Bank
weould Rirther fotus on dispass) of ORED asoets and recuction of avergresn lnes | compomate portfolic and Imprave upon shor-barm
frede limes.

Effarts will &iso b mdde 1o reving agorassively, the maftgage astils business 1o provide furthar grawth in the Consumes Banking
business, Mest Importantly, the Bank will Increasingly emphasize on Hs haman eagital by strengthendng " pay for performance culture™
anc Improwed sutcesslon planning paocess. In addithon ta the 35 new branchas, the Bank irteqds fo cominue indreasing ®5 gerographical
fantprint.

I ofcher bo provicle & platform to caler for the unbdnked populativn, th Bank b prepared (o estiblbh digital Barking 1o Increate 15
cutreach, which s expected to be launched shortdy. By Introducing the “cmart branch” concept, the Bank will also Increase its distribuion
foatprint and increase the aumber of branches at strategic focations all ower the country, which should erbance the Bank®s abiity to
mabilize deposits and subseqeently, lend and nvest Increasingly in eaming assers,

With the successful implementation of the stretegies autlined abave, your Birectors sme hopeful that the prafitable growth of the Bapk
will contlnue En the yesrs 1o come.

Acknowledgement

We teke this opporiunlty to express gur despast gratitude to opr customens snd Business parners for thelr contineed suppen and tnest,
and our sincere appreciation fo the Siate Bank of Paklstan and other regulators For thedr guldance and cooperation extended to the
Eank-

For and on Behalf of the Board of
Silksank Limited
prne o e,
Azmat Tarin Ehalld Aztz Mira
Prasident & CEO Chalrmeas

Karachl, Fabruary 28, 2019
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

This statement ic being presanted to comply with the regulation 40 of the Listed Companies (Code of Carporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017, setting out the status of compliance of Silkbank Limited (The Bank) with the requirements of Regulations,
The Bank has complied with the reguirements of the Regulations in the Following manmer:

1. The total number of directors are B-as per the followlng:
& Male L
b. Female: 9

2. The compositlon of the Board 5 as follows:
Category

Kr. Khalid Aefz MNrea
My, Shiahead Erwier Mursd
fir. Rashid Akhtar Chughtal

Nr. Blunnawar Hamid, DBE*
Mr. Masim Beg

Mr. Tariq bqbal Khan, FCA
M. Fubsir Nawaz Chattha

Mr. Talha Sased Ahmed

Independent Directors

Mon-Execigive Blrsciomns

Executive Directors

*Mr. Muanowar Hamid kas lendered hic resignation from the Board of Direclors of the Bank with effect from
Jonuory 2, 2078,

3. The Directors have confirmed that none ‘of-them # serving a5 a director on mare than five listed companies, incheding this Bank,

4, The Bank has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensurod that appropriste sleps have been taken to dissomingte it throughow
the Bark along with iis supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vislon [/ misslon statement, overall corporate strategy and slgniffzart pollcles of the Bank. & complate
record of pariculars of signlficant policies slong with-the dates on which they were approved or amended has beep maintained.

B. All the powars of the Baard kave besa duly exerciced and decisions on fefevant matiers hayve been Baken by the Board J/ sharshabders
a5 empowened by the refevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations,

7. The meetings of the Board were presided gver by the Chalrman and, in bls absence, by a director elected by the Board For this
plrpose. The Bosrd has complied with the reguirements of the Act and the Regudations with respect o frequency, recarding and
droulating minutes of meeting of the Board,

&. The Board of directors have a formal pobicy and transparent procedures for iemuneration of directors In acoordance: with the Ad
and these Regulations,

3. All the Directors on the Board are fully conversant with thelr dutbes and responsibillthes as Directors of the Bank, The Fllowing
theee Directors have obiained Directors’ Tralning Pragram centification from Pakistan Institute of Corpofate Gevemance (PICG] |
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Paklstan [FCAP):

Mr. Shahrad Enver Murad
2 Mr, Tarig ighal Khan, FCA
3 Mr. Talha Saeed Ahmad
Wheseas, the foliowing four Directors of the Bank stand exempted from the requirement of the said certification.
1] Mr Knalkd Aziz Mirza
2} Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE
3 Mr. Nasim Beg
4] Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtal
The ramaining Directors will obiain required cedification within the prescribed Hme,
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10, Tha Board has approved appointment of CFD, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and
terms and oonditions of employment and complied with relevant reguitements of the Reguiztions.

. CFDand CED duly endorsed the financal statements before the zpproval of the Board,
12, The Bozrd has femned commitbees compising of members given bélow:
gl Audit Committes

Shakzad Enver Mursd Chaimgzn
Masim Beg Member
Tatig Ighat Kkan, FCA hembar
Wajih Zaidi Secretary
by Homination, Bemuneration & Human Kesources Committes
Khalid Aziz Mirza Chaiman
Munnawar Hamid, OBE* FAerniuer
Fashid Akhtar Chughtal Memmber
Kaleem Ahmed Secretary

“Mr. Munnowar Homld kes tendered his resignation from the. Bogrd of Directors of the Sank with effect from
fanwary 02, 2048,

o Risk Management Commithes

Tarlg Igbal Khan, FCA Acting Chairman | Member
Shahzad Enver Mursd Member
Muhammad AP Kauser Secretary
dy Information Technotogy Commitiee
Nasim Beg Chalrman
Zubalr Mawaz Chattha Membar
Jarved Yousuf Edki Secretary

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committesas have been formed, documentec and advised to the committes for compliance.
W, The frequency of meetings of the committes were as per following:

a) Audit Commities Quarterly
B Momination, Remoneration & Human Besources Committes Guarterdy
] Risk Maragement Committee Quarterdy
o} Information Technology Commities Quartery

15. The Board hias set up an =ffective intemal zudit function who ame considersd suitably qualified and expesienced for the purpase
and are comversant with the polices and proceduras of the Bank,

16, The statutory auditors of the Bank kave confirmed fhat they Fave been given & satisfadiony mbing under the quaiity control review
program of the ICAP and registered with Audt Owersight Board of Pakistan, that they o any of the partners of the firm, their spouses
and minor children do not hold shares of the Bank and that the frm and sl its partners are In compliance with Intarmnational
Federation of Accountants (FAC) guidelines on code of ethics a5 adopted by the ICAP,

17, This statutory suditors or the persons. assackated with them have ol beer appointed to provide other sarvices excapt In scosadance
with the Atd, these regulations or any ather regulatory requirement and the auditors hawe confirmed that they have casarved IFAC
guicelines in this regard,

18, We conflrm that all other reguirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Far and on Behatf of the Board of

Silkbank Limited

Lyt gt e
Azmat Tarin Khalld Ariz Mirza
Prasident & CED Chalrman

Karachi, February 28, 2019
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SILKBANK LIMITED
MANAGEMENT'S STATEMENT
ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

This statement is issued in compliance with the State Bank of Pakdstan (SBF) BSD Circlilar Mo. 07 of 2004 on Intarnal Controls,

Maintaining effective controds 1s-an integral part of the management and accountability furction In Silkbank. The focus of
internal control, both as a concept and a management tool, kas evolved over the yaars th a broad-based fsk assessmenl
and mitigation system, covering &l areas of operativns in the Bank.

As part of the strategy to ensure effective monitoring and improvement of intemal controls, the Bank has implemented
the COS0 framework of Internal controls, In line with regulatory guidelines (ICFR) and COS0 Implementation (BS0-T). With
regulzr mopitoring and improvement of the defined controls, the overall cortral environment in-the Bank is5-now geared
to provide reasonable assurance fo the Bank’s managemant and other skakeholders,

The Bank's Internal Controls System has been designed to provide reasenable assurance to the shareholders and the Board
of Directors: howewer, these systems may not entively eliminate the rsk of misreporting and Riure of certain controls
under a changing environment, The Bank endeavors {0 follow the State Bank of Pakistan’s guidelines on Intemal Cantrals,

During the year, the Management has further strengthened the day-to-day monitoring of contral breaches for prompt:

comrective actions. Compliance and |nternal Control Division conducted reviews of processes in branches 1o identify gaps
in execution with specal emphasis on the implementation of regulatory Instructions. Intemal Audit alss peformed audit
activities to evaluate the Implementation of controfs and ensure the axdstence of offectivie control environmaent throughout
the Bank.

Over the yesrs, the management has been able to adopt strategy to ensure effective monitoring and improvement of
internal controls, These include the following:

1. The compliance function ensures Bank's compliance with all applicable {aws, reguiations and code of sthigs.

2. An organizational struclure has been established which supports ciear lines of communication and tiered levels of
authorily and sepregation of dulies commensurate with accountabilbity.

3. The Bank has established an effective Internal Audit structure, reporting directly to the Audit. Committes of the Board,

4, An Intemngl Contral Department is established to prozctively manitor gnd validate Controls in lime with Regulatory
guidelines {ICFE) and S0 implementation (850-T),

8. The significant and materizl findings of the internal & extermal auditors and regulators were addressed on a priosity
basis by the management and their status was periodically reported to the Board Audit Committes.

8. The Bank has implemented varous key policles and procedur guidelines | mandals covering all the areas of management
and operations, including those relasted to Branch Banking Operations, Cenfralized Operations, Trade Business, Treasury,
Credit Risk, HE, Finance, Compliance and Adminkstration.

7. Management ghves due consideration to the recommendations made by the Internal and external auditors for improvements
In the internal control system and fakes action to implement such recommendations.

B. The management hgs established evaluation and approval procedures for all major capital expenditure and other
transactions.
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8. There is an annual budgeting and strategic planning process in the Bank. Financial forecasts are reviewed on a periodical
basis bo reflect sigrificant change in the business environment. Regular reporting and monitorng of financial performance
of the depariments and the Bank as a whole has bean implemented, using statistics and monthly management gocownts
to highllght key performance indlcators and varianee from budgets and forecasts,

10. The: Bank has Implemented varous significant policles covering all the greas of operations, Including those relating to
employees welfare and contingency management processes,

11, Management slso emphasizes on imparting of training fo enhance knowledge and understanding of the Bank’s intemal
policies and procedures.-and prudentizl reguiations. This has greatly contributed towards strengthening of the contral
EMYirDpment,

The Bank = continuously making effaris to ensure that an effective and efficlent Intemal Confrols System remalns active
and implemented through consistent and perlodic monitoring that would help furthet strengthening of the overall control
enviranmant

Witk the Implementatien of COSO Framework (under the SBP guidefines on Internal controls) @nd regular monitoring of
the defined controls, the overall control environment In the: Bank is geared to provide reasenable assurance 1o the Bank's
management, stakeholders and Board of Directors, which we believe will continue to further Tmprove with time.

.

Armat Tarin

Karachl, February 28, 2019 Prasident & CEO
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NOTICE OF THE 25%
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Kotice is hereby ghven that the Twenty Fifth Annual Gemeral Meeting of Silkbank Limited will e held at Serena Hotel,
Islamabad, on Saturday, March 30, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To confirm the minutes of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on November 30, 2018.

2. To réceire, consider and adopt the andited financial statements: of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2018,
fogether with the Directors” and Auditors’ reports thereon.

3. To appoint-auditers to hold ofice till the conclusion of the next Annual Genersl Meeting and to fix their remuneration,

Any Other Business:

To transact amy other business with the permission of the Chair.

By the Order of the Board

Faiz Ul Hasan Hashmi

Company Secratary
Karachi, March 09, 2018

Notes:
1. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Bank will remaln closed from March 22, 2015 to March 30, 2M8 (both days inclusive),
Share Transfess received al Mfs. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), Share Registrar Department
COC House, 99-B, Block ‘B°, 5.MLCH.S., Maln Shehra-e-Falgal, Karachi-T4400 by the dose of business hours (500 PM)
on Thursday, March 21, 2018, will be treated a8 being in Gme for the purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.

2. Participation in the Meeting:

Alk rrembers of the Rank are entitled to attend the meeting and vole there in-persan o through a Proxy. A prozy duly
appointed shall hawve such rights as respect to the speaking and vating at the meeting as ara available to 8 member,
The proxies shall produce thelr original CMICs or original passport at the time of the meeting.

Members c2n also avall video conference facility in Karachi, Lahore, Rawaipindlisiamabad, Peshawar and Quetta, In
this regard, please fill the enclosed Consent for video conference facility and submit to registered address of the Bank,
seven (T) days before the holding. of the Annual General Meeting.

IF th Bank receives Consent From members, holding In aggregate 105 or more shareholding and residing al a grographical
location, to particpats in the meeting throagh video ronference at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the maeting,
the Bank will arrange a video conference facility In the city, subject fo avallability of such Facility in that city.

The Bank will Intimate members regarding the venue of video conference fEcllity at feast five (3} days before the date
of the Annual General Meeting along with complete Information necessary to enable them to access such Facility.

|
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3. For Appointing Prey:

& member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM i entitied to appoint another member 45 @ proxy to aitend, speak and vote on
hig / her bahalf. & corporation, being & member, may appoint ity proxy or any of its oficial or any ather person whether a memiber
of the Bank or mol. In ¢2se of & corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ résolution [ power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nomines shall be produced (unless it has beep provided eadier) at the time of the meeting,

In order to be efective, & culy Mled and signed Proxy Form must berecehved &t the Registered Office of the Bank le 131, F-T
Markaz, tlamabad, rot less than forty eight (8} haurs befare the time for holding the meeting.

4. Members who have deposiied their shares into COC will further have 1o Roflow the undermentioned guidelines s lid down in circidar
1 of 2000 dated fanuany 26,2000, |ssued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

For Attending the Mestng:

i In case of individuals, the Account Holder and [ or Sﬁh-wl:-:qum Helder whose registration details are uploaded as per the COC
regldations, shall authenticate his [ her ldentity by showing hls [ her orginad, valid CNIC or original passport at the Hme of sitending
the meating.

il, Incase of & cotporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resodution | power of attomey with specimen signature of the romines shall
e prodisced (unless it has been provided earfied) &t the time of the mesting.

5. Chamge of Address:
Members are requested 1o immediztely notify the change, i any, in thelr reglstered address to the Share Registrar M's. Central
Depository Company of Pakistzn Limited (CBC); Skare Registrar Department (OC House, 98-8, Block B°, 5.M.CHS. Maln
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

6. Accounts of the Comoany for the year ended December 31, 2018, have been placed on the website of the Bank, hetpswww silikbank com k.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Oplndon

We have audited the annexed financlal statements of Silkbank Limited the Bank], which comprise the statement of Rnangial
pasition as at December 31, 2018, and the profit and loss account and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, along with unaudited ceriified refurns received
from the branches which have been audited by us and notes to the financial statements, induding a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessany for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinlen ard fo the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of Rrancial
position, profit and lpss account and the statement of comprehensive Income, statement of changes in equlty and cash
flow staterment fogether with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies
Act, 2017 OUX of 2017, in the manner 50 required and respectivety give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank's
affairs as at December 31, 2018 and of the profit and the comprehensive income, the changes in equity 2nd its cash fows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinfon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (58s) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiiites for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report, We are indepandent of the Bank In accordance with the Internationzl Ethics. Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Acosuntants as-adopted by the Institute of Charfered Accountants
of Pakistan [the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitizs in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien.

Emphesisof Matters

We draw antention to the followlng matters

i Mote 1 to the financlal statements, highlights that the Bank kas net bieen able to meet the Capltal Adequacy Regulrement
(CAR} of 11.9%, which Includes Capftal Conversion Buffer (CCB) of 1.9% as &t December 31, 2018, as prescribed by the
State Bank of Pakistah (SBP). The sald note also describes plans of mansgement to deal with shortfil In-CAR
fequirements, The Bank has applied to SBP to sesk exemption fram meetlng the CAR reguirement Lill September 30,
2018, Furthermore, the Bank may not be able to make 2 profit and principal payments of Term Finance Cartificates
(TFCs) if there i5-a shortfall in CAR as compared to minimum prescribed CAR.

i} As disclosed in mote 15.1.2 fo the financial statements, the aggregate carrylng value of non banking assels acqulred
in satisfaction of claims (NBAS) amounted to Rs, 8234 million as at December 31, 2018, This ipcledes underdeveloped
{ undeveloped properties having aggregate carmying value of s, 8,807 million (including the property of Rs. 3416 million
sold on deferred payment basis as disciosed in note 15). Further, the Bank exposure in such assets still substantially
exceed the level prescribed by State Bank of Pakistan under regpulations for Debt Property Swap. We are highlighting
this matter owing to significant uncertainty with regard to the disposal and recovery of such assets in near future.

if) .As disciosed In note 11 to the financial statements, the Bank has advanced Istamic financing amounting to Rs. 1843765
(2017: Rs. 14,218} to certain bomowers who are éngaged in primarily general trading business, which are mainly securad
against mortgage of underdeveloped [ undeveloped properties. The valuations of underdeveloped [ undeveloped
properties involve increased subjectivities and can vary from property to property depending upon developments taking
in and around the surrunding areas. The Bank already has significant exposure in non banking assels acquired in
satisfaction of daims, as disclosed in pote 15 to the fnancial statements which also includes similar fype of properties,
therefore there is a sk of Increase In exposure, 17 the borrowers default and the Bank settles the lean In exchange
of properties.

60| Annual Report 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Iv) As disclosed In note 15.5 to the Ananchal statements relating to sabe of land and resulting capital gain. The ultimate
sutcome of the matter stated therein cannot presently be determined and no provision of any loss that may result
has teen made in the finandial statements for the reasons discussed In the aforesaid note,

Qur epinion |5 net gualified in respect of above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audlt matters are those matters thet, In our professional judgment, were of most slgnificance In our audit of the
finamcial statements of the cument period. These matters woeno addressed in the context of our audit of the Anancial
statements as a whate, and In forming our opindon thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Following are the Key Audit Matters:

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

impalrment / assessment of ndvances

fs a3t December 31, 2018, loans and advances 10 cusiamer
amounting bo Rs. 10356 billion and the cormesponding
allowances for impairment [ losses Rs, 521247 million.

The assescrment of imparment: of loans and advances to
customer involhves significant judgment. The management
adopts an impaicment assessment in accordance with the
requirement of Prudentlal Regulations issued by State
Bank of Pakistan,

In view of the significance of the amount of loans and
advances of Bs. 1035 billion representing 5853 % of total
asset and provision of Bs. 521217 million, impairment: of
inans and advances is considered a key audit matber.
Relevant cisclosures are provided in note 11,

We evaluated the deslgn and operating effectiveness of |
key controls related to the credit approval process, post

approval credlt management, loan grading system, codlatersl |
monitoring and foan impairment assessment, including |
testing of relevant data quality and Information: systems. |

We adopted risk based sampling approach in our loan
review procedures.,

We assessed the customer epayment capacky and svaluated
the Bank's loan dassification, tsking Into considerstion
post lending: annual review report, customer financial |
Wm, collateral valuation report and other information |
available,

We assessed the impairmert medel and considered
manggerment assimptions of loss [dentification period and |
impact of macro-economic changes,

Furttver, we evaluated and tested the design and cperating |
effectiveness of internal controls related to disclosure of |
advances, credit risk-and Impalrment allowance.

Gratulty obligation valustion

As described in note 5.1.5 and note 21 to the financial
statements, the Bank operates an approved defined benefit
pian. The Bank recorded a nef retirement obligation
amounting to Rs. 42.481 million (2017: Rs, 27.232 million}.
The gratuity valuation 5 dependent on market conditions
and assumptions made, The risk specifically relates to the
following key assumptions; discount rate, Inflation
expectations and other assumptions. The setiing of these
assumptions is compiex and requires the exercise of
signlficant actuarial assumptions.

We obtained detailed understanding and evalusied the |
design and Implementation of controls that the Bank has
establisied in relation 1o the book keeping process.

We reviewed the data provided to actuary and results |
derived to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence |
over the assumptions and valuation,

We evalaated qualification of actuary,

In testing the gratulty valuation, we reviewed the key |
achuaral assumptions used, both financtal and demographic, |
and considered the methodology utilized to derive these |
assumptions.

s il
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Change In accounting pollcy as a result of changes In the
Companies Act, 2017, and changes in the format for the
finandal skatements issued by the State Bank of Pakistan
(58P}

As referred In note 8.1 to the finandal statements, the
Companies Act;, 2017 {the Ad) became applicable which
changed the accounting treatment and presentation of
surplus on revaluation of fiked asseis. Previausly, the
deficit arising on revaluation of fxed assets was adjusted
against the total balance In the surphis account, ar if there
was no surplus, it was charged to profit and loss account.
Surplus was also presented In the financial statements
below equity. As perthe revised changes, deficit arising
on any particular item of fixed asset: first it Is adjusted
against surplus of that particular asset, if any available,
and then the remaining amount is charged to profit and
loss account Instead against adjusting of surplus of any
other items of fixed assets.

Due to the above, the Bank changed its accounting policy
bo acoount for surplus an revaluation of land and building
and there i5 no impact on the releting to clement and prior
years,

As referred in note 6.1 to the finencial statements, SBP
vide BFRD Circular Mo, 02 of 208 dated [enuary 25; 218
has amended the format of annual financial statements
of banks that requires the Bank fo change the classification
of terlain items of balance sheet and profit and foss
account

Wi have considered the sbove as key audit matter due
to chenge in policy of the Bank.

Information Technology

The Bank’s key finamclsl accounting and reporting processes
ane highly dependent on the sutomated controls ower the
Bark Information systems, such that there exists @ risk
that gaps in the IT control envirormment could result in the
financial accounting and reporting records being meaterfally
misstated.

We have focused on user Bocess management, segregation
of dities and controls over system chenge over key finandal
accounting and reporting sysiems.

—
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Key Audit Malktars How oiir audit addressed the key audit matters

We acsessed the procedures performed by managerment
for identification of the changes required in the financial
statements due to application of the Act and the revised
format of the financial statements,

In respect of the change In accounting policy for the
accodnting and presemtation of surplus on revaluation in
reapect of investments and land and bullding as referred
in note & to the financial statements; we assessed the
aceaunting implication and ensured disclosures in the
financial statements were in accordance with the applicable
aptoanting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan,

We tested a sample of koy controls operating over the
Information Technology it relation 1o Mnanclal accounting
amd reporting systems; including system access and system
change management, program development and computer
operations,

We obtained management's evaluation of the accass rghts
granted to applications relevant bo financial accounting
and reparting systems and tested resolution af 3 sample
of exceptions. We also assessed the operating effectiveness
of controls over granting, removal and appropriateness of
access fAghts.
= A

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Presentation of legal risks in the financial statements

The Bank has 123 branches in different locations In Pakistan
and in the normal course of business, potential exposures
may arise from general legal proceedings, guarantees;
recowery siits, product Tability, government and regulatony
investigation etc.

The level of judgment reguired to establish the level of
provisloning, Increases the risk that provisiors and
contingent Eabilties may not appropeiately provided against
or adequately disclosed.

Accordingly, the matter s considered to be a key audit
mattar.

Management's distlosures with regard to contingent
lizbilities are presented in nate 24 of the fnancisd statements.

On -all significant legal cases, we assessed the
correspomndence with Bank’s axternal counsal accompanted
by discussion #nd formal confirmation from that counsel.
In addition, we read the summmary of litigation matter
provided by Bank's legal counsel team and discussed eadh
of the material cases noted Lo determine the Bank's
assessment of the likelihood and magnitude of any Bability
that may arise.

Inarder to determine the facty and cireumstances of the
individual cases, we parformed inspection of relevant
documents and we mquired with the Bank's internal and
exteimal legal counsel. We assessed the matedal assumplions
made and key judgments applied Including the svaluation
of disconfirming evidence. Specifically, for matters where
poténtial obligations existed but the exposure was
considered less than probable, we considered audi# evidence
regarding the lack of recognition and the disclosune theraof,

We evalualed the recognition and valuation of material
provistons and contingent labilitles of the Bank based on
Facts #nd circumstances available regarding compliance
with the dccounting standards. i

We read where applicable, extermdl legal or regulatory
advice sought by the Bank and reviewed related
cormespondence and minutes of Beard of Directars and

|| Audit Cornmittes.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The management [5 responsible for the other Information. The other Information comprises the information Incloded In
the annual report but does not indude the fingncial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our oplnion on the financlal statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion therson,

In conmection with our aadit of the financial statements, our responsibliity is o read the other Infarmation and, in doing
50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financiat statements or our knowlsdge
pbtained In the audit; or otherwise appears to be materally misstated.

If; based on The work we have performead, we conchide that there is & material misstatement in the other [nformation;
we ane required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the nancial statements In accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1982
and the Companies &, 2017 and For such internal control a5 management determines is necessary to enable the prepaation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

In preparing the financial statements, management is respansible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going
corwcern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unbess
mranagerment either Intends to lguidate the Bank or o cease operatlons, or has no reafistic albermative but lo do so.

The Beard of directors s responsible for overseaing the Bank's financlal reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whethier the financial statements as 2 whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, &nd to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable
assyurance 5 a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1S4s 25 applicable
in Pekistan will always detect a makerial misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and
are gonsidered material If, individually or in the aggregete, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and mafntain
prafessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the rfisks of material misstatement of the fingncial statements, whether due to fraud or emor, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to'those risks, and obtain sudit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
ta provide @ basis for gur opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatament resalting from fraud is higher
than for one resuliing from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of intemal contral;

®  (Obtain an understanding of Inbernal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the: purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's intemnzl
controd;

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimabes and relsted
disclosures made by management;

" Conciude on the apprapriateness of management's use of the going concemn basis of eccounting gnd, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exlsts related te events or conditlons that may cast significant
doubt on the Bank's ability' 10 continue a5 a going <oncermn, If we conclude that o material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related disclesures in the Rnandal statements or, if such
disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opirion, Our conclusions are based on the audht evidence ohitained up te
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a
going concem; and

" Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contept of the findncial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned stope and timing of the audit
and slgnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in Tniernal control thal we identify during our audii

We also provide o the Board of Directors with a statement that we have compBed with relevant ethical regulirements

segarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
In the audit of the financial statements of the curment period and are therafone the key audit matters, We descritye thesa
matters in our auditor's report urikess law or regulation procludes public disclosura abodut the matter or when, In exremety
raTe circumstances, we detenmine that @ matter should not be communicaned in our report becaise the aodverse consequenies
of dodng sa would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such commumcation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Reguirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinicn:

&} proper books of account have been kepl by the Bank [ branches as required by the Compandes Act, 2017 (XX of 2017}
and the retums referred above from the branckes have been found adequate for the purpose of our audit;

b} the statement of financial position, profit-and loss account and the statement of comprehensive income, staterment
of changes in eguity and cash flow statement fogether with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Banking Companies Ordindnce, 1362 and the Companies Act, ZHT0NXE of 217 and are in agreement with the books
of account. and retums;

] Ivestinents made, expenditure Incured and guarantess externded durfng the year were In accordance with the cbjects
and powers of the Bank / branches and the Lransactions of the Bank [ branches which have come o our notice: have
been within the powers of the Bank / brarnches; and

) zakal deductible st source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 {Oviil of 1980) was deducted by the Bank and
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

We confiry that for the purpase of our aidit we have coversd more then sizty percent of the total loans and advances
of the Bank.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank far the year ended Decomber 31, 2017 were audited by another firm of auditors who
I their report dated March 06, 208 expressed an unmodified opindon.

The engagoment partnes on the awdit resulting in this independent auditor's report |s Muhammad Shaukat Kasseb.

Grant Thormton Anjum Rahman
Karachl

Date: March 08, 7018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SILKBANK LIMITED

ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED
IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Slikbank Limited (the Bank) for the year endad
Decambar 31, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank, Our responsibility is
to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Bank's compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report If it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review s limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Bank to
comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are reguired to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective apdit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls of to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Bank's corporate governance procedures and risk.

The Regulations require the Bank to place before the Audit Committes, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
place kefore the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance
with the requirements of sectlon 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only reguired and have ensured compliance of
this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee. We have not carrled out pracedures to assess and determine the Bank's process for identification
of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price ar not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Bank's compliance, in all materizl respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2018,

Grant Thormton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
Engagement Partner

Karachi
Dated: March 08, 2019
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REPORT OF THE SHARI'A BOARD
EMAAN ISLAMIC BANKING, SILKBANK LTD.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

ISLAMIC BANKING

March 1, 2018

While the Board of Directors (BOD) and Senfor Management are solely responsible to ensure that the operations of Emaan
Islamic Banking (EIB) are conducted in a manner that comply with Shari'a principles at all times, we are required to submit
8 report on the overall Shar'a compliance environment of EIB.

To form our apinion as expressed in this report, the Shari'a Compliance Department (SCD) of the Bank canfed out reviews,
on a fest check basls, of each class of transactions, with the relevant documentation and process flows, Furthermore, we
have also reviewed the report of the Internal Shari'a Review and Internal Shari'a Audit of varlous departments and branches
for 2018. Based on the abave and in light of the information submitted to the Shar'a Board (SB), we are of the view that:

i EIB has complied with Shari'a rules and principles in the light of fatawa, rulings and guidelines issued by the SB.
Different Shar'a-compliant products were developed by different departments of the Bank and approved by the SB.
Furthermore, the 5B reviewed and endorsed all relevant documenis and material that were submitted to it for its
approval.

Yes we can
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REPORT OF THE SHARI'A BOARD
EMAAN ISLAMIC BANKING, SILKBANK LTD.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

il.  EIB has complied with directives, regulations, instructions and guidelines related to Shari'a compliance Issued by
SBP in accordance with the rulings of SBP's Sharl'a Board.

iii.  EIB has an approved Charity Policy to ensure that any samings realized from sources or by means prohibited by
Sharl'a are credited to the Charity Accaunt and are properly utilized.

iv. The Schedule of Charges (SOCs) have been periodically reviewed and approved by the Shari'a Board after necessary
amendments.

v.  The menthly distribution of profits amongst the shareholders and remunerative account holders has been made in
line with the principles of Shari*a and 5BP instructions an profit and loss distribution and pool management.

vi. The Bank has implemented a program for the training of the Bank's staff in areas of Islamic Banking and Finance
in different cities. Moreaver, the Shari*a Board members have conducted orientation sessions for the senior management
of the Bank and a short crientation session for the BOD.
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I vil. EIB has a Shar'a Campliance Department to ensure campliance with the Shar'a Governance Framewaork issued by
: SBP in an effective and efficient manner.
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viii. Shari*a Board confirms to have examined, through the Intemal Shari'a Audit and Internal Shar"a Review, each class
of transaction on sampling basis. The Shari'a Board has reviewed the reports of Intemnal Shari"a Audit and Intemal
Shari'a Review pertaining to the Bank's operations during the year, issued its direclives and advised corrective
meaasures an adverse review or audit findings. The Shari'a Board has found, in the light of these review and audit
reports, that the financings and transactions of the EIB are substantively in conformity to Shari'a principles.

/«? Mo Aok

Di. Mubommaod Goseem Muftl Syed Adnun Kokokhall Muftl Syed Abu Balr
Chalrman, Sharl'o Board Sharl'a Baard Member Resident Shar'a Board Member
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

When the vision is clear, ambitions are high, and

dedication is unmatched, the resuits are impeccable,
Silkbank's decade-long journey reflects its unrelenting
effarts that have made the Bank triumph, closing the

last two fiscal years on a high note. The Bank continues
to build an [ts strength, reflecting a strong revenue
growth momenktum.
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SIX YEARS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2018
BALAMCE BHEET
Shara cagial 23,40
Resarees a1
Deposits and ofher accounts 132,884
Sub-ordinatad kana 2,008
Borrowings 18,052
Total Asseis 173,877
Ceoas Advancas 103,586
Adwancas - nat of provsione 98,354
Non performing advances 8,876
frvastmnts < net of provislons 28,9228
Equity 14,387
Provishon Haid 5212
Provision Helid ! NPL T8.0B%
Prowiisdon Held | Total Advances 5.03%
FROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Mark-ug  ratunn ¢ intemest samed 15,598
Mark-ug / retern intereat expenssd (BT}
Hat mark-up [ Inerest eamed 6,605
Provigions and Write off {1,268)
Ml mark-up § inderes ncome / {loss) after provisions 8,357
Mon-markup | imerest incoma 3448
Hon-narkup § interest expanses (8,875}
{Loss) / Profit bafore Taxation 1,877
{Loss) / Profit Afler Taxation 1,330
FINANCIAL RATIOS
income ( Expense Ratio Times 1.458
Return on Avaraga Equity (ROE) e 9.65
Ritum on Average Assals (ROA) % 0.78
HNPLe Iz Gross Advances rats % 6.45
Eamirg Assels to Tolal Assets rabio W B40.55
Eamings per ghare Rs 0.15
Gross spread rato (NIMIGross interest income) % #4235
HON FINANGIAL INFORMATION
Humber of branches 123
Number of empltyees 4412
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2017

23,431
555
140,278
2,000
36,582
166,355
80,138
85,851
5,880
36,267
13,184
4,287
73.16%
4 76%

11,8670
(6.184)
5,486
(554)
o g
2,843
(6.489)
1,387
1,135

1.585
8.00
0.7
B.EY

T4 85
0.13

4701

123
3™

Fapsaas in millicn
2016 2015
21.431 21,431
328 180
Ba,Tar 81,028
30,198 33,250
135,034 133,103
B0.312 67,045
B4, 803 69 004
5,820 G520
A7 488 35,613
12,085 14 577
4,510 5871
i T0.08%
B51% B91%
9,958 8,833
(5,610 {5,634
4,345 3,100
a5 {1.487)
4,704 1612
2,213 1,894
(5.631) {5,346
1,235 {1,840
T3 {(1.712)
1,165 0534
5 55 [14.83)
0.55 £1.48)
B4 2.mM
TE.28 TT2T
0.08 {0.58)
4387 34.70
a3 88
3,387 3163

13431
180
4,7l

21,742
102,736
84417
58,067
8,222
18,105
850
5450
#6.20%
B48%

425
{5969
3,460
{430)
318
1. P20
4713
139
Br

1.098
1.44
o.o8

278

7704
Q.03

3s.ra

15431
1683
£8,433

11,382
81,770
61470
58,038
8,872
14,853
8,675
5432
B6,03%
£ 84%

7,622
{5.483)
2,160

{521}
1,835
1,325

{d,401)
£1,528)
{1,157}

0776
(19.20)
{1.28)
16,06
T7.74
(0.43)
#8.33

2,760

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

Rs ‘008
STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
Value Added
et Intorest Incoma €605 4TE
Mon Interest income 3414 8T2
Cperating Expenses axaluding staif cosls, deprociation and amortization  (3,028,275)
Provision against sdvanoes, investmenis & others [1,268,673)
Welug added for distribution i?ﬂr‘_ﬂ_
To employnes
Remuneration, pmwident fund and other banafits. 3377 501
To government
Insame bax B48, 895
To expansion and growth
Depreclation g7, 742 |
Ammartisation T8 |
Retained Eamings 1,328,933 |
1,780,068
6,723,452

2017

% Be 000 %
115 456 (54 120
B0 2843468 B4
(53} (3,300,454} (T2
{22) (563,737 (12)
100 4575341 100
L= 2TAZ2T2 &y
10 261 280 &

388,825

| Bo.GEs

[ 1,155,288
A 4.810,789 35
100 4,575,331 400
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

il WYe 1T 2T

B

Bl sheet o
ASSETS
Cash and balanoes with insasyry banks BAT:
Ealances wih oiner banis 0
Lesrfings B finandal inethulians 12812
Imnrestments 26,885
Ay B, 354
Fhed asaels B
Irfangitie ansets 27
Drerfiered Lax aanoly 3058
Cihar atnciy 1 AaT
TOTAL ASSETE AT38TY
LERBEITIES
Bids seyalie 2,867
Borowings 18,052
Diepciis and other ecesurhs 142,884
Liabd Hisar agaival assets subject 1o francs sass 3
Hubsrdnalod dob 200
Dravisred tay Gakinas -
Cithor Sasfdes A TaE
KET ASSETS 14,387
REPRESENTED BY
Ehgra cophal 2343
Avaii aogainel shates subeliption -
Corveribls oefarencs sharon .
] &N
Deficil) ) surphes on revakestion of ssasls - oe of 5 {ll'i
Acossidaind ioan T aTEn

Td 35T
PROFIT AND LOEE ACCOUNT
se-ug | et U irenes] anad 15,588
Markup | retum i Indomest sapdnssd {Bad)
e nEi-up | inbongsl garmed B80S
Prowisiong ord Wile off .08
Hod misrk-up J inferest inooma J (loss) after movisions 5,357
Mon-mariup Finhenesl incoime AL
an-marup | inferest sxmensen A
{Loes) ¢ Froft befang Tastion 1477
Tarabon (547
(Lows) | Profit Afur Tusation 135
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS

GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS

Earning Assets Vs. Non-Earning Assets Performing Vs. Nan-Performing Loans

Rs. In Billlan
Rs. in Billion

o Totzl Assets

B Non-Eaming Assets B Mon-Peronming Loens

Total Assets 2018 Total Assets 2017

CASA (Currant & Saving Deposits)

Rs. in Dillion Rs. In Billion

Olhar smsals,
Ra. 178, 11%

Rs. in Billion

N Gross Mark-up Income
W Costof Funds

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
I ¥ Eaming Assets 5 Parforming Losns
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS

Gross Advances & Deposits

Rs. In Bilien

Deposit Mix FY 2018

Rs. in Bilion

ET‘\‘ Annual Report 2018

Deposit Mix FY 2017

Re. in Billon

GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION

OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS

Revenue Composition 2018

e, 2 (0%
R £15(2%)
Fon. 1,458 {1 5%)

s, 6,805 ()
R, 1,740 {17}

Rs. In Millian

m Mat interest income

H Foo and commission incoma
B Dividerd incoma

B Income from darvatives

B Other Income

Shareholdar Equity
16,000
14,000
12,000

R, in Million
A = m B
g2 8 B 8

e

B Parforming Loans
B Non-Performing Loang

Revenue Camposition 2017

Ra 43 11%)
R, 204 {3%)
R, 1,285 {13%)

R, 5488 (8%}
Re. 1 517 {15%)

Rs. in Millon

B MNat intarast incoms

B Fas and commission Incoms
B Cividend Income

B Income from derivatives

B Ciher income

Profit / (Loas) After Tax

:

. §T€
|

&
g o = =
- g 8
& 1500
{1,000} T
(1,500) =
_— (1,712)
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS

Rs. 20,838 (20%) —
Re. 27818 [27%)

Re. 2,663 %) ——

Rs. 1,892 (2%}

Re. 1,003 (1%)

Re. 978 (1%) —
Rs.1,218(1%)

m Agriculture, Forasiry, Hunling ang Fishing

| Taxila
®| Chemlcal and Pharmaceuticals

m Sugar

B Automobile and transportetion equipment

® Elecironics and electrical appliances

Sector Wise Advances - 2018

—— Rs. 653 (1%)
— Rs. 4,184 (4%)

—— Rs.1,399 {1%)

— R=. 5883 (5%)

— Res.720(1%)

Rs. 2,704 {3%)

Rs. 511 (0%)

Ra. 12,421 [12%)

Rs. 16,812 (16%)
Rs. 1,078 (1%)
Rs. 1,401 (1%)

Rs. In Million

B Powar (alachicity), Bas, Walsr, Sanitary ™ Hotal & Rasorts

B Whiclasals and Retall Trada B Talscommunications

| Transport, communication and ravelling = Food and baverages

B Financial | Iron, siesl & enginesring
B Semvices B Educalicn

B Individusis = Others

GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS

Sector Wise Advances - 2017

Rs. 18,811 (18%) —
Rs. 17,554 {19%)

Rs. 3,900 (4%) —
Rs. 1,875 (2%)

Rs. 334 (0%) ——

Re. 787 (1%) —
Rs.1,585(2%)

W Agriculture, Forastry, Hunling and Fishing
N Texille

H Chamical and Pharmacauticals

u Sugar

B Automobile and transporision equipment
¥ Elecironics and electrical appliances

—— Rs. 528 (1%)

—— Re. 8408 (T'%)

— Re. 1,778 (2%)

——— Rs. 6,408 (7%)

— Res. 586 (1%)

Ra. 1,521 (2%)

Rs. 832 (1%)

Rs. 14,411 (18%)
Rs. 10,058 (10%)
——— Rs%. 3,286 (4%)
Rs. 1,409 (2%)

e

r.——: s
== T

Rz. (n Milllon

u Power (elachicity), Cas, Water, Sanitary ® Heotal & Resoris
B Whaolasala and Retall Trads ¥ Telscommunlcations
B Transport, communication and travelling % Food and beverages

H Financial H ron, steal & snginsering
B Services B Education
® [ndividuals ® COthers
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

288 2047
HNote Rupaas In 0040
ABSETE
Cash and balances with tresaury banks 7 8,871,567 8413176
Balances with miher banks B 309,934 HEA20 |
Lendings o frnancii insfitutions ] 12,612,156 B B20848 |
Irmvastmeants 10 28,824,993 3B 268,735
Advences 11 88,354,002 £5,850.715 |
Fixad assets 12 I.W‘I.E'H 3834 545
Intangible assals 13 22B.840 249,001 |
Defemed fEx sstets 14 3,058 647 3,476,129 |
Other assets 15 L ATAFEIE | | 17,831,082 |
173,676,786 166,854,652
LIABILITIES
Bils payabi 16 | 2806588 | 3162961
Bomowings i Fi 18,051,854 35,592,000
Deposits and oiher accounts 18 132,664,084 110,277 80T |
Liabliites againet assets subject to finance lessa 18 2,683 6,660
Subordinated dabt 20 1,990,800 2,000,000 |
Deféerad tax labilites = .
Other liabikties 21 3,705,270 2813518
158,200,039 153,673,186
NET ASSETS 14,388,747 13,181,348
REFRESENTED BY
Sharehiolders' equity
Share capitel - net 22 23431374 23491374
Regarves 820,830 584 003
{Daficit) f surplus on revaloation of assets - nel of i 23 {68,207) B2, FRd
Actumilated loss __{9.7e7.31 {10,B57,654)
143086, 747 13,181,246
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24
The anmaxed notes 110 50 and annexure | gl form an integral padt of these firencial statsments.
T B
# (A -J
Syed Lisgust Al Azmat Tarn Hhalki Aziz Miza Rashld Akhtar Chughisl Shalzsd Ervar Maurmsd
Chind Financhs Oificer Prosicint & CEC Diracior Dirgcior Dipepcdor
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Fuiglid 2017
Maote Rupsas in ")

Niark-up / retum / profit / Interest samed 26 isseez13 | | 1eT0em
Mark-up / return:/ profit / interest expensad a _(Bee0T3s) | | (B184.217)
Nt Mark-up / raturn | profit / intsrest incoms £,805478 5,488,054
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee and commissicn income 8 1,516,928
Dividend incoma Fal a7 611
Foreign axchangs income / (foss) (90.638)
income from dertvatives 283,576
(Loss] [ gain on securtos 30 2,814
Dther Incame bl | 1,185,178
Total non-markup [ interast Incoms 2043 488
Total income B AR 52T
WON MARK-UPANTEREST EXFENSES
Operating expenses 32 (8.784,183) | | (6.434.457)
Workers Welfare Fund {38,303) (33.000)
Other charges 3 55383 | (2,780

(6,874,843) (6.480.23T)
Profit before provisions, extra ordinary | unusual em and taxation ©344E501 1,340,235
Frovisions and write offs - red 34 {1,268,673) (553,73T)
Extra ardinery [ unusual ems SR =
FPROFIT BEFORE TAKATHIN 1876828 1,206,548
Taccation 35 {546,885) (251,.260)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 1329833 1,135,288

Rupse

Basic and Dluted Eamings Por Shara B 015 B1E

The annoxed notes 1 to 50 and annaxuee | and || form an iegral parl of thees fnancial skalemants.

Pl e =R T

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
]
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
: Total non-markup | interest expenses
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
]
|
|
|

Syed Liaquat Al Azt Tasin Khalid Aziz Mirza Rastid Akfitar Chughtsl  Shahzad Enver Murad
Chinf Financial Officer Prasident & GEO Piractor Director Brecior
|
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_____________________________5_

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Hoia 2017
Rupass in "G00
Prodl altar taeabon for Myl 1,328,833 1,135,286
Cither comprehansive {loas) | incoma
ltems thal may be reclagsified o profit and loss sccount in subsequent periods:;
Movement in defick on revaluation of Imvesiments - net of Bx {109, 225) {27 BASY
Hems thal will not be redlassifisd o profit and loss scoount In subseguent periods,
Remeasurament koss on dafined bansfitobligations - nat of tax . {a0.608) (25,008)
Movement in surpus on revaluabon of operating fxed assels - nat of tax {E.HI}| (1LE17)
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assels - net of B _ Ay | 39,545 |
(32,314) 2023
Total comprehsnsive incoma 1488384 1140526

The anmexed nodes 1 1o S0 and annexure | and 1 form an integral panl of these rancial stelermanls,

Syad Lisquat Al Aamat Tarin Khalkd Axiz Miza Rashid Akhtar Chaghtal Shahzmsd Emvar Mursd
Chind Financls Ofioar Proesicient & CEG Eriracion

Drrpcdor
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
I
|
| R varicn
Sharn agairsl

| Copltal ghangs
| subsoriglicn
|
I
| Dpining balanos ae st Jamuary 01, 2017 21431574 2000000 (000} ED4B0  BITRAE  (14,757,%1%) 12064588
1
| rofit afiar taeslfon lor the peer saded Decembee 31, 2HT - - - - - 1.135 58 1,135,285
I Othee comprahonsive fleag) | noomss - nel of : : {27 8ms) 7,00 : {25,005) (24,762
| Trarsfer o siationy ressnss - 2 - = 127058 |#aT.os8) z
| issuanrs of Fighd shares at discount 2000000 (2000000 - - - - -
| S 50w oosl - - - - - {808 {3816
| Trapsfer from gaphus on revmisston of fied sasrs
i oh account of incramaral deproclelion - het ol tax. T34 . - . - - Eyal A FT
| Trarsfar froen Sprplis on revoluaton of (e asssds
| an socounl of disposal of asssds 231 - - - - 13,308 13,300
| Trarsfer from sumpive on nevaleston of non-Gandng
i EeanlE or st of dhapoeal of Gaesds - nef of 18y 232 - - - - - 1877 T
: Cloalng badsncs ay at Dacambsr 39, 3057 #3831 374 - i34 b E4. 403 BE4A 503  (IDBSTERY) 3180 36
|
, Zreft aftar busbion for tha yade anded Jecembar 37, 218 z : - - = 1AM 132000
| Ottt compratmstye oss - aatof : - Hemzm  pnos e
: Trapsfar b staluiory sserves - . . - aEESET  [265087) -
I Trarafer from susplus on revaleaon of Thed acests .
, an account of incramerial depreciation - netal e 234 - - = 5 . 3578 ‘5578
I Trapalar fram uspbus on nevdbesfon of non-tasiing _
i aEgnls on accoun] of dapossl of sgaeds - net of Ay - 233 - = - - 13,085 13,085
I Traralsr from sirpins on newaleaton of non-basiing
i EEagls on Bosnt of imrsfermed 1o
I oo pesis - il of i Fr 4 - - - - - =t L3

Cloalng baianca ns at Dacermber 35, 3078 23,431 378 - (edsi0]  TEFED B3OS0 (BTOTM90) 14306747

Thaannexed nodes 160 50 pnd ernexune | srd § form an inegral perl of thess finencel slsiamscs,

* Sinhnaty reganses mpresant amaunl o axide as per requineirsnis of seclisn 219 he Barking Companiss Dadinancs, 1962

7o
,_jé—;myw— = G / ’ AP

;,_‘_-,_.’-‘7 It '! pis | ‘.‘_._._,_F-

Syed Liaquat a8 Agzmat Tarin Khelid Aziz Mima Reshid Akhiar Chughtsl Shahzad Emver Murad
: Chigf Fimancial Cfficer Prasldest & CECG Bibrgctar Chirector Drreciaor
|
| i
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

GASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profil befos laxalion
Less: Dividend income

Adiiestments:

Deprecation on fwed asseis
Depreciation on non-banking assats

Amartization of Intangibhe assats

Amortzstion of premium oninvestments - net

Privisions aganst loans & advances

Gain on sale of fesd assels

impairment in the value of invesiments

Unrealizied loss [ gan) on analuaion of investments - held-oe-trading
Sharg of profif from associate

Gain on sala of non-banking assels acquirgd In satisfaction of dadms
Provishon agalnst cther asaets - et

Reversal against off baance sheal bems

Writa offs sgminst fived amsels

{incraase) [ decresaa in oparating asssls

Landings to financial instilutions

Net imvestments in held-for-trading secunties
Auvancas:

Oihar asseds {eocluding advence taxaticn)

{Decrease) / incréase In operating Habliites

Bits payable
Borrowings

Diepnsis
Ceher lsifies (moeluding current oation)

Income {ax paid
Het cash flow used in operating activities

" e O

1228 32

13.18 32

1

1065 &30
|
31

2018 2017
Rupses in '000
1,876,528 1,386,545
S5 {47511}
187485 1338857
|77 388,825 |
80,351 93,031
71,381 8, BB
181,058 223,147
1,455,209 37007
(8.714) (11.318)
s 22723
2483 {3,478)
{8.542) {3,651} |
(872,008 (B38,1593)
- 239 12
- {B,724) |
2812 4TS |
4300412 798,048
3,178,050 2,137 RS
([3991,507) | | (7.914,077) |
(7,426,216) (2,617.918) |
(13,858.490) | | (21425084}
(421,742) | | (2.280,553)
(25,797,93%)  (35,243,653)
(326,413) | | {EGH 063} |
(17,530.,148) 5,386,200
22 386,977 93 490 384
1,070,253 632,871
5500971 2870640
(T022810)  12,398,278)
__{a7ea50) {187 538}
(17,302,080)  (4,586,814)

At e et

Azmat Tarin
Progsicinnt & CELO

Syad Lisquat Al

Chie! Flnancls Officer Crirecior
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Khalkd Axiz Miza

Rashid Akhtar Chaghtal Shahzmsd Emvar Mursd

Drirgichee Drrpcior

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

g £ 2017
Maote Rupsas in "0
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTINITIES
Nat Investmant In avaRable-Sor-sale securities 16418182 | 1,569,868 |
Bubacription of right shares - investmeant in essociates = (11,537) |
Diviciend income fcsiaed BaTE 61,006 |
et Inveslmant in fixed assets and Intangible-assals (996, 668) BT2601) |
Procoeds on disposal of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 1,912,637 Z7ia82 |
Proceads on disposal of fixed assels HHaZTT | 58,114
Net cash flow from investing activities 17,856,642 3,787,132
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTVITIES
Procseds from issuance of subordinated debls - | [ 2000000 |
Radeamplion of suborifinaied debis (400} -
Shere issue cost _ - {(3.616) |
Finanee lease obigation pald _ @ain | @ed))
Met cash flow used in fnancing activities 4817} 1,53‘925?{}
Increazs in cash and cash squivalems 549,865 1,172,886
Cash and cash squivalonts at the boginning of tho yoar 8,631,506 TASBT0
Cash and cash agquivalemts atthe and of the year ar 8,181,561 8831 566
The armeccad notes 1 to 50 and anneaes | and || form en Integral part of these financial siatermants.
—'é““ﬁ'ﬁfﬁ*‘- ,:- ll(. i 5 m\‘
Syed Liaguat A8 Azmnat Tasin Hhalid Aziz Mirza mmm Shahzad Enver Murad
Chig! Financlal Offipgr Prosldest & CEC Dirgctar Drirechr
|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

23

3.1

ar |

STATUS AND MATURE OF BUSINESS

Sikbank Limited (“tha Bank™) was incorporated in Pakistan on April 04, 1994 a8 8 publlc limited company undar the

TR A, 7. Thie Bank commenced commercial opefations on May 7, 1985, Tha Ban's shanes ans (=

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, The Bank s engaged in banking services as described in the Banking Companies

Ordinance, 1962, The Bank operates through 123 branches (2017: 123 branches) including 30 (2017: 30) lskamic banking

branches in Pakistan, The Bank's rag:m offics is located at Sikbank Building, 13-L, F-7 Markaz, lsiamabad. The short-

ti_rmandgv%umuamm Baml-cmmdhi_.l.mﬂ-wscr&dﬂF!ﬂ-hngﬂmpﬂnyﬂnﬂt&dnmim-ﬂm‘.ﬂﬁ!w
' respe

Major shareholoers of the Bank as on Becambsr 31, 2078 are Sisthos Capital {comprising of Mr. Shaukst Tarin, Mr. Sadag
Saywoed and Mr, Aemat Tarn), Arf Habib Corporalion Limited, Intemational Finance Corporaiion (IFC), Normura European
Investment Limitad, Bank Muscat 58006 and Mr. Zulgamain Nawaz Chatia | Mr. Zubair Mawaz Chafis of Goummg Groop.

Az al Desamber 31, 2018, the smuty of the Bank is Re. 14.45 billion sxcluding defoit
share capital {net of lossss and dlscount on shares) of Rs. 13,63 billlon againat the mintmum
as prescribed by SBP. Further, the Capital Adequacy Ratic (CAR) of the Bank @, 10.92%

of State Sank of Pakistan (S8P) of 11,90%. The CAR reqguirement of 11,90% i
0% plus 1.90% of Caplial Consenmaton Buffer (CGE)

on revaluation of assals, This inchsdes
requirsment of Ra. 10 billien
inst the minkmum GAR

e up of minimum AR of

Tha Bank has requested exemption from EBPEmmmmir g CAR raqursmant tll September 30, 2019, Through this
rapgues], tha Bank has akso communicated 1o SBP il plan e compliance with CAR requiremant by Seplambar 30, 2018,
which Includes reducion In assats, improvemeant in profit, reduclion In non-saming sssets and issuance of Tier || caplial

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In aceoidanie with the direcives of the Fetksl Govem mant mgarding the shifling of the banking system to Blamic modes,
the SBP has isewad varioue cireulars from time 1o fima. Permiseible forms of trade-refaled modes of 1 include
purchase of goods by the banks from thelr customerns and immeadiate ressle fo them at b mark-up in prics on
cdefermed payment basks, The purchases and sales arsing under thess arrangaments are nob reflected |6 Bwese fnanek
statemeants &5 swech but are resiicted fo the amount of feclity acheally utlisad and the appropeiate porfion of mark-up thenaon.

The [slamic banking branches of the Bank heve compled with the requirements sef out under the lslamic Finsnclal Accounting
Standands {IFAS) issued h}rﬁ'lalnstﬂtrtaﬁfcmtamdﬁummhnts of Peiistan (JCAP) and notified undaer the provisions of
Ihe Companiog Acl, T excapd for he adoplion of IFAS3 'Profl & Loss Sharing on Deposits' as disclosed in nobe 3.4,

Tha financial resuls of the islamic banking branches have been inchadad in thess finandial stataments for reporing purposes,
after aliminating raderal inkar-branch lramu:'llnn.t f balances, Key financal figures of the lalamic Banking branches arg
dEgcloaed in Annacure 1 to thesa financial statementa.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have bean prapared in acoordance with the accounting and mpmlnu standands ag applicabls
in Pakistan, The sccounting and reporing siandards 8= applicable in Pakistan compriss of

- The acoounting standands of such Intarnaticnal Financial Reponting Standards (IFRS) sued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as nofified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- lslamic ﬂmmummﬂﬁ’-ﬂ}w by the instihete of Cherterad Accounts of Pakistan (ICAP), as ame
modified under the Companies &ct, 200

- Provisions of and directives Issued undar the Banking Companies Ordinanca, 1982 and the Companies Act, 201T;
- Clirgctves |gswad by the 8BF and the Securities and Exchange Commiasion of Pakistan (*SECP*) from fime bo time.
Whenever the requirerments-of the Banking Companias Crdinance, 1962, the Companies Ao, 2017 or the dirsctives lasueed
by the 5BP and the SECP diffar with the mequiremsnts uFI’FEEurEFAE thie ‘requirements of the Banling Companies
Ondirsenos, 1862, B Companies Al 2017 and the said dircives shall pravail,

Thie SBP has defarrad the applicabilify of Intemational Accounting Standard (I1AS) 39, Financial Instrurments; Recognition

and Maazurement and A5 40, Iny Proparty’ furﬂanlug Companias through B30 Circulas No, 70 caled August
26, 2002, Further, tha SECP has deferred the applicability of IFRS 7 'Financial Instrumarnts: Distlosures' on banks through

Annual Repart 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

A3

34

.

a2

4.3

E.H.ﬂ.dﬂff}ﬂﬂ!ﬁdﬂlﬁdﬁpﬂ!&iﬂﬂﬂ.ﬁmﬂnﬂ;yﬂm of thase standards have not been considared in
the prepar of thase financlal siatemants. However, Invastments have been classified and vaiued In sccordanca with
tive rTequiremants prescribed by tha SBP lhrmrghmﬂnuﬂdfmhu

IFRS 8, ‘Dperating Segmants’ s eflectve for the Bank's accountng pertods beginning on or aiter Januany 1, 2009 All banking
COMpRnses i Pﬂdﬂmamwmmmmmwwmmmmnlh&MMWum BEh
drcilar lefter Mo, 02 of 2018 dated Januany 25; 2018, "Revised Forms of Annual Financlsl Siatements’ (as updated fram
mmmlaﬂmhamumammwﬁn_ndldﬂﬂuuﬂb&rh,zmﬁ.mnr&mganmnfmﬁmhmmmmga

the SBP has dafined tha 1 orisalion in the above menfioned croular, he SBP requirements preccail over
requirements agacifiad in | 8. Acordingly, segment information disclosed in these finencia! stetements s based on the
requirements laid down by the S8R

The State Bank of Pakistan through BPRD Circuler No. 04 of 2015 dated February 25. 2015 hes deferred applicability of
IFAS-3 for Profit & Loss Sharng on Deposits issued by the ICAP and notified by the SECFP, vida thelr 3RO Mo, 571 of 2313
dated Jure 12, 3013 for |mesiutions cfienng lalamic Financlal Services (1IFS), The stancard wil el Incarain new ciacioalnas
in the financial statsmients of fhe Bank,

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

Standarde, amendments and Interpretations (o the published etandards that are relevant to the Bank and adaplied
in the current yaar

Thamnuummmmmm stardards, amendments o pubiished standands and interpretations: of IFRSs which

bacame effective during the cumant year,
Standard or iInterpretation Effective Dats
(Annual periods beginning
o or after)
- FRE2 - Classificafion and Measurement of Shane-basad Payment
Transachon (Amandmants bo IFRS 2) Jdanuany 01, 2048
- IFRS 1 and 1AS 29 - Annual improvernents to IFRSs 2014-2018 Sanuany 01, 2018
- IFRIC 22 - Foreign Curmency Transactions and Advance Considaration January 01, 20148

Adoption of the abovwe revislons, amendments and Femprebons of e siandands bave no signifcant efect on the amounts
for the year ended December 24, 2018,

Standards, amendmanits to published standands and interpretations that are effective but not relevant

The othar new standards, am mmmgwndmm:rﬂmmmm fhat am mandatory for the financial year
baglnning on January 01, 2018 ame riot 1o ba relevant or to have any significant effect on the Bank's financial
mpumuunumﬂmundmthﬂmnmmm.

Standards, amendments and interprotations to the published standards that are relevant bul not yel effective and
not sarly adopted by the Bank

Tras following new standands, amendments lo published standards and interpretations would be efective from the dales
menticned below against the respaciive standad or intarpratation:

Stendard or Interpretation Effectiva Date
{Annual periods Beginning
an ar after]
- [FR&10 and IAS 28 - Sele or Contribution of Aseets batween an lrveslor
and its Associale o Joint Venbuns (Amendments o IFRS 10 and 145 28} Posbponed
= [FRS 15 - Rewsnue from Condracts with Cusiomers Juhg 01, 20118
- |FRS 16 -Lessas Jdanuary 01, 2019
- FRC 23 - Uncertainty ovar Income Tax Treatments Jaruery 01, 2018
[
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

A4

5.1

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
{Annual pariods baginning
an oF after)

= 1AZ 28 - Long-lerm Interests in Associates and Joint Venlures

(Aurendments io 145 28) January 01,2099
= Annual improvemsenis o IFRSs 2045 - 2017 Cycle dameany 01, 2018
= IFRS % - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensstion

(Amanamants o IFRS 9) Jgnuarny 01, 2018
= 145 19 - Pian Amendment, Curdall or Seblement (Amendments o A5 18} Jameany 01, 2018
= IFRS 5 - Financis! nstrements. Classification dnd Messunamient Judy 04, 2018
- 1AS 1/ A5 8 - Definition of Metarial (Amendmenis to A5 1 and LRE B) Jenuany 01, 2000
- Amiendmanks o Raferences b e Corcaplusl Framework in IFRS

Standards Januany 04, 2020
- IFRS 3 - IFRS Definitlon of 2 business (Amendmants o IFRS 3) January 01, 200
= IFRS 11 - Joint Venturs - {Amandmenits to [FRS 11) January 01, 2019

ﬁhﬁlﬂhhiﬂﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂmwmmﬁmm slarchads, amendmants and nlarpreigions o ihe published
grandands on the financial stalemante of tha Bank,

Btandards, armendmants and |nterpretatlions 1o the published siandards that @ not yet notifled by BECP

Tha following new standards have bean ssued by e IASE which are yel to be natfied by SEGP for the purpese of
applicablity in Pakistan,

Standard or interpretation Effective Dale
{Annual pericds baginning
an of after)
= |FRS 14 - Regulatorny Delerval Aecoupts Janveary 01, 218
- {FRS 17 - insuranca Conbacls Jamrsny 01, 29

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financal statements heve bean prepered under the historcal cost convention, except thal certaln fixed assels and
mon-banking aseets acouired under satisiaciion of ciaims are sated &t evalued amounts less scocumulated depreciation
end aocumulated Impalmmient losses (where applicable) and cedain [nvesiments and derivative Ananclal Instruments have
boen measured at fair vakes and net obligations in respect of defined benefit schems are carfied al their present vaiue.

These financlal sistermers have been prepared in Pakistanl Rupes which s the funstional and presentation cumrancy of
the Bank The armeooents are rounded off to the nearest thodsand rupee, uniags otfwowiss siatad

Use of eritical aecounting estimates and judgmants

Thi preperation of thasa inancial stateements in conlormily wilh accounting and réporting standands reaquires reenaganmant
tix migke judgrmenis. estimates and assumplions ihat affect the reported amounts of assats, lisblies, Income and egpenses.
It also raquires managemant to exercise judgmant in the eppication of ks soccounting polides. The estimates and undedying
aasimptions am basad on historcal axperienca and various ofther factors that ars balisved o ba reascnabds under (he
sircumslences. Thess estimales and undadving assurmplons ord reviewsd on a6 ing bisis, Revisons o assountsg
esbimates are recognisad in Fe pemod n which the estimite B revised 1 e revision only thad pariod, or in th pencd
of revision and future perlods | the revision affects both currentand future periods;

Tha sreas where vanous assumplions and estimales are significant to the Bank's financiz! slaiemeants orwhere [udgment
was exercised in appication of actounting polichss & as BEillows!
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Provislon agalnst non-perdforming loans and edvances and dobt securitles (nots 10.3.2 and mobe 11.3}

The Bank reviews Rs loan perticlio ond debt sscuriies (classified as investrments) 1o assess the amount of non-performing
loans and advances and debt securities and delerming provision requirad thene-agsingt on regular basis, Whils

this requiremant, varous factors Incksdng the past dues, delinguency in tha sccount, financial position of the bormower, tha
forcad eale value of collatanal heid and requiraments of the Fradential Regulations issued by the SBP ane consigerad, excapl
for leans and advances whess relacation has been allowed by S8P. For portfolio impairment provision on consumer sdvances
and small enterprise finance, the Bank follows the ganeral provision requiremants sed sut in Prodential Regulstion,

Fair value of darivatives (note 25}

The fair vaiue of dervalivaes which are nof guoted in ective marksts ame detammined by using valvation techniguess. The
valuation fechniques take into account the relevant inderest retes in effect at the regoring date and the rates contracted.

Classification of Investments {mote 10.1)
In classiying Investments, the Bank follows the guidance provided In 387 chroulars:

= Investments classiied as hald-for-irading’ ara seturifies which am acquired with an inkanticn io irede by laking advantags
of short term marked | interest rate movements and ams 0 be sokd within 20 days of acqulaition.

- Invesimisnts classfied as held-to-maturity’ soe ron-dervative financial assels with fxed or determinable payments and
fovad maturity. in making this judgment, the Bank evaluates is intanfion and ability 0 hoid such Invesiments to maturity.

- The investments which are not assified a3 held-fer-trading’ or "held-lo-maturity” ere dagsified as "availabie-for-sale’,
Impalrment of ‘avaliable-for-sale” equity Invesiments.

Thie Bank determines that "avaiable-for-sale” aquity ivesiments are impared when here has been & significant o prolonged
dading in the fair valua below their cosl. Tha determination of what is significant or profonged reguines judgment. In making
thiz judgment, the Bank evaluates, among ciher faciors, the normad wolatility in share prica. In addfian, the impaimmant may
be appropriate whan there ks an avidence of detericeston In the finascial healtlt of the investes, Induslry and sactor
performance, changas in lechnoiogy and operational | inancial cash flows:

Defined banefit pian {note 38)

The Babdity of the defined banefit plan (gratudy) i delermined using actuarial advice using the Projected Linit Credit Method,
The acteanial valuation imcies cerisin aciuenal assumplions a6 disclosed in nobe 389, Acluarial assuempbons ars
Bank's best sstimates of the variables that will determine the ulimate cost of providing post-employment benefits. Changes
i thase assumptions In future yesrs may afed the kabdity | asset undar the péan |n those years,

Income texes (note 35)

In maring the estimetes for income txes corently payable by the Bank, the management looks at the current income tax
lews and tha decisions of Appallata Authorfles on cerlaln ssues in the past, For recovery of defermed tax assel ecognised
on unused tex leases, managament and determines fubum texable profits that are probable and will be avallshia
agalmal which theae unasod g ioesas con ba ulllized.

Deprecistion, amortization and revaluation of fixed assets (note 12 and note 13)

In making estimates of the depraciation / amorteaticn method, menaganment uses tha methad which refiects the pattemn in
which sconbmic bansfits ane expected to be consumed by the Bank. The mathod appled is reviewsd at aach financii year-
end and i them i3 8 change & the expacted patlen of consumplicn of the fulure economic benafils embodsd in the assals,
the msthod Iz chamged to reflect the change In patbamn. Such chanhge ls accounted for'as change in acoounting estimats n
pooordance with 1AS - 8, "Acsounting Poficies, Changas in Accounting Estimates and Errors” as mor fully axplaingd in nobe
124 and 13.2, during the yoar managemant has revisod the deprodation end amoriisation ratas of cartain Rems of proparty
and egupment and compuiter software respectvely. Further, the Bank estimates the revalued amount of land end buildings
on a regular basls. Tha agtimates are bazed on valuation: carrad oud by indapendaent professional valuars Ested on thea
panel of Pakisian Banks' Associstion [PBA), under B market conditions,
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Fakr value Mararchy of assets and liabilitles (note 42}

Thefair valug of tha sssets and Rabiities s the price that would be recetved to sail an agsetor pald o trensfer a llability In
e ot by transacion bebwssn marke! perticipants at the measurement date, Thes Bank categorizes @i value measinenents
Wity e Brsderwilingg Tale vialue Merarchy;

Lewal 1:

Thesa are nputs at quoted prices {unadisted) In active markets for idantioal asseds or Rabilties thet the Bank can access
st the meagurement date,

Leval 2:

These are inputs other than quoted prices Inciuded within Level 1 Inpuls that afe obsarvable for the assat or Habidty, sithes
dirsctly o indirecty.

Level 3:
Thase am unobsersable Inputs Tor the assel o liability,
Depreciation, amortlation and revaluation of non-benking zseete sequined under satiefaction of claima (note $5.1)

Inm;mmdmmmMWhmm azeats acquired under satisfaction of claime, managament
method whach is consstent with depreciation method of fxed assets. Furher, the Bank estimates the revalued

E?'D:l.ll"d l.'-l'lI el dnal hl.llldlﬁﬂ‘ii On-& feguiar bass, Tha estimates are based on vahations caried oul by Indepéndent
profagsional valuars listed on the panel of PB4, under tha misrket condifons.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal sccounting polickes apphed in the preparation of these firancizd stalements ane consisient with those of the
praviows frencial vear, eomept for changes in note 5.1:

Change in accounting policias

Th Cormpanies Ordingncn, 1984 was repaalad through the enactmant of the Companies Act, 2017, Howewar, a5 dinaciad
by e Secunties snd Comrmiesion of Pakistan vide Clrcular blo. 23 daied October (4, 2017, the finandal

repiremants of the Companies Act, 7017 were only mada applicabls for reporting periods starting from January 01, 2018,

Consequent o the enactment of the Compenies Act, 2017 the Bank hag changed s policy for sccounting for deficlt arsing
on revaludion of fed assats, The Bank's previoos acoounting , in accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinancs,
1884, required thel 8 defficlt anising on revaluadion of & particular property weas fo be adiuated against the tolal batance In
the surphus sccount or, oo suplus exsted, was to be charged 1o the profif and ioss account as an impairment of the asset
The Companes Act, 2017 ramaoved the specific provisions is now o be accounied Tor in accordence with IFRS, which
requanes thal such deficit can nof be sdiested against swpdes in another progerty, but is tsken to the profit snd loss account
B o imepanmant,

Thiere i mo impect relating to curent snd pricr years,

Tha GBP vide BFRD Circular No. 02 of 2048 dated Januany 28, 2048 haz amended the format of annuel financial statemeants
of banks: Adl banks are dirgched fo prepare thelt annoal firancial statements on the mevissd formad effediva from tha
accounting vear snding Deceanber 31, 2018 Accordingly, the Bank has pregared fhess financlal statements on the new
Formal preseribed by the Siate Bank of Pakistan,

- {Darficit) on revaluation of assets {note-23) emounting to Re. 68,21 milion as deficit ag at December 31, 2018

(207 Re, 52,72 million as siipiis) which ware provioushy shown belowr aquily 8% required by e mpeaied Companios
Chrdinancs, 1584 has now bean Incuded a8 pant of eguily;

r intangibies {rabe 13) amounting 0 Rs 220.54 milkon (2017 Re 241,90 miikon) which wee pravicusly shown &S pert of
ftoed BEsats (noda 1) are now shown separataly on the statament of financlal posiion;

- Incoima- fnoem darhvalives &
of foralgn exchange Incoma /
@coolnd,

o Fe 214.52 million (20717 Rz 283,58 million) which was praviously shown &3 part
has now besn ahown Bs pari of Income from darvalives in ’rmprnﬁlmdhn
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3.3

B34

4

&5

- impairment in the valus of investments. provisions against loans & sdvances, provision
revarsal against off Dalance shee! doms, wiite offs Timed sasuds, recovery of writlen off [ ch
arnm-:ﬂ Ra. 128867 milllen) 1;24:11' Rs. 78 milflon} respectively which were previous
in thie o mthwamhmﬂmmmmm:rgmﬂmHMhnuﬁH

Cash and cash aquivaients

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash and balances with reasury banks, balonces with ather banks b current and
dlepngi acoimis

Lendings to / barrowings from financial instiutions

nen-banking azsets,
o ol bant dabls
s saparabehy

The Bank enters inko transactions of m%:mm;mmmmmmmmmﬂwmﬁm
at contracied rates for a specilled period These are reconded as undar:

Bale under repurchase agreements [repo)

Seouriies sold subject to-a re-purchase (repa) ane retsined in the iinanckal strbements as (mesiments and the
courdar party | le-inchedad n The differential v sale and re-purchase valus |5 accrued over the parfod of

the agreemsant and recordsd as expenas.

Purchata undir resale sgreamants [rivirse repa)

Becunties punchased under sgrearment to resale [reversa repo}are incuded in lendngs to finencial insitutions. The differenizal
betwesn the contracted prive and resale price is amertised ovar the period of the agreament and recorded as imcoma.

Securities held as collataral are ol in the: fingnclal statements. unfess these are sold 1o third parties, in which
casg the obligetion to ratem them s reconded at fair value as & treding Sebdity undes borrowsngs from financis! iInstitubions:

Dthor lendings

Crifver lendirgs inclede term lendings and unsecurad lendings 1o financlal Insttuticns,

All landings are statad nat of provision, i any. Mark-up / interest incorne on such landings 15 rneconded on fime proportion
basis using affective inlerst rale madhod except mark-up on impaing |/ delinguant lendings, which am recognised on mshipl
Cither bormowings

Cither bormwings inchuding borrowings rom SBR are recorded at proceeds recaived, Mark-up expanse on such bomowings
s changad to the profit and loss account on tme proponion basis using efactive interest method.

Trade and setilement dale accouniing

All "regular wan® purchages and sales of financial assals are recognized on the trade date, |, the date that the Bank
commits 1 purchase or sall the ersets. Raguiar way purchases or sales are purchasss or seles of Bnandal assets that
rejuire dsiivany af agsats within tha tme frame ganarally eslablished by ragulations ar convenBons in the markel placa,

Investrants
The Bank chassifies s invesimanis a3 folbows:
Hueld-for-trading

These are secuntes which are efhar scquired for profif from shor-tarm fluctuations in market prices, intesest
rete movements, dealars’ margin or are secarifies included in 2 portfolo in which a pattarmn of ahort-term profit 1aking
b,

Held-{o-maiueity

These ane securitaes with fixed or determinabla Waﬂﬁﬂhﬂ:ﬁﬂhl‘ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁh#ﬁ%?ﬁhmm
inbent and ability W0 hold o maturty
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6.55

103

Aveilablafor-sale

These e nvasimants, ofher than nvestment in associate, which do nol fall under the “heid-far-neding” or "hisdd-10-maturty”
cabepoeiss,

Uikl Freisas L risoip

Imveatments are |nitiaiy recognised &t acguisition cost, which I case of investments other than heldfor-treding” Includes
transacton costs assaciated wilth the invesiments,

Bubsequani measursment
Hald-for4rading

These are measured af subsequent reporting dates at fair valus. Gaing and losses on re-meastmemesnt are included in e
profit and koss account,

Hakd-to-maturity

Thess are measured af amordised cost using tho effective inferes! rate methad, less any impairment loss recognised to

refliect irecoverable amounts, N e

Aviilabie-for-sale

Ouoted gecurities classifiad ag avallable-lor-sale Invesirents s megewrad al subsequeni reporting dalee at Tar waluae,
1% | Sellcl arising therson Is kopt ina othor comprenansing incoma and taken o the proft #nd loss account whon

ﬂwmmmwmm tha Invasimant s conskdered to ba impainad,

Unquoted equity securities are vislued at the lower of cost and breakeup value; The break-ug value nfmmaquhy

&5 calouiated with referance lo e nel assets of the investea company as per the lales! available audied finantial statements.

Agecling i tha-camying vaiue is charged to the profit and loss account: A subsequant intrease in the carrying value, upto

the cost of imeestment, (& cradiled (& the profil and loss account. mnumwmmnmwwmat

cost leas impairmant loeses, T any.

Investment in assoclstias

Investrment in associates in which the Bark has significant nfluence, bt not'contral, cver the fnancial and opersting polickes
&g accounted far using the equity method,

Compankes wheea tharm are common dirsctons bt the Benkl doss not have significant ifence ame gccounied for as ondnany

Gaes of lossas on disposal of investments ane Included |n the profit and loss sccount.

Impairment

Fru'uh@ilunf::rdht‘rtr‘n.:ﬂl;n'lInﬂ"mw!iua-uf-‘.!m:trrllumhj{F ptDabanhumMpaTTamﬂEﬁﬁudﬂaﬂMTmFm

Certdficates) ls made after considering any. In their value. when there ls an oblactive
mﬂmﬁsnumﬁmm ummammmﬁmmm?m.mmmmﬁmmmmm
Tarm end Term Finance Carfificedes ame made az par the requiremarits of the Pradental
a:-t.ﬂﬂﬁmm by the SBP.
Advances
Advances Iglarie Anancing are- stated net of speciflc ard general provigions. Specific and genaral provisiong

against advinces ane debemoined on badacd’ﬁu:lmti# and otter dinectives lssued By the SBP and changed
o thie prodit and loss accounl. Provislons are heid against idantfied es well as unideniified losees. Advances ane writhen
off wihen there are no realisiic prozpects of recoveny,

Mursbaha
Musabata ﬂmncﬁ: are reflooted ag recoivables ot the involced amount. The profit on thal saie rovenue not die Tor
paymard s a credht to tha "Defamed Murabaha Income" account. Profitks taken to the profit and loss

by
account gver the parod of the Murabaha. Goods purchazsed but remalining wnasold al the: reporting Gate are recorded &8
Envenbariss.
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8.7.1

Diminishing Musharaka

In Dimdnéshing Musharaka financing, the Banic enters into Musharaka based on Shidkat-ul-milk for financing an egresd shanae
of Tiwed assat (for @&; housae, land, plant of machineny) with Iis cesiomens and enders inlo periodc { remlal paymat
agreamant for the utllieation of the Bank's Musharaka share by the customad.

Musawammah

Musawammah financings are refleciad & ecehables at the Involoed amount, The profit on thad sale revenuve nol duse for
payment ls defered by recording a eredit to e “Deferred Musswammah Income® account, Profit ks taken to the profit and
kxss account over the penod of the Musawammah:

Fhtod assats

Property and squipment

aj COwnad assats

Aa Hem of property and aquipmant is InlEslly recognised al oot which |5 equal o the falr value of corsideralion paid at the
tirne of acquisition or constnuction of the asset.

Moasurement subsegquaent to inithal recognition

Property and eguipment other than land and bl are stated at cost less acoumulated depreciation and sccurmusstead
impairmet losses, il any. Cost inchdes expardilure that is dinecity atlsbutabla 1o the scquisilion of property and equiprmen,

Land 5 stated &t is mevalied amount whereas bulldings are stalad al revaleed amount lass atcumulaled depratiafion and
accumulated impairmant losses, if any.
Subssquent costs are included in the assets” ca AMOUNE OF recogmised 4s 3 separale assel, as approprists, only when
it iz probable that future economic bensfits & withy fha sem will flow to the Bank and the cost of ihe item can be
measured raliably. Maintenance and nomal are chargad 1o the profit and koss account as and whan incumed. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so reglaced, iWany, ane retired,

Surphus arsing on revalustion s cradied to the "Surplss on Revalustion of Fixed Assels” ocount. A deficil arising on
renvalieation of & particular sseet |8 now to be accounted for In Bocordance with IFRS, which requires that such dafici can
niot ba adfusbed against surplus for any othaer asset, bidis to be tnumwhupmﬁtundmmﬂmanrmpmmm Tha

l-urpmsﬁ?m on o fiweed @sfals 10 the extenl of incremental depraciation charged on the ralated assels is ransfarned
o eguity.

Galng or loases on o of assels are takan to income currendy, axcapt that the relaled surplus on revaluation of fixsd
aasets (nof of de tan) Is transfarred directly to unapproprated profit £ accurmulated loss,

Deprecistion

Depreciation = computed over the weefid |ves of the related azsets using straight line mathod 50 &2 o weile down the cost
of aasals totheir residual vaiues ovwer their estimated useful iives ail the rates given in note 122 o these financial stalemants.
Cepraciakion on addions during the year is changed from the menih of acquisilion. Depresiation on disposals dunirg the
yaar iz changed for the properionate period with respact to numbear of months during which the assats remalned In use.
Same bass and esfimaties for depredalion am applied 10 owned asssts and assets wibjedt o inance lsase.

H:ﬂammmam residual values of assets are reviewed al each reporiing date and adjusted K imgact an dapraciation is

b} Lsased assets

Assets held under finenca loasa ame stated af cost less accumulated dapraciation and acoemulated impaiment loss, ifany.
This outstanding obfigaiions wider e e fre Shown &% & Kabisly net of fnance allocabie o future
peEncds. on asssts held under finance laass is charged Ina manner conslstant with that for depreciable asses
which are owned by the Bank.

Finance charges are allocated fo accounting perlods 5o as to provida a conslant parodlc rate of retum on the outstanding
fiambility.
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B8.7.2

6.8.1

6.10

6.11

Capital work-in-progress

Capftal work-In-progress 18 stated at cost less accumuteted impalrment loases, if any. Thess are fransfemed 1o relevant
catagony of property and equipment as and when e assels bicome aailable for e

Intanglbie assets

Thess include comguter sofiware and are recorded Initially 8l cosl and subseguantly staled al cost less any accumulated
amoriisalion and accumulated imparment losses, i any

Thesa are amortised over thelr findte useful lives and amortisation is charged fo the profit aod loss account using the straight
e mithioe] o a6 1o wiila down fhe oosl of fhe Ssssls 1o el rsdea] viles over thair asiimaded useful Ives al he ralas
givan In note 131 to theae financial etetements. Amortization |e charged from the month of acquisition. The ueefol lives
gl amantisation methad are reviewsd and adjusted, if appropriate. at exch raporiing date,

Costs esaociated with maintenance of computar sofleare &na recognised &5 an sxpensa as and whan Rcumes.
Incame taxes

Imcorme B axpanse gy of curment and defemed tax. Income tax exgense g recognised in e proflt @nd loss sccount
sxnept b0 the extant that it relates o lems recognised diectly in equity, in which case # 8 recognised in Bguity.

Curront

Provigion for current laxation i basad on txatik incoma for the year datemmined in accordancs with e prevaing kves
for taxation on income eamed. The cument tay expenge & calculated waing prevailing tew rates or tay rates expectsd to
apply o the Exable profits for this year af enachsd ko rates. The chaige for the curment B also Includes adiusiments, whens
oonsidered necessary, relaling to prior years anaing from assassmants made during the year for such yaere.

Prior

The charge for priar years reprasents adiisimants (o this lax change lor prior years, arising from assaessmants, changes in
Eﬂﬂmmwwﬂpﬂuﬂlr applied changes to law, made during the cument year,

Baferrad

Daferad tax s resognisesd on all temporasy diferences bebvaen fhe amounts alifhuted 1o assets and UabiBtins for financial
reporting purposes and amounts Gsed for laxebion purposas, In acdition, e Bank alsd records defarrad Lax asseds oo
svailable tax lossas. Deferred fax (= calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to IhE:pEH‘lI:I-d whin the diferences
revarss, based an S rates Bat hava hean enacted or substantively enaciad at the raporfing date

Deferred tax assel is recognised only 1o the extent that It is probable that future taxsble profils will be avallable against
mlﬂgﬁaﬁrmww. Defermed tax asseis ara reduced 10 the extent that It s nio langer probable that the resated
Wi s

The Bank also recognises defemed tax seset | lkaliliy on defict | surplis on revaluaion of fieed sssels and securities which
is ediusted against the mredated deficit [ surplus in eccordance with the requirements of LAS 12 "lncoma Taxes™.

impalrmant of non-financlal assets

At sach reporting date, the Bank reviews the carnying anounts of its non-finencial assets ofver than deferred tax sssels
10 determing whether there I an indication thal thoss assals have suffered an Impalrment loss. IF any such indication sidsts,
the recowennia amoent of ssssls (3 sslimatad in order 1o detarminge tha ecent of the imparment (0ss, if any, Recoverabis
amount i3 the graater of net salling price and value in wse. Whenewvar the recoverabis amount of an aseet is estimsated o
by loss than its camying amound, the camyifg amount of the ssset B reduced o its recovenable amount and an impaismoant
logs i teken bo the profit and joss account axcept for Impaimeent loes on revalued assets, which |s adiusted sgainet the
redated revaluabion surpius to the extent thak the impainment [oss does rot sxceed the surplus on reveluabon.

Frovislon from clakms under guarantees
A provision for claime under & recognisad when inlmated ard roascnably certain axists fal the Banwil settia

the obligation. Tha nhargntu-; the proft and loss is stated nat of axpected recoverias and fra obligation is recagnised In
othar inbibling,
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G.i2

E13
6131

132

6133

614

Ciher provisions

Cither provisions e recognised when the Bank has a legal or conatructive cblisation as a resull of past evenis and It s
probable el an Sutficw of nesturias will B redquingd 1o satile tha abligation awd a reliabis asiimabs of the amount can ba
mads. Provishns are reviewed 81 each reporting date and are adjusted o reflact the cument besl astinates,

Provision against dentifed nonfunded losses s recognised when identfied and reasonsble certainty exists for the Bank
be settla the: obligation, The |oes is changed o the profil and less account net of axpectad recovery and is classified under
"other liabllifes®

SafF retirement benafs
Defined conbribution plan

Thue Bank oporates an appooved funded provident fund schimn (tha Fund) for all &s permancnt employeas. Equal monthly
contriuticns are mede, both by the Bank and ie smployeses, to the furd at the rate of 8.33 percant of beslkc salares of
BMpOYyeas.

Duefined benefit plan

The Bank operates an approved graiully scheme for &l its reguiar employess, Beglinning from January 01, 2005, the
ertiffemnent of the emplovess commences on the completion of fve vasrs of sanice with the Bank. Projecied Uit Credit
Actuarial Gosl Metiod has been wsed {or achuanial waheation.

Re-measiurement component, which is ihe nel of actuarial gaing and lossas, |3 mmadiately recognised in other comprehensive
income, whonoas, sorvice costs and not interest income / (expense) are charged to the profit and loss account,

Benaflts for conrectual szl

Tha entillermant of contraciual emplovess & based on number of years of servica, Upon completion of 1 year of service,
pratulty expense aquivalent t0 & month's salary (withdrawn) s accrued. After the first year, aquivglent to 2 month's
ealary i2 further acorued In each year If the employes remains in senica lor major part of the year (181 daye of maose),
Paymanis agairst lability are mada ko outsouraing agencies when elgible smployes leaves senios, Unpald expense is
inckrlad in “other labiltas",

REvanlue resogniton

Rsvenua is recognised 1o the edent thet the economic bensfits assodaled with a fransaction will fiow {0 the Bank and tha
renvanee can ba relisody measurad. The following recognition criterla must be met before revenus s recognised. Revenus
i recogrsed.

- Mark-up  return ¢ interast on advances, bwestments, lending o fnancial instituticns and balances with other banks |8
recognized on accrugl bagks that takes Into apcount effectve vield on the aszete except In case of advancaes claselfied
undar the Pruderitial Reguiaticns ssued by the SBP {as amandad from time to time) on wiich mark-up / return 7 inferast
Is racognizad on recalpt basts. Mark-up [ ralun  Infarest on feschadided ) reslructured advances and imvestiments &
racognised in accordance with the directives of the 58P

- Predit on Diminishing Musharaks financings @ recognised on acorual basis,

« PG an SUkLK i racogrisod on AnGrE| bR,

- Fees, brokerage and commission on letters of oredit | guarantes and other services are amortised over the lenure of
the respective aclity, whereas account malntenance and service changes are recognised when reslised

- Dividend income ks recognized when Bhe rght bo receive the dividend is estab@shed,

= Rent on propedy and non-banking assels s moognised on the acerual basks.

- am and [Gs6 on sale of invesiments is cradited | charged to the profit and fess account cumétly.
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B8.15

B.16
6.18.1

5162

617
6.17.1

107,

Haon-banking sssets acquired in satlsfection of claims | Ciher Real Estate Cemad {OREQ)

AL the Bma of acquisition of non-banking assed, It is ecognized on the basis of value determined by Inche prendend evaliesions
o e panal of PBA. AL he Eme of setierment, Tha Bank caries oul valuabon as per Tollowing crileria;

- For outstanding loans exceeding Rs. 2 mion, only self-assessmant is curmed oul,

=1 least one valuabion reports lor ransaction amount up to R 20 million,

= At leadt twa valuation réparts Tor Transaction armount up to Ra. 50 mililon,

- At leaat thaee valustion repons for tremeaction amount of more than Re. 50 milon.

Settlemeant vakse used for acquisiion of non-banking assets i basad on markst vabkse 28 per valuation report, howsver,

satioment value la restricted o average of lowest bvo valuation obtained a= par abowe critedfa. Land acquired aa

nor-benking assets is recorded in statemant of finandial position only when it is rensfemed in the name of the Bank and

retorded in mvenue moonds.

Provision agalnet non-parforming advances and suspandod mark-up | ratem / inlonost @5 musrsed on acquistion of non-

mu?m however, suspended mark-Up s tkan into profit and boss accourt only when it is realized in cash Brough
nea-banvking ssal of Gliarwise,

Subsequent to Initlal recognition, these are stated ai fair value less stoumulated deprectation and Impairment loss, IF any:

Deprecistion on non-taniing assets is calculated in line with the deprecation meihod used for game class of asaets n
proparty and equdpmant,

Gains and lossss on disposal of non-banking essets am meognised in the proflf and loss account whean the rsks and
rewards are fransfermed o the buyver

Foraign aurrgncles

Foreign currgncy transactions

Transaclions in foreign currencies are ranstated into Pakistani rupess of the foreign & rabes preval cm fhes
transscion date. Monelery sssets and Kebiites in foreign cumencies are exprassad in Rupes terms ai

of exchange prevaling on the reporing dste. Non-maonetany ssaets and Febéliies are ransiated wsing sxchangs rabtes 1hat
prenvaltad whan the values wena determined. Translstion gains and iosses are Incheded In profit and fess soccount;

Forward confracts other then contracts with the SBF ralating to foreign curmency deposie are velusd at fonwsrd mates
applicable o the respective maturites of the relevant foreign exchange contract,

Forward purchess confracts with the SEP relating o Toreign currancy deposits are valued at the spot rate prevalling on
tha mporting date. The fonimrd cover fee payabis on such contracts s amonised over the berm of the contrects.

Conlingencios and commitiments

Comriirmants for cutstanding forward forsign exchangs coniracts disciosnd in thaee financal statoments an Transiatod
8l contracted raies, lFabilites | commitrments for lethers of craoit and letiers of gusraniss denominaled in forelgn
cuTencies ane axpressed In nipee terms &t the rabes of exchange prevailing ai the reporling date.

Financial instruments

Financial sssets and labilitien

Finarclal asssts and finamcia liabiifes carried on the sietement of finandial position indiude cash and Dalences with reasury
banks, balances with cther banks, lendings (o financial instilulions, investments (exeluding investment in assodiata,
advances, centaln other assets, borowings from financial insttutions, deposits, bills payable, Babilities against assels subject

1o firsnon lease and other lisbifties. The parficular recogrition nuﬂ-mdsadapm for significant financisl assets and financal
HabiFies arg disciomad In the Individusl polioy siptoments assockated with fhem.
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GAT.2

E.18

612

6181

a182

6.20

B2

622

623

iG.24

Dervative financial Inatruments

Crerivaive financial inshruments ana el &Wﬂlﬂ#ﬂlkﬂmhmm which the dervafive contract is entsnad
irti and ans subsaquenty m-maasumad ai waluafion tochnbauos, A0 Friancial instruments am: cariaed
as assals when Tair value is posithe and F.thlﬂmmn fair value 5 negative. Any change in the fir value of dervatie
francial nstruments s aken o e profit and Inss account

E‘I‘f-lrﬂ'l.h'ﬂ

and finamclal lsbiStes are sat-off and H:andm@u_giu repoited In the financlal siatements when thers |z
ngltq rtni‘tr gat-off and the Bank intends sither to on a net basis or jo readlse the azsets and 1o settie
the liabiiites simufianesousty.

Segment reporting

Aosegmant Is a di abla of the Bank that |3 engaged either In providing products or sendgas

Hﬁnﬂurhm‘-ﬂ ng producis or sadvices within 2 pariicular aconomic ervitcnemeant PP {hﬂl:llimh
nd rewards that are different frorm $hosé of the other ants, Jnlnmmﬁnnlhpm as pir

nk’smmmmamnuﬂmﬂhEEPFdﬂmmummmmhmmumﬂ

Business segmants

Wholesalo Banking

Deposits, trade and ofher lending aciivities for oorporates and finanoia! institetions,

Tressury

Thiz'segment undertakes the Bank's market and gt acivites. Treasary theasset and

limbdity méx of thie' Bank and m@mnﬁwﬁuﬁhﬂmﬂﬂﬁdﬁmaﬂhmﬂm&:ﬂd cagh flow,

interest rabe fuchuations and foresign exchangs risks.

Consumer [ SME Banking

Waalth management, deposits, morigages, auto Anande, unsecured lending and SME lending (ncluding SME trade).

Al assels, Rddities, olf halance sheal ilems and ilems of income ond expenses ane distibubed in primary segrments in
accardance with the con fundions peformied By the Business groups.

Geographlcal segment
The Bark conducts &l s operation in Pakiatsn,

Deposits

Deposits are nitially racorded at the amount of crocesds ivad. M on d ita ia recognised aeparaie
iaapmtnf?timf mwhwhhpﬁwﬁmumﬁmpmw . L ¥
Share cagpital

mﬂlnﬂ!mmﬂmumﬁ? recognitied at their face valuse less discount on issue of sharos, [Roremantal
wosts directly atinbuisble bo e ssue mm“um'mm:qum-undnduman. net of tax, from the procesds,

Earnings per share
Tre Bank pregenls basic and diluted earnings per shere (EPS). Basic EPS i caloulated by diiding the profil or jose
attrtbutahle to gharaholdars Autmbar of ardinsry :

the Banik by the avarage gharas outgtanding durin
the waar. EH-u'tad.EPEInden‘&rmimdbyad ithe profit or loas atirbutable to ordinary ensrehaldars and the vn@‘n'teg
everage nurmber of ordinary ehares cutetanding

rtha effacts of all dikiive potential ardinary shares, if amy.
Fidueskary asseis

Asgeta hald In fiduciary capacity ane nof freated as pesets of e Bank in tha statermant of inanciel posttion.
Bubordinated dabin

Subordinated dabls are inflialy recorded at the mn:ﬁmﬂn racgived. Mark-up on subordinaled debls & charged
o e profit &nct loss accound ovar the paciod on an accrual and is recognised separalely a3 part of other labiliies.
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2018 2017
Nots Rupeass in '000
7 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Locs! currency [ AEmgE| [ drset|
Foreign curmencies L S81068| | 466820
2410,79 2312431
With State Bank af Pakistan in
Lowad curancy cument aceount 71 | As98567| | 4679724
Forsign curnency cument account 630,335 408,338
Forsign currency deposit account 72 1,210,071 1,025,189
6,336,973 6,113,252
With Mational Bank of Pakistan in
Lol Gurreniy carmenl dcoount 121,213 &5 858
Mafional Prize Bonds 2,580 1,837
BATISET 8473176

T Daposits with SBP are malnteined to comply with the statutory requlrements of S8P issued from time o e (Section 22

ef the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862).

v.2 This represants accotint malntained with 387 o compiy with Speclal Cash Ressrve reguinemant {FE-25 schame, a3
prascribad by SBP). It carries interest rates ranging from 0,565 to 1.35% (2017 0% o 0.37%).
20148 2017
Nets Rupeas in ‘00
& BALANGES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakisten
In current account ' BB,B15 118471 |
In daposil aceoun . ] 33 |
BE,8TS 116,444
Outside Pakistan
In curment account 221,115 101,678
) 218,420
8 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Repurchass agreemant lsndings (Reversa repo) 82 11,685,534 8,188,082
Foraign placameant &3 848 622 AL 5ET
12,512,156 8,620,840
8.1 Particulars of londing
in locat currency 11,665,534 B 188,082
In forskgn currencies . BaBEZ2  dz2ma7
12,612,166 B.620,548
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.2 Secwritles held as collateral against lendings fo financlal Instiutions

21:_“#
Further
Hald by Bank  givenas  Total Huick
_ collateral _ _E_“‘ '_"‘
Mote Rupees in 000
Market Treasury Bl 8215922 1982801 - 1,882,801
Pakistan kvesiment Bonds  9.298022 2839818 6843117 08E2TH3
Total 4822417 6843117 11,6655

il
Furrther
ghnen as Todal

collateral

1,808,544 53750538 7088082
40488 1,089,502 1,130,000
1,840,042 8,340,040 8,198,082

8.2.1 Thess have been purchased under the raverss repurchase agreement at the mark-up retes ranging frem B.45% fo 10.45%

{2017; 5.80% to B.20%) per annum with maturdties upin February 2049,

8.2.2 The market vaive of securies heid a5 collsiaml ageinst reversa repurchase agresment lendings az of December 31, 2018

iz Rz 11,826.93 milion (2017: Ra. 8,275 68 millon):

B3 Thess have beon placed with a fonelgn bank as pledge ageins] issuancs of Standby Letter of Cradit (SBLT) favodring VISA
at the imterest mbe of 1.50% (2017 0L85%) per anmum with maturity from Janvery 2078 ko Movember 2018,

10 INVESTMENTS

. e e .
GOt prosision for | Cott!  Drwtsionfor Burle )
Amorisd  diminution ) Amorised  dminitien  (Deficl) iy
0.1 Investmants by type: —
Hote Rupeas in 00

Hippd-fee -t ing amcaTitizn
Market Tréatury Mie LT I Iim']ﬁi |_ i
Euxistn |vasment Bonds L =14 =i =H a_,mg.ﬂ' -] uﬂu .E,Laa_-g-g_,

10,0538, 820 2 AT TOBETANT 2,830,087 z 3478 2839545
Avmbablofor-aals secuiting
Bkt Tresmury Bils 104 ml 2897} | 4261505 18,5007 | 1 aae | nsssaar]
Proidatan vestmert Bonds 198 |1 {.ﬁ:ﬂmﬁ 2. Bep weg! | - [54,.968) 12588 52
G0OF Fora Buklhs i0d | RBELITE 1l E:.Tﬁ'ﬂ-.a'iﬂ-': {BA20) | 3807 35 )
S - Liided 104 157, B8 - 3,040 20,545
T - Undlnd 10 ses0 | (us0) m: BT - - |
Sk - Lichact oA | BT m| 00,000 | - 1250 || 00350
Tern Floamican Tt - Lt 104 | Lm0 S md eiars | a7el| = || e e
Toers Firanon Cartibosten - Uritslod s | KTED|  TeD|| - || oea)  de|| o -

15,084,508 [14480) [IZZOYT) ATAADNE MSEMEAD  (144E0)  (54E00) 36516180
Hld-be-mratusrtty ssearien
Shires remrThass (il priide] Wh O [rAsT) - = TG Famn - -
Baonocales
5P Insursos Company Limind T ) - : WEEGL 118012 148042
i e e ST i
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2018 20T
T
102  Investments : .trﬂ"hd e g 3 nﬁm o el i o
by Segments m e et [Defc B
Hobs llup-h'm
Merkad Trosory Bt ‘H.HI.IEI | :'I.i,m E‘I:BEB:'AIH : ﬁ.a.'H-]-' 1B-.ﬁl..!-l?
Pabietnn [ireestreid Bosds AR | | LB,48,265 | 15 B2 758 1 TAREREY | 16ETRE |
TR s Bl ol &'E-”E =l | BAEET | RT0AEHE | 5 [ N2 |
ZRAB0A5S 37 BATEE SRRy TeeeE
m —_—— — " . - - - - .
Ligtee rmmgpurion [ ur.m' (any | wasaer | 26804 - | s || s
Ll e o — x_E#__-.j_'___-j'. e R o e | I
M LI s o 7
Mo Giosemmany Db Sacurdiss z 5 a ; na
Skurics - Ratesd mm*| Tid| | apnael | 00000 | = 250 || 2 2sa)
Term Finnroes Cotifzshes - inted -h,.l‘l'ﬁ BY Boa | ; B | e
Term Finonos Codifisstes « urlinad {!.,_?E | mi) w|| CHIME|| mA| =] ow |
mu? [ELTRO] BB MELTI® 2O05ZE) 1B, TR 3,078 29057
Eawi i i ully povidad) 05 THED [0 - 5 TAEI TG
Anpccisian
&P lesarmrees Cnergeery e WE e : = IBASE 11017 - - IR
Totad Imvmaterts FANTE (MR 5008 BRIMABES WADISE (BTN (1A W00
2018 2y
Rupees in 000
10.2.1 Investments given as collateral
Market Treasury BE - B 285 451
Pakistan Inestment Bonds _ BABBA12 12856278
_ BaB8112 21,141,728
10.3 Provision for diminution in value of Investrmants
10.3.1  Opening balance 89,370 88,370
Change | (rawvarsale)
Charge for the year = A -
Rieverzals for the year | o | -
Amounis wiitlen off R e
Closing baiance —_Bu0  Eesv0
1032  Particulars of provision against dabt securition
o v Ny
— Nan . MNon —
clzasification rovlshon
Rupess in "0
Substandard - - . .
Doubbiul - s ¥ =
Losa i Rt I i SO
Total _ BapW0 B3GR 3680 83800
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10.4 Guality of Avallable for Sale Securities

Detalls regarding quality of Asailable for Sale (AFS) sscurities are as follows:

HWie 2T
S —
Note Rugees in '000
Faderal Government Ssaurities - Govemment guaranteed
Market Treasury Bills 4,354, :ui| - 1B,550471)
Pakistan Investment Bonds 161 10,253,483 12,952,660
ljara Sukuks  3EERETE | ATI3B16
__IBAGRS61 35256978
Sharas
Ligted Companies c
Chermical and pharmaceuticals B :
Sarvivas 25,604 | 25604
Cihars — - |
137,851 25,604
e, L N
Breakup Braagup
Cosl Nl EF'H e
Unilsted Companias
Pakigtan Export Finance Guaranies Limited [l provided) 5880 = ‘BEEO =
— I r—— é:: ':'E'l.'@;_
2018 anr
Note Rupees in ‘000
Hon Government Debt Securities
Listed
~AAE 62,500 &7 500 |
-AA ST | el
362,027 287,500
Untisted 2
- Unrated (Rity provided) w042 &80 8,780

1041 Theso inchide socurities having face valle of Rs. 740 million (Decembar 31, 2017: Rs. Nil} plodgoed with United Bank
Limitad for Global Irdustrial and Defence Solubins, Pakstan as Guarmantorn Further, sscurnifiss having face vakss of B=,
35 million (December 31, 2017: Rs. 35 millon} pledged with SBP as security to fscilitate Telegraphic Transter discourting
faciities sanctomed by branches of the Bank.

10.42 Thasé represent zero coupon privately pleced TFCs of Azgsrd Nine Limited {related party) scquired against markup
settement of Ra, 8,78 milfion on the credit fecilities provided fo Azgard Mine Limited.
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0.5

0.6

1061

10.6.2

10.63

Fai k- 2017
Rupees In "000
Particulars relating to Held 1o Maturity socurities are as follows:
Hhers
Shares repurchase (ully prended) T4.210 _ T4.810
Investment in sssociale
Name of company MNEWP Country of incorporation
BP1 Insurance Company Limited 23.08% (2017 23.08%) Pakisian
mm 30, Seplember 30,
2047
anru In "0G4
Total assobs 1,233 082 1,103,365
Total liabliities 690,926 506,737
Profit after taxation 48,707 26 405
Total comprehiensive income . =
208 2017
Rupeas in 000

Movement In investmant in assockate
invastmant at the beginning of the vear 118,012 102,824
Share of profit 842 | | 351
Subacription of night shares L R -

' 882 15788
Investment at the end of the year 126,684  TiE02

Summerized frenclal information of esacclate ks based on financlal Information for nine montha ended Sepiemiar 20, 2048
bacausa financal slatermnents of aesociats for the year ended December 31, 2018 ana nof avaliable af the time of authorzakon
of wsun of thisse financial salements. Thers |s no diffenence between the proportionate share of net assels of sssociate
and s carrying value accounted on equity method thersfore no reconclistion is raquined.

Thars i no share of contingencias and commitmants from associate a8 at Septembar 30, 2078 and 2017,
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1 ADVANCES - NET

Performing || NonPerforming | Total
[ #we | aoir || 2o | zetr || 2008 | aon7
Hote Riupess in 000
Livarts, cash credits, rumning fnances, etc. (80879752 664B1 372 | 6,368,874 5,853,152 76,248,826 72,304,524
|szamic financing and retated sssets 115 | 28,800,182 17627356 30151 : - || #8;901,888 17527355
Bits dimcounied and purchased | 411184 289255 6,650, 8650 41TBMA| 275805
Advanoes - gross B6B91,128 B4277582 GETS0AD 595007 103,585,168 90137784
Previgion againet advancay 1.3

- Specific i - lﬂm.l 3.730,785 4524443 3,730,789
- Ganersl | B8TF2|  sseame0 0 .| - || G8YTFII| 556280
_ BRTIR 555280 4SEAMAS T30 TSR 5212188 4287 OB
Advances - net of provision BE203406 B3,721,702 2,960,807 2,120,013 08,364,002 85,850,715

2018 207

Rupses In 000

1.1 Particulars of advances [gross)

I ocal curmancy 103,562,141 90,137,784

In foreign carrencies i e
103,566,188 90,137,784

1.2  Advances include Rz 8,875 milion (2017: Rs. 5 860 milllon) whieh heve been placad under non-parforming status as

detplind below:
bl g 2017
S =
Category of classification - specific Performing Provision  Performing Provision
_ Leans Loars
Rupesas In 000
Substandand SE3AB1  12TeTE  BE302 7o84
Deubdful 521,267 40873 857525 128380
Loss 5170612 4346502 43309176 3522578
Tatal _BETS0M0 4524443 5859.802 3730789
{12  Particulsrs of provision agalnst sdvancas
... 27 -
Specific General  Total Spechic  Goneral  Total
Note Rupees in (00
Dpanilng balanss ATIaTes  ss62m 207008 4034008  4PRE4S 4508 55T
Ghange for the yeor 4417820 1M A0 480071 || 591287 10DSTO  1,091.857
Reversals 1132 {23,882) - [game) | (emROiM)  (22838) (Ti4850)
1IZLTEE 135443 1455208 299278 TILPM 7007
Amounis writian off 141 E30.112) - {801z (s80.405) - (E90,405)

Clusing balznos _AS2M44)  eETTH B12300 0730783 556280 4,267,009
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11.341

11.3.2

11.3.3

11.34

11.3.5

114

11.4.1

11.4.2

1143

11.5

12

121

115

Particulars of provision against advances
2018

2017

Specific General Total

Specific

General

Total

Rupees in "000
3,730,789 556,280 4,287,069

In local currency 4,524,443 687,723 5,212,166
In foreign currencies - - s

4,524,443 687,723 5,212,166

3,730,789 556,280 4,287,069

This includes reversal of provision of Rs. 1.5 million (2017: Rs. 414 million) against non-performing loans of certain borrowers

under ‘Debt Property Swap' transactions, as disclosed in note 15.3.

SBP vide various circulars has amended Prudential Regulations in respect of provisioning against non-performing advances
under which the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) has been allowed for plant and machinery under charge, pledged stock
and mortgaged residential, commercial and industrial properties (land and building only) held as collateral against non-

performing advances uplo five years from the date of classification.

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank has availed FSV benefits against all non performing advances. Had the benefit not
been taken by the Bank, profit after tax would have been lower by Rs. 731 million (2017; Rs. 615 million), which shall not

be available for payment of cash or siock dividend / bonus to employees.

As per Prudential Regulation for consumer financing issued by the SBP, percentage of reserve is linked to non-performing
loans to gross loans ratio. Consequently, the general provisioning on consumer financing is maintained at 4% (2017: 4%)

of unsecured portfolio of the Bank.

2018

2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Particulars of write offs: el Fuipsas. (n-

Against Provisions 11.3 530,112 599,495

Directly charged to profit & loss account - -
530,112 599 495

Domestic

Write offs of Rs. 500,000 and above 11.4.3 177,821 228 035

Write offs of Below Rs. 500,000 352,291 371,460
530,112 599 495

Detall of loan write off of Rs. 500,000 and above

In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the Statement in respect of written-
off loans or any other financial relief of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed o a person(s) during the year ended

Is given In annexure |.

Information related to Islamic financing and related assets is given in annexure Il and is an integral part of the financial

statements.

Note
FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 12.1
Property and equipment 12.2

Capital work-in-progress

Civil works
Advances {o suppliers and contractors

Annual Report 2018

2018 2017
Rupees in "000
63,641 230,756

3,917,630 3,704,089
3,981,271 3,934,845
22 427 89,089
41,214 141,667
63,641 230,756

12.2 Property and equipment
2018
Ouwmned Lassad
Bullding Bullding Electrical,
Freshold Leasehold - o F"::I':I“" office and iitine Leasehold E’; Total
kend land Freshold Laasshold finliary computar improvemantis Svatom
land land aguipment
Hupsas In "000
At January 1, 2018
Cost / Revalued amount 76,882 1,907 321 15,425 790,812 S0, 344 1,839,667 687,968 1,084,839 20,215 6,552,873
Accumulated depreciation - - (5,098} {258,623) (213,121} (1,369,799 {293,192} (626,20%) (12, 744} (2,848, 784)
Mot book value 76,682 1,907,321 10,329 332,189 127,223 259,868 o14,376 388,630 7,471 3,704,089
Yoar ended December 2018
Opening net book value 76,682 1,907,321 10,329 832,189 127,223 269,868 274,376 398,630 7471 3,704,089
Disposals {76,682) - = {140} {115) {68,826} e - (143,583)
Write offs - - - (2} - - (2.810) - {2,612)
Depreciation charge = . (T71} (40,374) {28,785) (97.080) {126,296) (99,712) (4,043} (387,741)
Closing net book valus - 1,307,321 9,558 541,808 165,008 387,686 438,348 486,465 3,428 3,917,630
At December 31, 2018
Cost / Revalusd amount o 1,907,321 15425 840,805 404,085 1,841,700 758,526 1,243,543 20.215 7.031.620
Accumulated depreciation = a (5,887} {£98,937) (238,078} (1.454.004) {322, 178) {F77,078) (16.787) {3,113.990)
Met book valus = 1,907,321 9,558 241,808 165,006 387,606 438,348 488,485 5,428 3,917,630
Rate of depreclation = 5% 5% 10% 14.29%-33.33% 20% 10%:-20% 20%
2017
Owned Leasad
Building Building : Electrical,
Freehold Lessehold o on F”ﬁ:"“ office and T Leasshold ﬁ:'r:l Total
land land Freahald Leazehold Forkys computer Improvements
land land - squipment Sysien
Rupsas In 000
Al January 1, 2017
Cost / Revalusd amount 72,338 1,807,321 10,306 834 546 338 017 1,542 B28 588 452 1,086 726 20215 6,412,750
Accumulated depreciation - - (4,368) (236,581) (205.148) {1,293,583) (263,887) (688,115) (8,702) (2,701,485)
Met book value 72,338 1,807,321 5 838 YT, 065 133,868 248 235 335,465 a7 611 11,513 3,711,255
Yaar ended Dacember 2017
Opening net book value 72338 1,907,321 5,938 BUT 065 133,868 248 235 335,465 287 611 11,513 3,711,255
Additions 4 343 5,118 . 25516 131,629 213,839 122 676 503,222
Disposals - - (24,587 {186} {1,881) {58,566) {1568) (B6,788)
Wirite offs - = £ I4r445} 2 (343] (2914?7] (34&?65]
Depreciation chamge - - (728) (41,179) {27 ,530) {108,115) (115,618) (90,612) (4,042) (388,825)
Cloging net book value 76,682 1,807 321 10,328 532,189 127,223 269,868 374 376 298,630 747 3,704,089
Al December 31, 2017
Cost / Revalued amount 75,682 1,807,321 15,425 790,812 340, 344 1,638,667 667,568 1,084 839 20,215 B,552 873
Accumulated depreciation - - (5,096) {258,623) (213,121}  {1,369,799) {283,182) (686,208) (12,744 (2,848 784)
Net book value 76,682 1,807,321 10,329 532,180 127,223 269,868 374 376 398,630 TA71 3,704,080
Rate of depreciation 5% 5% 10% 20%-33.33% 20% 10%-20% 20%

12.2.1 These include land and buildings revalued in 2008 by Habib Associates, an independent valuer. The revaluation resulted in
a surplus of Rs. 118.67 million. Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of the revalued land and buildings would
have been lower by Rs. 59.06 million (2017: Rs. 62.64 million). The Bank's land and buildings were again revalued in financial
year 2015, however, no revaluation surplus or deficit was recorded as the revalued amounts were not materially different

from carrying values.
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1222 On September 10, 2015, the Bank entered into an Agreament o0 Sell {the Agreemant) for the previous Head Offica Buliding

1.3

12.4

1241

of the Bank agains! sale conslderation of Rs, 2,370 milon. Purstant to the terms of the Agresrment, the Bank meoeived a
down payment of R 118.50 milion, which is currantly reportad in 'other labilities’ {note 21}, The remaining balance is
required to be pald by the buyer within 5 years from the date of the Agreement. As per the terms of the Agreamant, the
buryer agreed 1o pay annoal rent based on e cutstanding emownt of conslderation fram fhe dete of recelpt of approvals
fromy ralevant authoritles, howsevar, on Jure 28, 2016, the buyer has provided the consent to pay annual reni-with effact
from July 1, 2016, During (he vear, the Bank has recorded rantal income amounting %0-Rs, 16761 milion (2017; B 15781
milllion) as disclosed in note 31.1. As per the tarms of the Agreement, in case the buyer falls 1o pay the amourt of rant o
batance sale congideration, the advance recaived of 5% shall atand forlsited, Sinca tha condifions to recogniss disposal
are riot et the previcas Mead Offce Buliding has not been demscognized.

2018 20T
Rupees in '000
The coat of fully depraclated property and sgulpmant that are still In use 1s &s follows:
Fumiune, alecirical, ofice, computor agquipment and othars 1,263,838 1221878
Lisasahcid Improvarnts 266 364
1,693,458 1,571,341

In- Januany 2018, remaining usatul lves of cortain Banks' assets wane reviewsd by the managarrant, The revised and
previoua remaining usalul fves of indivicual sfgnificanl componants Brg BE wndar:

wmam
2018 2097
ATM Machine T yaars & yean
Othar computer equipments except laptop & years 3 years
The offact of thoso changoes on deprecistion oxpansa In currant year ik as follows:
2014
Rupeas tn '000
Decroasa In depreclation sxpense
ATH Maching 3,282
Oifver compuber aquipments excapt laptop 28,561
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12.8 [ispozals io Bank's emgdoyees are made az per their terms of employment. These include both resigned and active siaff

of the Bank_
2018 b3
Hets Rupses in "000
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Capital work-in-prograss 65,167 39,396
Softwan 131 161,673 202,505
226,840 241,301
134 Software
At January 1
Cost BTD,5T4 824,376
Accumideted amortization {668, 06:3) (581,383)
Net ook value 212,505 242,993
Year endad Decembar
Oipaning nat book value 202,505 242 003
Additions 30,549 46,198
Amonsation charge _{T138i) {86, 688)
Closing net book vaiis _ 1e1673 202,505
At Dartsamibor 31
vt B B3 BTD.574
Met book vatus 181 202,505
Rate of amortlsstion 0% 10%—2!»5'5_
Usetul life {in yaars) . B 4-10
1344  Tha cost of fully amortised softwarea sfill in usa ﬂ 216.710

132 InJanuary 2018, rernaining usehd [ife of certalin tems of Banks' software was reviewed by the managerent. The revised
ard provious rompning usetul Il of softwans is @s under:

Crache financhal A0 years 5 years
Harmaorny 10 years 5 years
Digial Bank Application 10 years B years
1321 The sffect of theas changes on amortisation expensa in current year is as follows: aia
Rupees in 100
Dacraase in amortisation expanss
Cirache financisl Z.81
Hasmony 132
Digéal Bank Application 03
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 DEFERRED TAX ASBETS 4.1 The Bank has an eggregaie amount of deferred tax azseds of Rs. 3,05% million (December 31, 2017 Rs. 3478 million)

(150854) 35456 13,136 (102062)
3,704,745 [256.853) 28,043 3475120
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| | |
I
, | |
| = |
i | |
I | |
i | |
I | |
i | |
| | |
, ! |
| |
I % e | which represents managemsant's beet esfimate of the probable benefits epacted o be realised In fiture years In the form |
' My | Tecaei | el | atpecn , of redused tax liabiitty 3 the Bank woukd be able & sat off the profits samed in those years against taxsble temporary ,
I | NG | e | differsncas relaling lo pricr years, The Bank hes prapared five years financial projactions for Rulurs taxable prefits, which |
| Hobe Rupees in "0 have hean approved by the Boerd of Directors of the Bank, o assess the recoverabllity of defarmed tax assets. The profections
| Deductible Temporary Differences on : involve cartain key management assumplions underying the setimstion of fulure smble profits. The datarmination of futuea :
| . . Enxable profils is most sensilive to cortain key assumptions such 835 growtivol low cos! daposils, growlh i high yieid consumae
| - Flos? retifemant empioyee benefits - - 3580 e ' advances, imvestmant relurs, branch expansion plsns, polential provision agains! assets, nterest mates, tost of funds and '
| - Deficil on revaluation of iInvesiments 23 19,215 ¥ sagi2. Temav ! expectad repoveriss of classified lnans. Any significant changs in such assumplions may have an effiect on the eooverabifty |
[ - Proagion for deninution in walue of nvestmanis 3,073 - - 3073 | of the defemed lax asesis. Menagemant belleves that |t s probabia that the Bank will ba sble te achleve the profits and |
, - Provision sgainst non-performing sdvancas 230,300 | (3,028 - | 2,297,282 : sansequently, the defered lax assol will be fully realisad in fulura. :
: Piitiobiiiis.comsinaiatdolyol bk el sl N | s | 142  Status of tax and other detalis are disdosed in nota 35 to these financial statements. |
« Provigion against othor assals 225,848 (2.480) = 223,368 | ,
: - Deprecistion on non-banking asssts 52,070 13,785 - BE, 855 , 018 T |
| - Unabsorbed tax deprecation | 3,007 | (474,271} | - | 438636 | Note Rupees in ‘009 |
| 3,578,191 ([A5Z588) 66,337 3,191,540 I 15 OTHER ASSETS I
| |
' Taabis; Tomyorary Diffurasci o | Income / mark-up accred In local clrmency - net of proviskon 4,738,974 2 062,780 i
' - Post retinsment employes banefits L @372 2 3,572 = | , Inecms | Mmank-up acerued in farsign curency - nel of provision a2 305 |
I 18 R Acorued rent 12.2.2815.2 531,254 346,187
= Surplus on reveluation of assets 232 = L ey ¥
| o T Sy i | ' Advances, deposiis, advance rert and other prepayments 540,333 490,786 '
| - Surplis on revaluation of fixed assets A (arsm - 1283 (1457 ' Advance taxetion {payments iess provisiens) 967,307 742 258 !
| - Aonlerated fax depreciation . (TR.127)|  (40.108) - | (18232 | ' Med defined benefit assets 38.4 ) 10,207 !
I  l102062) (40105) @ 8874 (133.200) : Mor-banking assets acquired in setisfaction of claims 5,585,886 6,581 654 i
' 3476128 (492,683) 1 3,058,647 Haon-hanking assets acquired In satisfacion of claimsa
. b S | under agreament to sale thind partles 4,018,263 4,337 234 '
| o | Mon-Banking assals acquired in satisfaction of claims _ |
| : I with by back option with customers 91168 | 468483 '
| My | Mecomesd | Recporied | o | 15.1815.3 8,795,307 11,367,311 |
| s O | Branch adjustment account 110,813 40,487 |
| Feupees @ 000 | Mark to market gein on forwand forsign exchange contracts 180,572 146,756 |
Geductibla Temporary Diferances on [ Recatvable from sale of operafing ficed assels 55,000 . [
: . ; | Rucaivabls from sae of non-banking assets acquired in |
- Tax |osses carmed forwarnd 154,154 {154,154} - - I satistaction of claims 455 518,250 750,000 I
| - Deficd on revaliation of vastmsndy 4,308 - 14,807 19215 | Racahwable from MCGPL - 1,228 610 |
: - Provision for diminution in value of mwestments 118,845 | (116,872} - 3,073 | Others 409881 309408 |
Y : 17,927,890 18,416,185
- Provizion against non-parforming advancss 2445756 | (115366} | - 2330380 | y [
! ; : Less: Provision held agsins! other essets 154 81
| - Provision against Workars' Wadface Fund (WWF} - | 39,688 - | 33sm | mm_mmﬁjﬁm _ﬂ{m 1?%1 |
| - Provision againsl other assels 147,231 TEEIT = | 225848 ' Surplus on revabuation of nan-banking assets acguned In |
| - Daprecigtion on non-banking asseis 28317 | 22758 - 52,070 I satisfaction of claims L #8128 I
| - Unabeorbed tax deprecation | o54,588 | (40,781} | _ : Gther sesats - total 17,337,316 7.831.062 :
: 3,855,300 (292.115) 14907 2578191 | |
| Tawabie Temporary Diffarences on o S | 5.1 Market value of Mon-banking assels scqulred In sallsfaclion of clakms 1512 8273 10,838,185 |
| - Post ratirement employes benefits T anen - | tases | (asta ! |
' - Surplus on revaluation of non banking assels - - (6.583) {6583} | : 1641 The valuation of nan-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of the claims were carried ouf by Eastesn Sonsullants (Pv.) |
' - Surplis on rovaluation of fixed assets (20 034) - 62654 | (13780) | Led,, Minaoo and Jays Associates from among the approved Bst of valuer of Pakistan Banker's Associafion as at November |
: - Acsalerated tax deprecialion (113,583)| 35456 - (r8.127) | | i |
I | |
, | |
| ] |
| | |
I
i | |
|



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

26 ikl
Mote Rupess [n 000
1612 Non-banking asssis acquired in satisfaction of claims
Opening balance 10,838,165 12,675,801
Addibons B3, 701 525 676
Revaluatian - 458 128
Cisposals 1543 (1,558, 678) (2,003, 0eE)
Transiarred io fixed sssatn 148,063} -
Desresation (B0, 361) (493,031)
irpairmasnt My _ {222 56T}
Closing baiance 333,733 10839165
1513 Gain on disposal of Non-banking asssis acquired in satisfaction of ciaima
Disposal proceeds 2,430,887 2,732 282
lees
~ Gt 1,684,162 | 2133636
- Impairrment ! Doprociation (28.348) {42,623)|
- Surplus on ravaiuation ___13ges| | 1977
1,556,879 2,093,092
Galn 872,008 639,190

152 OnJuned1, 2016, the Bank entared indo an Agreement to Sell (Ehe Agreaement) for undeveloped lands having book valus
of Rs. 3416 milllion against ssle consideration of Rs. 3,476 milkon, Pursuant to the tarms of the Agreement, the Bank
recaived a down paymont of Rs. 170.83 million, which Is cumantly repotted in ‘other fabiltios” (note 21.2). The remaining

batance is required t be paid by the buyer within 5 yeers from the date of recaipt of cartain approvals from relevant

suthorittes, however, the Bank through 8 Supplementary Agreement to Seii {the Supplementary Agreemrent] dated Juna
24, 2016 amended the Agresment and removed the condition of approvals from relevant authorites. The batance sale
consideration is payabie within § yoars from August 01, 2016, Further, the buyor initially agresd to pay annoal rent based
on the culstanding amount of consideration from the date of receipt of approvats Trom relevant suthorities, howawar, on July
29, 20186, the buyer has provided the consent to pay annusal rant with sffect from August 01, 2016, Accordingly, the Bank
Fras recorded rental inceme of R 194 75 milllon (2017 Rs, 784,75 millon) as distlosed i (note 37 1), The total acenmsed
rent in this respect bs Ba. 276 84 million (2017 Rs. 241,88 million) which & reporied In ‘ofer asseis’. As por tho torms of
the Agresment, in-cases the buyer fails o pay the amownt of rent or balance sale consideration; the advance received of
5% shall stand forfalted. Since the conditions fo recognise disposal are not me, the carying value of such land has not
bean darscognisad from non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims.

15.3 During the year, the Bank acquined properfies of Bs. 51 mificn (2017: Rs. 526 million) against dabl swap trensactions wikh
eertain borrowers resulting In raversal of provision sgeinat ican and advances of Ra. 1.5 milllen (2047: Bs, 414 milllan) (refer

note 11,3.2})
2018 2my
Rupess In 000
164 Proyision held ageinst other sssets
Mom banking assets acquined in safisfaction of daima 504,274 584,074
Advancas, deposiis, sdvance rant and ofhar prepayrmants 21,000 21,000
Others — _ihp87
823,274 B30, 361
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16.4.1

185

17

1741

1742

1T.4.2

2018 21T
Rupses in 000

Movemant in provision held sgainst other asssts

Opening batance 530,361 405,740
Charge for the year | E a5.157 |
Revarsals . 2 84008y
Mel charge Far thia vear - P Ry |
Reversal on disposal / write off {7,087} {14,500)
Closing balance . E23.2T4 630,361

This amount includes receivable amounting io Ra. 202 million againat sale of MEA proparty fo customer amaolnting to
Rs. 700 millien. The Bank has financed the ransaction by extending & secured loan to above customer amounting 1o
Ra. 500 milllon, Dus o pending completion of transfer fermalities, the balance of 2ale proceeds of Re. 202 million i sl
aulstanding. However, tha buyer has aranged third party deposits amounting 1o Rs. 200 milion which s heid with the Bank
&5 sacunty, against which lien has baan maErked in fEwowr of the Barkc

2018 amy
hoti Rupaan |n ‘000
BILLE PAYABLE
fm Pasiatan 2,866,568 3152881
Outaide Pakistan | =5 =
_ 2,866,568 3,192,081
BORROWINGS
Secured
Bormowinge from Siate Bank of Pakistan
undhar asport ralinancs seharms A 'I,W,ﬂ'{ 1,505 571
Repurchess sgreement bormowings 712 6,500,646 21,118,353
Totadl secursd §,447 713 22 EFL 804
U msncunsd
Call bomowings 1113 3,000,000 15,500,000
Trading lability 174.2 8,843,117 6,349,040
Dvordranwn nosing acsounis 61,024 T7.067
Creerdrawn local bank scoomumis = 39
Total unsacured 9.804,141 12958078
18051854 35,582,000

The Bank has srfered Inlo agreerments for finencing with the 2BP for exending export finance o costomers, As per the
agreaments, tha Bank hag grarted SBF the right jo recower the outetanding amound from tha Bank: st the date of matuenty
of tve finance by directy gebiting the cumani account maintained by the Bank with 58P, These borrowings are repayable
within six months. These camy mark-up rabes mnging from 1% to 2% (20172 1% o 2%) per Bnnum,

Thess rapressnt funds bormowed from the lecal interbank money mearket egainst govermment securities camying intenest
e ranging between 10,109 1o 10:20% (2017: 5.82% o 6.05%) per annum with malurity uplo January 2015,

Thesa reprasent unsecured bofrawings from tha local maney market camying interest rale ranging upto 10.75% {2017:
£.45% to .50%) per annum with maturlty in February 2019,
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2018 2017 19 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FIMANCE LEASE
Rupeas In ‘000 frligl ] 2017
17.2 Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies HMirknormm | Finsnclal [ ke Fnancal |
Horirine charges for _m‘ s chang for Principal
in Iocal curmancy 1TEB0830 05504843 Pt | e parkie || reewes | Nuepwioc
I foreign currancles s o Rupees in "000
_ 18,051,854 96,582,000 Mol 2ilar (han one year 2,755 82 2,663 4,723 s06 4217
Later than one year and

upho five yesars .. " i 275 g1 2683
2,755 - 2663 TATT 547 6,880

18 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
184 The Bank has ecquired solar panels {refer mote 122} under firancs fease from MBP Leasing Lisvited. The lease term is

- 208 - & years and the discounting facior usad ks & monthe KIBOR + 4% The lease term would be expired In Juby 2019,
InLoeal | In Ferelgn In
Currency lli:l.mnﬁu Thasl E:qu.r mm | T 20 SUBORDINATED DEBT
HHF-H In 000 The Bank has issusd privalely placed, unsecured and subordinated Term Finence Cerlificales {TFCs) as instrumonts of
redearmable capital under saction &6 of ths Companies A, 2017 and the Basal Il guidalings ssusd by the SHP. Tha kay
Fustomens : - e e features of the lssue are as follows:
Curmrent deposits 2844736 383093 2SAEIEST|| 22458304 3621811 D2EOTEEM2
Savings deposits ALSRIATE|  2BAATRA| AEAZT242|| J0€E0.563| 2187552 34867420 Issue amount Ra_ 2,000 millian
Term deposiis 39,080,218 | 2879.435| 420MB654|| 34606063 2008901| 36614864
Margin deposits 2ATISET « | aarresr|| 1431960 - | 431880 e data August 10, 2017
108,440,338  08BA120 118112458  S0626.410 7 EIB064 BV 44404
' Rating 1A} by JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited  ("Single A minus')
Financial Institutions ~ I I [ Securlty The instrument is unsecursd and subordinated as 1o payment of principal
Current deposils 134,345 597 mﬂ ‘ 40,880 4,092 B4ETZ ‘ and profitfo alf other Indebtednese of tha Bank, Including deposits.
Savings deposits 13,018,874 18120, 13,037.904 6,878,285 16,030 6885315
: Profit payment frequency Prodit will ba payabis ssemi-annually in arears on the outstanding principal
bl LA - | o R =1 B, amaunt and will be caiculated on & 365 day year basis,
14,537,580 24037 14,551,826 12 EEE Elﬂ 1’1 IJE‘.! 12 33-3 333 e ¥ i
I e T P e Redeampt| 0,14 % ol thes issue amaunl during the sl 7 years and mamaingsg 99.868%
_MZ2T652T  8ESLIST 1ARSSAOM 102430721 7A38086 110277807 in iaet two equal semi-anmuat instaliments of 40.93% sach,
Mari-up & month KIBOR plus 1.85% per annum.
2018 207 Call option Tha Bank mey call TFCs in part o in fult, after & vears from date of issue on
Rupees in ‘008 any profit peyment date, subject to SBP approval and with not kess than 30
dmmnmmwﬂ'ﬂmm Investons, The o= option oncs anncunced
181  Composilion of deposits will be imevacabla.
- Indiiduals 51,437 400 50,728,252 Lock-sn-clause Az par the lock-in requiremeant for Tier il Issues, nalther profit nor principal
- Gowemment (Federal and Provinclal) 23571375 13 014,035 wﬁt&ﬂ . stai';mallmm win;fmﬁﬂﬂmﬁﬂiqﬂmﬁn?mﬁri
- Public Sector Entitlas 10,433 078 045 780 rasull in & sho i i inimum Capilal iFETHET aor
Capial Atequacy Rato [CAR) or nesulls in-an increass in any edeting shoral
= E-BI'I'H'HQ Eﬂnmnhﬂ :.m 4,000 652 in MCGR or CARL
- Mon-Banking Financial institaions 12,457,375 8,832,681 "
Lees absorbency clause The Instrumernt will be subject o loss absorbency and / or any ofher
= Private Sactor _S2,B88,708 47,655,388 requiemeants HﬁdHEEFP’ﬂuEHﬂ il Gaplh:! Rutes. Lipon the nw.ln;na of
132,664, 084 111::.2?1 r 807 a point of non-viabllity event as defined by SBP's Bassl Il Capital Rule, 58P

182 This Includes deposits sigitie to be coweed undar iNSUFENcS AMANGeMEnts amounting to Re, 5501 milkan (2017: Rs. 44,74 milion].

126 Annual Report 2018

l

may at ks option, flly and permanently cormvert the TFCs into common
shans of tie Bank and / of ki Bom wiiken off (eiher partiaily
of in full). Numbar of shares to be [zsued to TFC holders at the tme of
comvarsion will e egual 1o the "Qutslanding Feca Value of the TFCs" divided
by falr valie per share of the Bank's comimon equity on the date of iriggar
of this nor-viability event a5 declarad by SBP, subject o & capol 1,2308,350,083
sharas,
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20.1 Az disdiesad in note 1 o the financial statemaents, the Bank has met the minirmem CAR requirsment of “10%, # was not
able to achieve the 1.9% required for Capisl Conservation Buffer (CCB). The Bank has made paymeant of profiton TFCs
subsaguent fo the year end in February 2019, i.e., before the date of authivization of lssue of these financial statements.

e SHARE CAPTAL- NET

1.2  Authorised capdial

j . |
[
, | |
| : |
, | |
| | |
, | |
| | |
, | |
| | |
, | |
| | |
i | |
| | |
| | 2018 2017 2018 207 |
| 2018 2017 | No. of shares in 000 Rupees in ‘000 '
| Nate Rupees in '000 | |
| 2t OTHER LIABILITIES | 10,500,000 160,500,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 sach 108,000,000 106,000,000 |
, : | I
| Mark-up / returm J interesi payable in focal currency THd 382 BET 445 | 2.3 Issued, subscribed and pald up caplial |
| Marc-up J return £ interast: payablie In foreign currencias 22,584 8,231 | |
I Unisirnid commisaion and income on bills discountad 45,079 61,056 | 2018 2017 |
| Apsrued expenses 113,:57.'_ 216,154 | Ho. of shares in 600 |
| Mark fo market |oss on forward foredgneexchange contracts 20,084 75448 I [
' Pryabia ko defined banefit pkan - contractund stafl 21882 27,202 i )
| Provision apainst off belance sheel etipalions 1.1 196,012 116012 : 2,081,881 3,081,881 Fuily paid in cash 90,818,612 50,815,812 :
| Workars' Walfars Fund (WWF) 134,504 86,202 i = Less: Dhscount on issue of shares _{67.387,238) (67,387,238} .
I Advance receivad sgaingt futune sale of non baniing asaets 212 412,644 AL 2654 : 8,081,864 2,081, b61 | BANIA B |
| Advaros received against fulure sela of cpesating Tixed 2ssels 1222 118,500 118,600 | |
Defarred income against mon-banking assets 114 146,762
: Haninpnplmaiagﬂmmﬁma v ‘uﬁ 17,842 | 223 At Habl Corporation Linnbad 1.6, aesochated compeny held 2,563,901 824 (204 7: 2 563,601 824) sheres which repredants |
| Ko chacking w mlm 230,716 | #B,23% E‘U1?Lﬂ.ﬂ%]ﬂf hﬁhﬂ]‘ slake ol the company |
| PRI remilting acsount 654,498 54,519 | |
| Ottvars B8N 380,784 ' ’
| 3,705,270 213,518 | 2018 2017 |
I S BE oA S A o I m m I"'m I
, 211 Provision against off-balance sheet obligations | |
| |
: Openiy bl 18,012 124798 | 23 mﬂm w T:.‘: REVALUATION OF |
| Change for the year ‘ - | - | ¥ |
| R : . = {B.724) | I {Deficit) | surplus on revaluation of T |
. = &.724) | - Awailabie for sale securities 1.1 | zzasaTy | {54, 80073 '
| Amourt wiithen off - ' - Fixad aasets 291 59,064 2,643 '
| Clasing balanca 116,012 116,012 ' - Mon-banking assets acouired in satisfaction of claims 732 | s3700 | 48128 '
| ' (131,173) 53,871 '
I : Deferved tax on deficit / (surplus) on revaluation of | ] :
' _ _ | - Mwailabihe for sale secuiities 14 | meeam | 19,215 |
| 212 This mcludes advants amounting to B, 170083 mitlon (2047 Rs TA083 million] received against future disposal of non- | - Fiwad assets a9 4 ﬂmﬂi {13,780} |
| banking assets (lend) measuring 122,311 square yards as disclossd: in note 15.2. | - Non-banking assels aoguired in satistaction of clatms 295 _ 2534 | {6,583} |
| , T (1,148) |
| I R i |
, | |
| ' '
, | |
. | |
, | |
| ' !
, | |
| ' !
, | |
| ] |
| : : I
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Surplug on reveluation of fixed asaets

Surplus on revaluation of fived sssets a4 al Januany 1

Recognissd durng the year

Resfised on disposal during the year - net of deferred tax

Transfered 1o unappropriaied profit in respect of Ingramantal
depreciation chargad during the year - net of defered fax

Rafated daferred tax liabiliy on incremental
depreciation chargsd during the year

Fiaiod deferrod le labilty on surphes reaisod on disposal

Surplus on revaluation of fued ssssts a5 at Decamber 31

Less: related defemed tax labifiby on:
=~ revakialion a5 &1 January 1
= revaluation recognised during the year
- urphis realisad on disposal during e yosr
- increnantal depreciation charged dunng the year
14

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets scquired
in satisfaction of claims

Surpiys on revalusation as st January 1
Recogrized during the year
Reafised on disposal during the year - nel of deferred tax
Reafsad on transfered o Red assels durdng the year - net of deferad ax
Transfarmad 1o unapproprigtad profil in respect of incremantal
depreciation charged during thi year - nat of defarmed tax
Relajad deferred tex ability on incremental
depraciation charged during tha year
Retated deferrad tmux liability on surphes reslised on disposal
Refated deferred lax liability on sunphea realised on rarsfemed bo fied aases
Burplue an revaluatien of non-banking asaala
acquired in safisfaction of claima sa & December 31

Less: ralated daferrad tax ity on:

= revalation a8 a1 January 1

- renvaduation recognised during the year

- stirphus realised on disposal during e year

- urpbes realised on transfamed e fived asseis during the year
- incremmental depreciation charged during e year

14
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2048 2017
Rupaas In "000
62,843 BO 514
- {8.845)
(2.328) [2.872)
(1,253) {1,589)
| | _14.655)
50,084 62,843
{13, 780) (20.034)
= "!'lm
e 158 |
] {13,780),
45 537 45,883
46,128 =
= 40174
(8,143) {1,877
(236} -
(1,922) (1.086)
32,700 48,178
{6,583) -
- {7.849)
33922 1,068
127 -
 @em (ssen)
30,186 90,545
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24.21

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guaraniees #4.1
Commilments 24.2

s sarticicicint Habisg 243

Guarantess:
Financlal guaraniees

Ferformance guaranises
Cither guarantees

Commitments.

Bocurrentary credits and shart-lerm trade-related franzactions:
- hatterrs. of cradit

Coommitments In mepact of:

-forwerd foreign exchangs contracs 24.2.1
- forward governmant securities transaciions

ot for M G
- operating fixed azsels
- intangible ssseta

Commitmaenta In respact of forward forelgn exchanps coniracts
Furchase

Saje

Commitmanis in reepect of forward goverranant securites transsciions

Purtlee
Sale

24.2.2

gl 2097
Rupsas in "0
13,284,305 15,048 485 |
3925445 | 19,850,870
1,143,864 449 857 |
L5108 36005202
| o
9,084,508 | 621,506
3654508 | | 4992085
13,284,395 15,948,465
| e048372 TEre01 |
15409082 | 11278444
11,416,204 |
|

14,688 268,400 |
WM | 132308

R 42540 iy s
10,847,908 | | 8.479.756
4,561,174 | | 2,708,688
15,408,082 11,278,444
| tateane .
11,416,204 -
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2423 The Bank makss commitments to exfend credit in the normal course of its businesa but these bafng revocsile comimitments

dio niot stiract any slgnificant panalty o egpense B the faciity s unilatarsly withdrasm.

243  Contingent labilities:

Claims against the Bank nol scknowlsdged i debil
Chaims against the Bank by Compeiiion Commission of Pakistan & cihers

Figl ] 207
Rupeas in '000
T wea | awair|
3[40 | | 35640 |
s a5t

2434 Sults for damages of R 24.45 billlon [2017; Rs. 2446 billlon) have baen filed against the Bank by vamous bormowers /
empkyeas in mepect of certaln disputes reiating to loans and advances. The management of the Bank and s lagal counsel
cansider that the sults are a countarbiast in resporss fo the recovery sults fled by the Bank. The Bank and its lagal counsel
ere confidant that the cases will be dismissed s schual damages have o beproven in such suits,

244  For contingencies nalating to taxation refor nota 35 2-35 4,

a5 DERMATIVE INSTRUMENTS

251  Product Analysls

Counterparties

Hadging

- EBanka
- Othar antibeg

Tedal

Countarparties

- Oither anfities
Todal
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2018
Fﬁmrr:lm
MNotional | Mark lo Markal
Eriiciput |, ijpid oy, |
Rupees in "000

26,125,805 125,602
561,370 24,863

26,686,975 180,488

BT
Motional | Mark fo Market |
Principal | gain/ lss) |

Rupées in 000
10,647,323 80,656
436 815 10,850
1,067,342 71308

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Maturity Analysis
2018
No.of Motional | Nk o Markt
Renaining Maturity | Contracts | Principal = Negotiva | Posifiva | Nal
: Rupess In "000 !
Upto 1 month 83 14,235,255 19,158 96,205  TT.04T
1 1o 3 monthe 48 B.853,683 7.562 72381 B4,719
310 § months 21 6772072 3,274 10,763 7,489
& rmonth to 1 year 2 25,955 a 1,230 1,230
154 26,606, 30004 180,578 150485
27
_ Me.of | Modenal Mari 1o Market
Remaining Maturity | Corfracts | Prncipsl | MNegstve | Posfive | Met
Fupeas in '000
Upto 1 menth 80 10,181,731 75,147 135851 60804
1% 3 mondh 18 620847 244 §.072 5858
3 bo & months & 205562 a8 2 48K 2,400
& manth o 1 year 3 38202 - 2,244 2244
87 11,067,142 75448 148756 71206

Risk manageerian! rdaled o defmalives is dscussed & note 47.5,

MARM-LIP / RETURN [ FROFIT / INTEREST EARNED
on:

Loans and gdvances

Invastments

Lendings o inanctl instiutions
Balances with banks

MARK-UP [ RETURN [ PROFIT / INTEREST EXPENSED

Daposits
Bomowings
Subordratad dabl

o8t of forelgn Gurrancy swaps against foredgn curmency depasits | bormowings

Crhars

2018 2T
Rupese in “000
12,184,084 5,129,809
2673,503 2159313
720,751 370,984
Y786 1.165

15,596,213 11,670,271

8,074,208 4082 854
2,506.688 1,804,305

177,202 63,123
134,963 158,281
6,675 5,694

_ BISOTIS.  BAM4217
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| | |
I
, | |
| | |
, | |
I | |
, | |
I | |
, | |
| | |
I |
: 2018 2017 | 2018 2097 ,
! & COMMISSION INCOME LA ' Note Rupees in 000 |
8 FEE
| : 0 {LOSS)/ GAIN ON SECURITEES :
' Branch banking cistomer feas 177,753 173,840
' Card related fees {debit and credit cands) 894,177 742,850 : Realised 301 151,248) 17.338 :
' Greit related foes 248,167 187,962 , SIRCIROSS.- Hokt Tnf oo N IERRREY — i ,
' Invasirmant bariking faes 398 8,945 .0 800 e
: Commission on Irads 150,588 148,447 | 304  Realised (loss) / gain on: :
Commiseion on guarantcas 107,442 116,285 Government Securl 73 BED
' Commission on remitiences including home remittances 17,250 23,725 : m featet) (6.522) :
| iCommission on bancassurance 77,058 74210 | {81,248) 4,?:335 |
! Othars _ B8pas 42579 , 31 OTHER INCOME .
| 1,730,877 1,516,926 i |
| i | o iy and non-banking asssts 1.1 368,088 332,030 ,
I | Gain on sale of ficed assets « nat 8,714 11,818 |
l e DIVIDEND INCOME | Galn on sale of non-hanking assets - net 15.1.3 872,008 638,150 i
I Rent on lockers 16,537 18,180 '
| Adomjse Insurancs Limitsd - 626 ' Postage, telex and olher service charges recovered 48,486 38.568 I
| AKD Capital Limited - 125 ' Share of profit from associate 8,642 3,851 !
| Aszkar Bank Liribed - 3.025 I Early loan termination charges B2434 #3246 |
| Ergro Corporation Limited - 1310 ' "~ 1386,008 1166179 '
| Engro Farsilizer Limbed - 5,362 | LR, e iemeionee |
[ Engro Foods Limited - 1,600 | |
| Fatima Fartizer Company Limied - related party ’ 1,400 | rilliion) on balance sale consideration of the previous Head Office buliding (refar nole 12.2.2) and certain non-bankdng |
| Fauji Fartiitrar Bin Qesim Limitad T T | assirls (mafor noke 15.2), respoechividy, |
[ Faufi Fedilirer Company Limited - 1674 | |
. Habib Bank Limisd . 263 I i il I
| Hahib Metropalitan Bank Limted - 2,714 | Nots Rupess in 000 |
| HI-TEGH Lubrcants Limitad - 175 | 32 OPERATING EXPENSES |
| Javedan Cemant Limited - related party 2,180 7835 | |
, Kot Addu Power Company Limited = 6,543 | Total compensalion expensa 32 3,377,501 2,713,212 |
| Lucky Carment Limitad - related party = 1,000 | i A |
i MCE Bank Lirited = 1.225 | ok & W- T [
Mugina! Steal Limiled " = H] | taxas |
: National Bank OF Pakistan Limtted = TATE | Insurancs oh ren banking assets acquired in satisfacton of claims 1,288 - |
Liiktias cost 194,783 198,575
Nizhat Chunian Limited - 2rG | . |
| Nishat Chunian Power Limited 5 1,360 | Sacurity (inchuding guards) Lisiidod o142 |
| Nighat Mz LI : 218 | Repair & maintenance (induding janlorial charges) 68,560 53,067 |
I o8 8.5 i 5 ats Depreciation on bulldings 140,856 132,619 |
| Pak Elah‘h-mﬂ sveiopment Compeny Limiisd &75 | Depraciation on non banking assets acqulmed insalsfzciion of clalims B0 A5 53,031
| I ’ o | Professions charges _ MEes | | 145316 |
' ; 1,371,944 1,326,480
Paonear Cament Company LEnited - BE3 | |
: Sul Northerm Gas Limited - 750 | SR Mg W - |
. Urited Bank Limibsd F 1184 | Software madntanancs 120,538 128,124 |
T 2as0 AT el | Hardwara malntanance 55,8581 £6.808 |
I ' | Dagraciation 42,184 63,138 |
I Ammortisation 71,381 BE 6BE
| ' Wabsits development charges | el | | BET | '
| ' 284283 335408 '
| ' Balances carried forward 5,043,708 4,375,180 :
| ]
, | |
| | : |
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Balances brought forward

Other operating expanses
Dirooiors” feos and allowanoos

Feesz and slowancas o Shaniah Board
Participation fae paid in respect of subomdinated debl
Legai & professional chanrges
Oulsotircnd sarvices dosts
Travalling & convayancs

HIFT clearing charges

Daprectation

Training & devalopmant

Poslage & courer charges
Communication

Stalichery & printing

Marketing, advertsement & pubbsty

Insuranca {iIncluding deposit protection)
Repairs & maminnance

Financial charges on leased assals
Sybacrptions and news papers
Enlertarment

YVahicla runming & mairdenancs
Card related sxpenses (debt end credit cands)

Security
Cihers

Tolsl compensation expenss

Feas and allowances aio
Managedal remunerstion

)y Fixad

) Carsh bonus fawands atc.
Chargs for defingd benafit plan
Conkibulicn o defined conbribation plan
Rent and houss meintenance
Utsties
Modieal
Conwayance
Insranca
ECE! bank condribution
Aher
Taial

d2.2

a2.3

2018 207
Rupees In ‘D00

5,043,708 4,375,180
35,585 33,100
12816 10,371
- 28,775
298684 MisarT
wET 384,150
88,625 28,470
12,803 10,852
Ly | 193,168
20,020 22,518
32,756 28 0954
226075 217,654
69,223 60,668
268,263 7,780
25,31 16,558
65,051 34,738
80,417 94,268
214 807
11,478 13,335
19,039 20,217
45,378 44,148
25,134 23,900
116,996 60413
22 578 20,863
(I ]

LTI A 2,058,277
6,781,153 8,434 457
12,848 3,403
1,404,851 1,064,193
584,147 £62.288
125,511 £1,934
BE.BIT TRA1E
681,604 525,731
3,357 1,205
138,213 107,348
204,102 236,744
w4302 48587
308 3,333

| J.-H!.'_ . ﬂ,'.l'?ﬂ
& 37T 501 el v

Totel cost for the yvear Included In other operating expenges relating to outsourced activitles s Re. 2662 milllon (2047:

Rs. 384.15 million} pariaing to the payment te companies incorporated in Pakistan,
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xR2.3 Auditors’ rernuneration

HAupdit fea

Fee for oihar sialulory cantificabions

Specal certfications and surdny advisory senvices
Out-of-pockel expanses

33 OTHER CHARGES

Penatties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan
Operational loss

kL PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

impairment In the valee of Imsesimants
Provisicns: agnine foans & advances
Provision agains! othes assals - nel

Revarsal against off belance sheet lems
Write offs agalnst fixed assals
Racovary of writhen off / charged off bad debis

3B TAXATION
Currant
FPriar pesrs:
Dafensd
351 Relationship bebtween lax sxponse and accounting profit
Proilt hefiora e

Tax raka

Tux al applicable rale
Famanani differanca

Dafered tax assel / minimum b credt wiithen off | adjusted
{dhers

1031
1.3
1541
211
2.2

2048 2017
Rupses in “000
6aT2 G872
5041 7,486
B.B00 .

1918 2,200

. a3 1esse
a2 BeE 18,152

. magar 5828
56383 780
= b
1,455,200 SJF.oar

- AT

- (8.r24)

2,612 4 768

_ (188,048) {141,156)
1,288,872 553,737

54,202 ’

- (5,30)

~ S46895 251,260
1.878 BB ‘I,EI-B,BE
W% 35%
T31,983 55 a3
{193,495) (236,472)

= T|H'TE'
. Bam ..o
__BAenes 251,200
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a7

381

Tha income tax nefurns of the Bank have been submitied up io Tax Year 2018, Tha Bank has filad befors Appellate
Tribunal Inland Ravenus (ATIR) against cartain diaallowancas smounting to Re. 1,996 millon (2017 Ra. 1,038 million)
mads by Tex oficer for Assessmant / Tex Year(s) 2D00-2001, 2009-2002, 2002-2003 and 2004, The disallowances amcunting
i0 Rs. BA2 miBon (2017: Rs, 882 milon) In respect of Tax Years 2003 and 2008 are pending at Commissionar inkand
Hevenue (Appeais), Management is confident thet the outcome of thess appeals would be in favor of the Bank.

incorme lax refurns for Tax Years 2011 and 2014 wera selected for sudit. The proceedings of te aidi ave in procass, no
order has bean passed by the relevent tax suthorities. The procesdings ws 1617203 of the Income Tax Ordinanee, 2001

regarding monitoring of withhokding laxes pertaining 1o the Tax Years 2011 to 2014 were completed in prior years,

Ordars were issaed by e Assessing Officer crenting total tax demand of R, 30 milllon (siready pabd by the Bank) along
with default surcharge of Rz, 17 milon. The Bank's appeals sgaingt orders wa 161/205 for Tax Years 2013 and 2014 before
ire Commissioner inland Revenues (Appaala - [I) were rejacted after which appeals before the ATIR, Karachi have been
filed, which are panding heanng. Manegemeant s confidant thal the'ouicoms of these sppesls would be in favor of the Bani.

This Bank's rturm In respect of ASK operations hse bodn submitied up 10 and including Tax Yoar 2018, Coeraln appeals
were flled before the various Appeliae and other forums which ane either pending for adjudication or the proceedings
initiatad againet the Bank have been dropped / witndrewn. Managemeant (& confident that the outcome of pending appasils
would ke in favor of the Bank.

2018 2017
Mote Rupess in '000

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year - 1,329,933 1,135,288
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 8,081,861 9,040,522
Besic and Diutsd Eamings Per Share (Rupes) 0.15 ; 013
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balance with treasury banks T 8,871,567 B413,176
Batance with other hanks 8 309,994 218420

9,161,561 -B,831,506
MIAEES Ll Numbsr of parsons
Permanent 1,428 1,410
O Bank coniract - ) n
Bank's own stall strength &t the end of the year 4112 1482
Cibsourcied 38.1 - E.EE!I
Totad staff strangth 4,172 3TN

During the year, all the culsourced servics employses wons transfermed i the Bank confrack.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

Goneral description
As digclosed in note §.13.2, the Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its regular amplovees. The
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3831

entitlermant of the employess commeances en complation of five yeas with the Bank beglnning from Jamuary 01, 2005,
Profected Unk Cradit Actuaral Cost Mathod hag bean used for sctuarial vabustion dated December 31, 2018, The financtal
skatemends of the fund are separalely prepared and audiled and ere nol included as par of thase financial shtemants.
Contrbeted funds ane placed in separate benk scoounts maintainad with the Benk in fixed deposit and super sever schame
at the rates ranging from 4% to 10% (2017: 3.75% to B.60%).

Numbar of employess undar the schama
The number of ampioyess covered under the foliowing defined banafil echemes ana;

2018 2017
Number of employses
Geatuity fund 1,428 1,410

Principal achuarial assumptions
The actuarial valustions have been carmed out 23 3 December 31, 2018 using the foflowing significant assumptions:

Mate FarEE ] 2m7
Financlal assumphons
Discount raks J8.3.1 13.25% D25
Expecied rate of return on plan aseets L.T4% 4.45%
Expacied rate of salary increase 1235% T25%
Demographic assumptions
Maortality rates {for dasth in arvica) SLIC (2001 SLIC (2001
-853-1 U511
Rales of employes LMover Ultra Heavy Ultra Haany
Rates Halss
Mormal retirement age (yesars) B0 years & years

* Saiary Incraments were assumed 1o be given on 15t January sach yaar.

The discount rate of 13.25% {per annum compound} is represeniative of yields on Pakistan Imresiment Bonds and high
guglity Tarm Firencse Carificates

2018 2017
Moto Rupees in 000

Reconcillation of payable to / (recalvabile from) defined bonsfit plans
Presant veius of chiigations BO7 536 523,307
Falr valie of pian sssels {586,037) (533,514)
Payable | {recaivabls) 21,4598 20Ty
Movemeant In defined benafit obligations
Obligaticns at the beginning of tha year 523,307 433,989
Courrent servlce cost T4 08 65,334
Imtereat cost 42,060 35,051
Banefis paid by fe Bank (55,438} (33,041)
Re-measurement loss agsz | 2IT0 21,8974
Diodigations at the end of the year lﬂ?..m F?.Eﬂg
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| . |
I
, I I
| : |
, I I
I | |
, | I
I | |
, | I
| | |
I I
: Hote 2018 207 i 81 The significant risk essociated with the péan assets are dEaciomed in mote 38,15, i
: 388  Movament in fair valus of plan asssts I 2010  Sensitivity analysis |
. e : | I
: Fair vakue al the baginning of the year 533,514 482 666 , Sensitivity analysis should be discosad by varying one sssumption kseping all ofher assumptions constant and calculating |
Inksrest income on plan assals 43,770 38,463 | the Impact an he present value of the defined benefit obligaions under the varicus empioyes benefit schemes, The |
: Mﬁb{yﬁm net l""“-*“ {:;ﬁf} , increase / (Secroasy) 1 e prosent vakue of defined benefit obligations as a resull of changs in cach assumplion shou'd ,
55,4 38) ba ized a5 ilustrated below:
i Ro-measuramants: Nel retum on plan assets over indanast loss 382 [9.536) {16.45E) | i 2018 |
=— "I | |
: Fair value at the end of the year 586,097 533514 | R in 000 |
| |
: 387  Movement in {recaivable) / payable under defined benefit schemes | 1% Increase in discount rale (30.897) |
I | 1% decrease: In diznpoint rate. ?._-_4:_!1 |
| ﬁPﬂﬂ'"lil rb'““ A— Ii:f-ﬂ"mi {:E-:gi | % % increass in expacted rate of salary increase 37,078 I
| g"’lgﬂ.l I.'ﬂ"w"“h etz (74,128) §1.922) : 1 % decrease in expected rate of salary increasa (33,998} :
| Re-measuramant loas [ {gain) recognisad In OC1 during the yesr 31,708 384T0 I |
I Cicsing batancs 21 409 {10,207} | |
| ] S | 3811  Expecled confibuticns o be paid to the fund in the nexd financlal year 85,353 |
|
I I
' 3812  Expecied chargs for the nest financial vear 85,353
I 388 Ch for definad benefit plans | e DA |
| arge | i
3981 Costrecognised In profit and loss I |
: C:nmtmIm- oust " 74838 85.3%4 | 39.13  Msturity profila 018 ;T |
| |
i Net intarest an definad benefit assst / iabiily S L (5A412) | The weighted avarags duration of e obligation (in years) 534 5.50 |
| L Taes 00 #iem . |
I I
|
I 3982 Re-measuraments recognised in OCI during the year : 38.14  Funding policy :
|
| Loss on obligation | An implicH, though not fomally sxpressed objasctive is thet the labliiies undsr the schame (n reapact of mambars In servics |
, “Financial agsmpkions 15,1862 BT8 | o the valuation date on & going concem basis snd having regard to projecied future salary increases, ahould be covensd I
I -Expatence adjustment 6,608 24 208 | by the fund on e valuation date, the ictal book reserve a8 of the vaiuation dale, future contributions o the fund, future |
, Rl on phan agsots over inkerest ioss 8,938 16,406 | sdditions o the book. reserve and futiune projocted Investment incorme of the fund. |
I Total re-measuremants racognisad in O 31,706 ag4m | !
- I Az lar as possible, there &5 an Implick abjective thal the cordribubcn to the fund shauld remaln reasonably stable as a perce- |
: , ntage of saiares, under e Actuarlal Cost Method employed. |
| 388  Components of plan assels I _ |
I Gl s s i ; Si6 88 | 3815  The significant rsk associatad with The staff retremant benelit schamaes may be |
! Governmant Securities 150,693 28447 : :
| Tarm Depasit Recoipt 369,000 365,000 I I
I Mafional Invesiment Trust Units: 10,088 11841
| Mutual Eunds ABEt 2 562 ' '
| 588,037 533,514 j |
, I I
| ' '
, | I
| ' '
, I I
| ] |
, I I
| ' '
, I I
|
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Aamet volatilty

Changes in bond yielda

LHe expeckancy | withdrawal rate

Retention risk

Final salary fsk

Modol risk

141 Annual Repert 2018

The Defined SBenefif Gratulfly Fund = invested heavily in cash or cash
fike imrastments: which camy minute: velatility deic Around thirhy percent
ks invested in PIB's which will be maluring next year which ks giving rise
o reinwestmant fEk. Onfy e parcent isinvesled in mutual fumds giving
risg. The assef dase |s volatile with refersnce io the yield on this class.
Thiz fzk should be viswead fogether with change In the bond yisid ek
to markat volatility risk for this assel clase. Thare ks ro corporate bond
BEpOSUR, This, no selllement risk

There are bwo dimensions to the changes in bond ylelds: first, aa
oesorhad above; socond, he valuation of tho grasuly akilty & Secolniod
with raference.io thess bond yields. Se any increase in bond yisids wil
bomwvar ther gratuity lability and viee versa, bul, twill also lower the assat
valugs,

The salany infiation |s the major dek that the gratulty fund Sabiity caras.
In & general economic sense and in & [onger visw, there is 8 case thal
i bond yiglds inoredse, the change in saiary Inflalion generaly offsets
the galns from e decreass In discounted gratuity Habhity. Bul viewed
with the fact thal azeet values wii aleo decraase, the salary inflation
dioes, as an oversll affact, increases the net liabillty of tha Bank,

The graluity & paid off af the maximum of age 60, The Life sxpaectancy
is in slmast minimal renge and is guite pradiciable in the ages whan the
amployes i inthe acoradited smploymant of the Bank for the purpoee
of the gratuity. Thus, the risk of [ife expectancy |s aknost negligisle
Howowsr, had & post-rafirerant benafit bean given by tha Bank lika
monthly pension, post-retirlement medical eto, this would have beena
aigntlicant rsk which would have been quite diffice®; to valus aven by
using advance morsity Improvament models, The withdrawal sk i5
dapandant upen the banafil struclure; age and misniion profila of tha

staff, the veluafon methodolegy: end bong-term valuation assumpions.
In this casa, it & not & elgnificant dek.

The risk that employee will not be motreated fo continwe the servioe or
atart workdng with the Bank if no market comparable retirermant banafit
i provided,

The risk, for defined benefit grabsity, that any disproportionale salsry
inesit Increases in Ber sendce years will give rise to multiplicsthee
Increase in the gratulty Babiiity as such increase 8 applicabde 1o all the
past yaars of service,

Tha definad benafl gratuily ability i wsually achoadally vilesd asch
year. Further, the assels in the Gretuity Funds are also misrked o maerel
This tewo-tier valuation gives rae to the modet fek.

I
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Cperational Risk related foa Retirement benefits are funded through & separate: trust find which is
saparate antiy a different legal entity than the Banic Generally, the profocois, processes
and conventions used throughout the Bank are nof applicable or ane

not activaly applied Yo the mticemen| benafit Rimds, This gives rEa io

I !. ..
Compliance risk The risk that refirement benedits offered by the Bank does not comply
with minfmum statuicry regquiremarnta.
Lagal | political risk Tha rigk thal Uha legad / political envimnmant changes and the Bank s
required o offar addibonal or different refirement benedits than what the
Eank projected,
Congentration risk of Investmant Though the grabuity fund i a separate onfly, 700 of the Fund ks Imvasied
in seif or placed wilh the Bank itsell giving nisa 10 & concentration risk that

gratuty fund may nat be able to payoff is liability if Bank detaults,

40 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION FLAN

|
I
|
I
|
|
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
I
|
|
I
|
I
The Bank operales an approved Rinded contrimitony provident fund for el #s penmanent empicyoes b which squal monthly |
contributions are made both by the Bank and the erployeses at the mte of 8.03% of basic zalany. The financlal statemenis [
of the fund are saparately prepared and audited and are notinchuded a3 part of theee financizl statarments. Contribution |
funds are placed with separate bank acoounis maintzine with the Bank In Mxed deposit and super saver schame a1 the [
rates ranging from 4% o 15% (2017: 4% b 15%). |
I

|

I

|

I

|

I

|

I

|

I

I

I

|

|

|

I

|

I

|

I

|

I

|

I

|

I

|

I

|
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i1 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 412  Remunerstion paid to Directons for participation in Board ond Commitioe Meetings

| | |
| ! :
I |
| | I
I | |
| | I
I | |
| | I
| | |
| | I
I | '
' 411  Totsl Compensation Expense I 2018 '
i n | i
: 2048 I llullhn l'tu am'l :Hmnnmrﬂ |
| | Board Committses |
| i 7 ==y | Members prasidant/ oY | No. | Memeof Director Soard | Mumen | & Risk | Awdt | 1T Tatal :
| Chalman (otherthan o oL | Board | ©E0 | Tporang ' mestings | o e | ped b |
| | i S | : |
: Rupses in ‘000 | qu:m LR ] |
| Fees and allowsance &188 - 0400 10,365 . A I 1 Mr. Neumnawsr Harmid 3810 2375 - - - 5185 I
I Managerial remunaration = 18,528 - 1458 42882 558 488 ' 2 Mr. Khadt Aztz Mirza 2,850 2375 - . - 5,225 |
| Gontritulion 0 defires cortribtion pian 1,543 : 72 3,572 41,490 : 3 Mr. Shehead Enver Murad 2,850 - 1,800 1,000 - 6,650 :
| houss maimena 3 8263 = ' 279 734 4 Me: Masim B50 - - 1 1 6,850
| Ru:“mi e : : ¢ il I;_"::: ; : 5 Mr. Tarig rq;‘:? Khan ::IH - 1,900 1$ # 6,65 !
: Magical - 18853 - s 4288 56,084 / B M. Raishid Akhtar Chughtai 2,850 2375 : E g 5.225 |
. mn""'“’“‘ - i o ) ﬂ i A : Totai 18,080 7425 3800 5700 1800 36,585 :
| Borws snd Othars i aam - - Aspee 131,960 . .
i Total 188 39,769 30400 12818 58330 1,478,339 | |
I ' 2017 |
I Mumbsar of Persgns 1 L B 3 1 214 | ; . . |
| e | Iu'lni.ng me el nhm-wm i Y |
| | Emvd wmw |
' Ehpetne | ' ; Marna of Direclar ' ] ' ' !
I T T Mambers | I . Hurman Ritk il m Tala |
! Ibemis Executives Mon: Shariati | Prasident / m:::mm | " mm Rasourca | Commithee | Commitles | Commiles | Amount ,
: | Chaiman | {other than Poecd: | GEO Pe | : Cormmities | | | | Pai |
I : ' = ' ' Fugeees in ‘000 '
| Rupees in 000 | _ I
| (Restated) | 1 hir, Munnensar Harmid 3175 2375 - - - 5,550 |
i | 2 hir. Adinaan Adrici 1425 - 1455 B0 . 3200 |
i Feas and allowances 5,550 = 27,550 7320 ¥ - | 3 Mr. Khaid Atz Mirza 2375 2375 - - - 4,750 |
| Managerial remunesstion . 17,902 : 1576 41,197 467,372 | 4 M, Tariq Igbal Khan 2375 : 850 1800 . 5,225 |
| Comtribution to defined contricaSon plan - 1491 - 124 345 6 A i & Iir, Mesim Bog 1,800 - = 1,800 850 4,750 i
I Eﬂ; e AR Ra e - E.ﬁ - T88 Eg‘ﬁ 253,687 I g m Rt Akhiar Chghtai 23% 850 . lgﬂ{} - g:.m. 00 |
- - = = | Sharnsul Hasan = = 5,225 |
: Medicsl - 1,780 i 458 4114 48,737 I & hr: Sheheed Emver Murad 850 - 475 475 = 1.804 |
Comninsancs - ZE40 . 16 B227 a3.474 | |
| Bons and Otrers - 3w - 8% 1500 143gms | s e B0 G gW e S
| Teskal 5.!'_150 L v 2755 10371 4 b 1.0E, r40 | |
|
: Humber of Persons i 1 7 3 1 184 | I
I I
|
| 4111  The comparalive figures of key mansgemsnt personnel hes been restated pursuant to change in definition 'of executive : :
' by the Companles Act, 2017, The Companies Act, 2017 revising definition of execuiive from Indhidiual with an annual bsslc | |
| galary excoading Re. 0.5 million to indhvidual with an aninesl basic salary sxcoeding Re. 1.2 million, I I
|
: ! I
| | | - |
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: |
I
, I
| |
, I
I |
, I
I |
, |
| |
I
| pod s 5 I L i
41.3  Romuneration to Bhariah Board Membens Ther tabla basfow Enancial instromends messunsd ot Hie ond of The repording period by The level in the Tairvilus hieraroiny
| o : Inio whileh Hhe Tair viliee measurameant |5 categonisad: - '
|
I 2018 2017 : 2018
: i i i , Comying  Lovel1  Leval2  Leval3 Total
: 3 o ﬁ:-: Residont | Gl | Resident | _ o : - = Rupeas in ‘000
| ' ' | | | Fina tair value
I : : | neinl eseebs - moasured ot fair
i Rupass in 000 | .
| Invesiments:
: Fees and Allowanceas 8,000 2,388 - 6,400 L] - I
| v, Managenal Rerrunaration I Federal Governmant Securities
' E:mmmm B '1’1"':‘ i E 1'?.: 3 I Markat Treasury Bils 14,402,942 = 14,802,542 < 14,402,942
| i i £ = : = ‘e - | Pakdstan Investment Bonds 10,045,265 - 18,048,285 - 10,048,288
' Rent & house malntesssncs 2 517 L . 788 5 I GOP fjara Sukuks 3,861,647 - 3,851,647 - 3,851,847
I Madicsd . 115 . - 158 . : Shares
| Conveyahce - ey | - - 35 - ; ; .
| Car - 302 . = = 3 : Listed companies 135,368 135,388 o - 135,360
| e
| Totad Amount 8,000 4,818 - 8,400 3,871 : Mon-Government Debi Securlties
' Sukuks - lsted 300,244 - 300,241 - 300,241
| Total Mumber of Parsons 1 2 = 1 2 - : Tarm Finance Certificatos - ftad | 61,875 = ﬁ!:ﬂ'_‘_ = 51._3‘.!'16_
I | 28,783,339 135,368 38,662,570 - 28783338
' 42 FAIR VALLIE MEASUREMENTS I
' | Finsncial assats - disclosed but not
| The fair value of reded Invesiments is based on guoled market prices. Fair velue of unquoled equity iInvestiments other than I magsured ot falr value
| knvestimants in sesociates s detsrmined on the basis of break up value of thess Irestiments a5 par the atest avaliable audibed s s
| fnancial siatemenis. | Cash and balances wilh tressuny baniks BAT1, 56T = . . .
| I Balances with ofbior banks 305,994 = 5 = 3
, Fair visiue of fxed tarm ioans, other assess, othar labiities, fousd jemm deposits and bormowings cannot be caloulated with wuficiant | Lendings to financial instittions 12,612,156 . - - .
| reliability cue to absence of cumant and active markst for such assets and Eabilfes and refiable data regarding markst rates for | Advancas 88,354,002 H . % &
I simiildr nsnemenis, | Oithes asaaty | 8,004,469 - - - -
126, 152,188 = = - .
' The Banis podcy |s fo recogniss fransions indo and ool of the difiorent fair valiio hiorarchy lovels st the dato the: ovent or changa ' A28,152188 = : >
I In circimstances thal ceasead the transfer occured. Thers were no renslers babwesen levels 1 and # during the year, : M.éﬂﬂ?: = —!.57“:"-’;“—_
|
| In the opinion of the management, the falr value of the remaining fnandlal assets and liabiitles are not sigrificantly difisrent from | Off-palance sheet financlal instruments -
, fhasir camying values since asseks and fabiffies any edther shorblerm in natune or in the case of customer loans and deposis ana I maasurad at fair valuo
| frequanily re-priced. |
| I Forwand purchase of foreign exchange 16,847,905 = 10,847 208 - 10,847,808
421  Fair value of financhil assets | i
| | Farward sale of foreign exchange 4,561,174 - 4561174 - ASETT4
I The Bank msasras fair valies using th following far vitiue hisrarchy that neflects the sionificancs of the inpuls usad in making | Forsrard purchase of government secuntles I - - Il
| the MEBSLIEMENS! | transactions - . - - .
' > ; Forward sale of government securilies _ il
! Lowvel 1:  Fair valus measurements using quoled prices (unadiusted) In active markets for (dentical asssts or Fabilives, : wansachons 1,415,204 - Ma8204 - MME204
: Level 2:  Fa¥ value measuremenis using inpists ofher than quoted prices inchuded within Level 1 that are obsanabie |
| for the assats or lability, slther direclly (i8. a8 prices) or indirectly {i.e. dedved from prices). I
| Level 3:  Fair valus meazuremsnis using input for the assed or liabdty thal are not based on observabla market data I
| (8. uncbsarvabie inputs), '
| ]
| | | |
| 145/ Annual Report 2018 | SILKBANK > 146
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i0n palance sheat financlal ngtruments
Financlal agsets - measured at fair valas
Invasimanis:

Faderal Covemmant Socusiog

Maricat Treaswry Bl
Fakiztan Invesimeant Bonds
GOP fare Sukuks

Shares

Listed companies
Non-Govemment Debt Securiios

Sukubks - lisled
Tarm Finance Centificates - isted

Financial assats. - disciosad but motl
measurad at far vaiue

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial instiutona
Advances

Dithar agots

O-hatanog shsed francial inginmants -
measured al [r vadee

Fonsrard purchase of forelgn exchange

Foreard sale of forelgn exchangs

Forwand purchase of govemmeant securites
iransactions

Forward sale of governmen! seasilies
transactions

147 Annual Repert 2018
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- 207
Gfm‘ﬂ Lawved 4 Lavei 2 Level 3 Total
v e
18,558,147 - 18,558,147 - 18,558,147
15 572 084 - 15573084 - 15573064
4687, 3 - 3597381 3,687,331
28,543 28,543 - - 29,543
201,250 - 204 250 = 201,250
58,148,723 20,543 38,110,180 - 38448723
| BA13ATE . - . =
218,420 £ = = =
8.520,848 - - - &
85,550,718 . . -
L. 5,485,857 = - =
108,538 5587 = = T i
146,887,320 28,543 388780 - 38naaTas
840,708 - 8470108 = AAT0T00
2,798,688 - 2798888 - 2,796,888

- - - i

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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WValuption technigquos vsed In determirurtion of falr vakstion of fnanctal instrements within fvel 2 and lowet 3 e

Itmm
Warket Treagury Bilis end Paklstan Invesimasnt
Bondi
S0P fera Salouics
Sheres - stad

Sadkuha - [byted and Term Finance
Cartificetes - Batid

Forelgn exchangs controcts

433  Falr value of non-linancial sssets

Information about tha fair value hieranchy of Bank's non-financial asgsis as &l the end of the reporting parod are a3 follows:

Operating fiwed aszets - lend god Duildings
Mon-banking assats acquired in
eatisfaction of claims

Dperationg fxed assols - land and buildings
MWon-banking assels acquired in
safisfaction of cdeims

22

Valuntion approach and Input used

Fairvehsse ane defived using the FEXRY rabas.

Fair values of GoP jerah Sukukes are derved using the PRISRV refes
ennounced by the Financial Market Association (FiA) thiough Reuters.
Thesa rafes dencte an everage of quotes reoehod from eight dffanant
pre-cofined | appeoved dealers | Brokens

Fair valuss of iIvvesirmants in Bsied sharss ang vakmed on he base of
C0aing quosed market prices svalabie g the Pakistan Steck Exchanga.

Irreastments in dest secEities Le. ferm fnence carlificabss snd sukuk
certificeiss isaued by & company of & body corporate B e punpose
of reizing fonds in the form of redeemabis capital grs valuad on lha
bacis of the ratas snrounsed by the Murbual Funds Aeesciation of
Pekistin (MUFAP) in sccordance with e mathodology' prescribed
by i Securties and sxchanga Comméssion of Pakistan

The veluation has bean dabarmined by inferpolaling the mid
rates aancunced by the Bledo Bank of Pekistan,

2018
i B i o B i o
Rupoes in "000

2,458,687 = - 2ASBEET 2458687
_ B333,733 = C B.333733 9233733

11 682 420 - - 11E02420 11,692420

e a7 ’

m"ﬂ Leveal 1 Lewvei 2 Lavel 3 Total

s

2;52&:531 " = E.Eﬁuﬁﬂ'i HZ‘E.WT
19,838,185 i = 10838765 10 838,165
_ 13,355, 888 = = 13,365,688 13365688

Cantain categones of fxed assets {land and bulldings) snd ron banking asssls soquired in sabiefactione of claime are carred

at rvalued amounis (level 3 measurement) detsrmnined Dy professional veluers Based on Thelr assessmant of the markst

values as disclosad in note 12,217 and note 15,11
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| | |
[
| | [
| | |
| | [
I | |
| | [
I | |
i | |
| ' !
| [
: 43 SEGMENT INFORMATION | 2017 .
: 431  Segment Detalls with respoct lo Busingss Activities : Consumer/ | Whole Saie Treasury Total I
SME Baniing
| | 2018 T | - |
| ' ' ' ' Rupoas in 000 !
| Consumer/ = Whole Salé | Traasury Total | _ I
| SME Banking | Proft and Loss Account I
| | | Mot mark-up / pabum / profit 5,488,000 {41,683} BT 5,486,004 |
I Ruphes In 000 : Infer segment revenue - net - - - - :
| | Mion mark-up / retum / intarest income S A R P 4 < 203415 2943488 |
| Total Inceme 6,006,912 1,279,648 242962 BAMED
| Profit and Loss Account : Segment direct sxpansas (3402,048)  (1,686.458) (78,047] (5,07 554) | :
| Inter segrment expenss allocation _(1.450.441) 99680  (100,532) (1,451,683}
| IT‘::; rark-up / ﬂu:: l;'n Pmrzt 6,780,524 (85,185) {80,283)  BEDSATE | Total sxpansas (4,852 488) (1,456,760} (170,078) (6,489,237) I
segrent : : 2. : Lo | Provisions {450,130} {63,607) = {563,737} '
| Bt mark i/ o et e S SmEu = e DA oA Proft befors ta 1566263 (140728) 62,983 1386588 |
incoma 430,234 1456472 133,644 0,020,350 | |
' Sagmen direct expensas (3968863  (2,326.178) (79,682)  (6,874,723) | Statement of Finencsl Position |
| Inter segment expense allocation {1.473083) 1,571,362 (a8.408) 26) | | |
| Total expenses (5,441,946} {1,254.818) (178,087) (6874, Cash & Bank bal . 1
( | nk balancas 2014268  B417328 8,531,508 |
' Provisions {601,833) {666, 640) = [L2GBETY) | Investmants 3,697,381 BIEI0 34 4B5E54 38288735 |
I Profit before tax 2,386,455 (465,184) {44,443) 1,876,828 | Net inter segment lending 76,710,328 3065888  BS5508,140 145,274,366 |
Lendinge to finencial irsblufions 422 557 - B A88082. 5620649 [
| Statement of Financial Position : Advancos - performing - nat 44131752 30,569,660 MIB4 BETHTOZ |
| Advances - non-performing - nel 702 1,426,041 - 128,013
| S 2 Sk ST SR el S | omers e w3 710 sy :
Invasiments i ; . : Total Assits 126,826 610 TEBAT 114,720,847 313,128
: Net Inber sagmant landing 84,558,203 9519178 93706430 187,783,961 | | a FRECRY LR O0T iR etk |
Lendings lo financlal iInstiutions 846 622 " 11,665,534 12,612,156 I ' 428872 1,076,700 24076428 35582000 |
: Advances - performing 56,014,787 34,761,618 2,550 91,878,062 | Subordinsted debt - 2 000,000 - 2,000,000 [
I Advances - non-pedorming 1,682,645 5022395 - B BTS040 I Bepesits & ather Boeounsa 100,724,751 6553056 . 1i0.277.807 [
| Othars _ 1940w Z:ENSAET 0 4822 24804074 | Nt infar sagmant bormwing 0,602,520 44995679  BOGTEZIT 145,274,366 |
. okl Aty WSO TRIENTE, DR 1A ! Ofhers 4082263 1857745 G371 6813378 I
| sy ST AERATET. it | Total kabiities 126,846,406 58283130 114B1B018 285947 552 |
| Subordinated debt 1,089,500 < 1999600 : Equily 2325000  T0BSZ0E1 (35.685) 13,181,346 :
i 3 i — s e o Bt I v I it 1 s B L b5
| anu: mtﬂ AC0UE b ."‘f'“‘. : mm D ARGHRT 4 le : | Total Equity & labilities 128173408 TOATSA61  {147B0331 313,128,808 |
| Oithers  Aanaess &m:ﬂ___uﬂ! B ST4EDY : Conlingencies & Commilments 414,317 24362501  11,2TA444 36055202 :
| Totsl HabMthes 143,873,388 62006022 141,164,589 347,074,000
: 2 : | |
: Eauity SO0 T (1,968) VHaar4y | 48 TRUST ACTIITIES |
| Total Equity & liabilites 146,190,388 74099267 141,163,081 361,460,747 I =R i P " |
: | ts not engaged in any signiicant tnest ectivitles Howeaver, i acts a8 gecurlly agen! of investmant porticlio I
, | |
| | |
; ! |
I | |
, | |
I | |
, | |
: ' '
, | |
| ' !
i | |
|
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RELATED PARTY TRANSAGTIONS

The Biank has relaled party transsctions with its parent, subsidiaries, sssocistes, joint venturss, employes benefl plans and
Its Enectors and key management perscanel,

The Bank enters inlo fransactions with relafed paries in fie ordingry course of business and on subsianiially the same terms
as for comparable ansactions with persan of simifar standing. Contibubions ko and aconisais in respact of siafl retinemant
benalis and other beneft plans are made In accordance with the acluarsl valuations § s of the conlrbulion pan,
Ramunération io the axsculives § officens 5 dalarmined in ascordancs wilh the terms of their appoindment.

Majorly of fae transactions with related parties compdss [cans and advances, deposits, issuance of letbers of cradlt and
guaran|sas. Advances Tol the housa building, comayvanos and for personal use have aso bean provided o the staff and
exaceiives ot educed rabes in seoordancs with the amploymand and pay polcy and such atvances e mot b distiosed
in the following sshodule, Faclity of group (s insurancs and hospitaBsation insurance i alsoe provided to staff and axecutives.
In addiion to this; axecuthes of the Bank have béen provided with Bank malntained cirs.

Details of ransactions with reated partias during G paes, ofhor han Fose which hav beon dsschosod alsawhan inhase
financial statemenis arm ax follows:

e 20T
|m . "“"'Tm,.,"i.m,m..i n-u-mhu| |-m=:-| m“f"“lmﬂl A , Cehar reieted |
' (| | O s | I
Fuipass in D35

Oipiréng befonos - - ME2 . - 20T
verzime imade | sans proil during the yesr - 843 SRS - - 15,184 340,005
It fudes=ad | diposed off during e peer - - (nszem - = _—. e
Closing halanoe - 128,854 R - = ez -
dchianeas
wm?ﬂ 1,888 AiTE = ATA SRR g 2;::'# = !..1?5-.$
fuldiion dering tha yoar GREDG 4B 44 = O3 2,464 7.BEH,
Repaid during the ysar (82400, 20d) - HAWSART  (BehD) (I8 (2,754 378)
Cloeing oatpncs 2085 T - TR 1 BEY 3T 1376808
Prosdsion hald againgt advannes = - = m ! - - Lw_
Oifwr Annats .
Intarant | reark-up accnxed 167 - - 375D - - - 3.2
Insuance oialm Foootvobies = = 8,334 . - 24558 .
Fragald insirancs - - 13440 - 13084
Deposhn end ethar scoounts
mmlh B30 !'II.H; l'lli..'lil ’ﬁm ﬂ_ﬂ.m éﬁﬁ 15 S0 ‘!.,m.ﬂ'h
ek disfng bl ETa.aTY e 25,002 THLTET ¥ TEASET 18,380,350
RIS LT R oA gl e (GS058 (MW [27.062) (15A80) (1S0N05) (9054
Closing hafanoe B,B20 BT 18,358 3,023EE5 _u,agi_ i_l_!__Lij? '!-B:.HE - : Hjﬂmﬂ-l
Ot LinbiiBaa
Insanac § amsari-ap payvakie - - 14 Fif - 1t & 444 71,354
Cantrgenches and Commliments
Chinva coringpmncie = = - : - s FFTETTY
Imcomy
larie-ip 1 reluis | irsenegd eamed 300 T 45T - o =N - 115 pa8
Dividand inoows = = - 2180 = a 0,395
et ain o cale-of seourfios - - = an . 8073
Share af proff froes asscciis - - 543 . - A8 -
Mads-up 1 retum | iterest pad Ay 1389 830 ELAAE S5 2,208 S HE, RS

resiaan . - T ® 1T S - e - 1522
Shaort iem 133,584 - - . 126,840 384888 -
Copintution tr Defned baneft Pon EiiE w - . 4 B 1280
Pt fee 44,508 - = y Ao X
WsUrance pramiu - 4BtE - - g1z
mmﬁ - 16,585 - - 2 A
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Rupess in '000
46 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS
Minimum Capltai Requirement
Paid-up capital (net of losses) 13634084 12573720
Capital Adequacy Ratho
Eligibie Comman Equity Tiee 1 Capital 11,626,548 10,175,784
Eligitée Addiional Tier 1 Cepital . =
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 11,626,548 10,176,784
Eligitte Tier 2 Capital 3401387 3337571
Totsd Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 15,027 835 13,514,365
Risk Weighted Assots
Credit Risk 121,482,278 | 110,507 494
Markat Risk 540,550 §30,336|
Operational Risk L 15554275 | | 12,137.545]
Total 137,677,803 123,475,380
Common Equity Tier 1 Capitel Adequacy ratic B g.24%
Tior 1 Capital Adoquacy Ratio E— B8.24%
Total Capial Adequacy Ratio 10.82% 10.84%

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Cireylar No- T dated Apil 15, 2000 get the Minimum Capltal Requirement (MCR)

of Rs. 10 billon (net of lossas) for al locally

the Bank
resendes of Ris, B21 milion,

incorporEtac banks fo be achisved up 1o Decamber 31, 20143, The capital of
(netof losses and dscount on shares) as of December 31, 2018 amounted o Ra, 13.63 bidon excluding genersl

The Bank is also reguired to mzintain the folleadng minimen Caplial ddequacy Ratos (CAR) as at December 39, 2018

= Gommon Equity Tier 1 {GET1) ratio of 7.90% induding Capial Consanvation Bufler (CCBE) of 1.80%
= Tier 1 rati of 8.405% including GCE of 1.50%
~Total Capital Adequacy Rabe (CARYof 11.20% induding CCB of 1.80%
The Basal-1ll Framework is applicable to the Bank on & siend alcns basis and the Bank has adopted the Stardardised

approach for Credil and Marke! Risk and Basic Indicstor Approach for Operational Risk white using the simple approach
for Credit Risk Mtﬂnﬂth:ln as per SBP guidelines. SP| nsurance Company Limited Is an assoclate of the Bank which has

ot Been considensd for hﬂhunﬂmamu andd goope of consolidation. The Bank owmg 23 08%,
imvesiment in sharss of SP| Insurance Lt due bo wihich the Bank has acquired sigrilicant influsnes, bul nod
conird, over financial and operating policies neurance Company Limited.,

2018 g

Ru in ‘000

Leverage Ratio P
Tier-1 Cagpitsl 11,626,548 10,176,784
Tokil Exposuras 183845360 190833 564
Leverage Ratio 6005 5.33’&:
Liguidity Coversge Ralio
Total High Quality Liguid Azsets 28,934,248 2T A2 651
Tartal Met Cash Outfiow 33405053  31.538TT1
Liguinaty Covgrage Ratio . A% B?.u-ﬁn
Met Stable Funding Ratlo (NSFR) _
Total Available Stable Funding 116,178,685 108,979,040
Total Required Stable Funding | MAEEE311 101,418,277
Mol Stable Funding Ratio 1%«!{3!'._ '1EIT.4-E"I:
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4T

AT

Tiwe: S dizclosurss on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATID & LIGUACHTY RECLIIREMENTS az per SBP instructions
lssued from time o Ume are placed on the website, The link fo the full disclosure |6 avallabla at
htepfifwwnw silkbank. corm, piipegafinancia-reporis’

RESK MANAGEMENT

Tha principat risks associbed with the banking business are oredit fsk, markast risk, risk and operational sk The

busginegss of banking |5 dependent upon acceptance and management of financial rigk. i involves Mendficaton, measurement,
meaioning and confrolling of ks with & view bo answes St

- Adeguate cagtal ks avallable a3 a bufier,
= Exposumes remain withen e limits a3 prescribed by the Board of Direcions; and
- Hiek taiing decisions are in line with businese strategy and objecthves sat by e Board.

Cradit Risk

The nak of lopses becavsa counterparties fall to meed al or pasdl of thelr obligations towards the Bank.

The Bank has established an appropriate credit rsk structure snd cullure whereby policies are reviewsd and revampsd to
meainiain sound cradit granting orocedunss, manisining appropate credit admirssiration, maasuremend, monionng processes
and adequals contaols,

Riss Managamant sirecture ncludes crodit spgrdnal, cradil adminisication, cantralised procassing, credit monilorng amnd
Baza ll functions reporting 1o the Risk Management Group Head. Sanior and expanencad officials are heading each nsk
category,

The Bank mansges chedt sk theough:

- ealabiishment of dcceplable risk levals,

- soufd proceduret and conlrohs for he managemant of fsk assets and cradil decumentalion:

- target market planning amd cwerall markat inbefigonca; and

= acturie and datailed infonmation aboul e borowar, iUs financial pestion 4nd opamations of the Bank.

Credi sk management obiestives and pofiches an:

- Credit sk is the risk that a counterparty will not sette its obBgaton in accordance with the terms of approval or agreed
Lefms,

- Cradit sxposuras includs both individesd bormowsss 8nd griwps of connected countarparties and partfabos in tha banking
and irading books,

- -Credit Risk Pollcy and Management Geoup (CRPEME) s stnuctured o sffacthely analyss, maondtor and manage credit
risk; Bwrousgh its povicies and procadures closely aligned with the Bank's busingss plan, S8 Prudantial Regulations and
Basel || requirements,

- Banchioning authorty and approval levels for a8 Faciites s confisrred by the Board of Dieciors upbn vanous funclionares

of thé Bank and is circulaied for concamed through circulars issusd by CRPEME Credil Sanctioning Powers [ Authorily
Levels in terms of BOD approval, as enhancad [ amended from Bme te iime, related to the tolel expoaure of 8 cusiomer
ar & customer groug and not ko specific loana

Credit risk rafing |5 an important taal in monforing and condrolling cradil risk. In ordar to faciftale sarly identification of
changes in fisk profiles, oredits with detericrating matings wil be sulyect to addifional oversight and moniforing, for azample,
Frough mens fequent vislts from Relafionship Managers and inclusion on & watch Fst thal is regularly reviewed by senior
managament, The hiemal ek retings can be used by line managameant in different deparimenis to track the current
characterdstios of the credt porifolia.
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7.1

L

in the light of the requiréments apecifisd by SBP and in view of Basel I Accord, the Bank has o assess soundness and
appropriateness of inlernal credii risk messuremaent and ment system. The Bank needs b bulld the foundation for
tha iRE [Infermal Raling Basad) Asprach and construst data warshouse confirming o the data oriterda of Basad 1L

In the absance of sandaind and reliable financial stolements to realistically evaluite the strength of o company for assigning
DRR, tha Bank has to rescrt 1o other pragrrstically emphagized quantitative | quai#atve factors, which have raditionally
been conaldensd for exiending credit, The Quanitatve Evaluation is based on financlal indicatons, whie Qualitative Evalustion
& based on sublective factors.

The cbisctives of Intsmal Credit Risk Rating {ORR) are;

- Intarnal capia! allocation

= |ntermE] fisk

- Portfoiio rmanagamant

- The setling of credi! fitk concaniration Gmits
- Developing risk-based pricing benchmmearks

The Bank's initial objecive of ORF s 1o generale accurate and conalstent ratings for credil portfolio of the Bank. Chedit /
Oiiigor risk ratinge ara summary indicators of the degree of ek inherent in the Bank's individusl credit exposlnes. A cred(t

mﬂng reprasents an azsasement of the probabifity of default stiached o8 given counierparty to mast debt servicing and’

p%mnlnuﬁgmmmaﬁmm.ﬁtﬂmm a system has been developed and sucoessfully implementad
i rexdit / Obligor Fesk Ralings fo aach bomower.

Lendings fo financlal instiutions

Gredit risk by public | private sector  Gross lendings N s Provision held
2018 2047 2018 2047 2018 2017
Rupess In ‘000
Pub®: | CBovernment - - s ’ "
Private 12812156 BE30.640 - - -
12,642,358 _ B,E0,649 = : -
Investmant In debt securities
Crodit risk by industry sector Gross investmants gy 5.t Provision held
T 2018 2017 8 2017 2018 2017
Rupeas In ‘000
Tastile 8,780 8.780 5,780 8,780 8,780 8,780
Fimancial 74,890 74810 T4,810 74,910 Td M0 74810
Enirgy 200,000 00,000 - - - .
Sarvions &2, 500 &7 500 . . -
Governmeant 20520031 97,087,043 . 2 2
Dtvers . BBE:T H p— = — =
EEPO00N, dspmeciy | BINOS 30000 _ SaEN0  ea6c0
Credit risk by public / private sector Gross invesiments "‘mﬂn Pravision hald
2018 201 a8 _anT L LT
Rupees in 000
Publle { Govarnmant 28533 831 A7.BAT 043 s . - .
Privats ___E4ETIT 371,380 - B3680 8ag=0  #@Aamd 8aav

g eibar R O TREEE Mo
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47.1.2 Advances 4714 Confingencles and Commitments

| i |
[
, | |
| | |
, | |
I | |
, | |
I | |
, | |
| | |
, | |
I | |
Non-performing | i il |
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Mariet Risk

Marke! Rigk is the nizk of loss kv earnings and caplisd dus to adverse changes In inberest rates, foreige exchange rates;
aquity prioss and marke! conditions. Thus markel Fek can be further described Into Interest Rate Risk, Foraign Exchangs

The Bank s sxprasd bo marked sk i i rading investiment portiolio bacauses the values of ks ading positions are sansiive
1o ehanges i market prices and ralas,

Thee Bank has 8 well estabished framework for markat risk managerment with the Treasury Investment Policy, Llguidity
Policy and Market Risk Managemant Policy. The Bank has major objective of protecting mdinmlrgnﬂt intereat Income
inthe shart run and marked value of the equity in the jong run for enhancing the shareholders wealth. Further, il defines
the contours of the way the Bank's market risk is managed within defined paramelers @nd with prescriptive guidelines on

the tools, technigues and processes.

The Assod Liabiiity Commiltes (ALTD), Market Risk Polsy Commiftes (MRPC) and Investment Gommities is entrusted with
Ky chetision making in establishing market risk related strategies and moniorng there-agalngt. The Gommittes decides
on produck pricing, mix of assets, labiliies, stipulates liquidsy and interest rate risk lmits, monitors them, articulates the
Bani's Interast rabe view and determines the business sirateqy of the Bank.

BManagement of interest rate risk of the Banking Book is primarily fooused on intérest and fair value through Re-pricing Gap
Analysks, Analysis of the Net Interest Incomea Sensiivity, Duration, Value-at-Risk (VaR) and Fair Value Senaliivity. The
managament of intarast rata risk of the trading book is achisvad through mark-lo-marked practics and exposune anaiyeis.
2n a periodic basgis, risk monitaring repors are preparad for senior managemant 1o gain an acourals understanding of
Biantk's sk posiion, Mathematical modal Bre Stress-Tasling is carded oul at leas biaanualy

Tre Middle Offics in Rizk Managament Group hes an indepandent raporting structure on sk aspects and helps managemsnt
in determining compliance in terms of axposurs analysis, iracking of Emits, funding and varous othes fisk sensitive markeat
paaramehery.

Balance sheet split by trading and banking books

aie Finhird
Trad Banki
Wahing . Tetie Total i Toieg Tatal

Fll.mnln |'|1- ‘I:IH
Cash and belences with fessury benks 8,871,567 - BETISET  s41LTTE 3413178
Salances wilh olfier benks g, Bad = 309,984 2leaxd - A 400
Lerdings to fnanchl nstiutions 42,612,158 - 1ZS1Z156  BE20540 - BA20849
iveaTral 18,573,556 10,084 437 ﬂ,umn 35,633,102 2633643 96786735
Adveniee BB, 364, 02 - B5,EB50. 715 85.B50,7T16
Flied ssais 3,981,271 - a.‘m.zﬂ 3,534,845 - 3834845
il assils 6,840 - 2mma 241.00F 341,901
Defared tnx assets 3,058,647 - I0SAGET  34TE 128 347128
Dther assols AT I ME - ATAWTHE  17E31.963 17,831,962
183,625,349 10,051,607 ATRETETEE 154220960 2633540 185,854,502

Forsign Exchangs Risk

Camency risk is the risk of loas arising from the fuctlusticn of exchange rafes. Bank's cumency nsk [3 first controled thraugh
8 subsientaly matched funding policy: The Bank ulikzes spproprists hedgng nstrurmants, such as forward foreign exchange
{FX) contracts, cumency Swaps to efeciively hedge and manane curency rsks.

The majortty of forelgn currenty exposure fg in the LS dollar. Bank s carefully moniiodng the net forelgn currency exposuns
and the effect of axuchange rete fucieetion by condlcting mark-to-market sensithvity and streas issting on a regular basks
a5 well as utllizing the FX coplracis to control the rsk. Besldes, the Bank has Foralgn Exchange Siop
Loss Limit based on Daily Value-gt-Risk (VaR) 1o manages the logs sheormplion capaciy of the Bank
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Wiedd Risk is fre risk of dacline in samings due to- adwerse movement of the yisld curve. Inierest rete sk is the risk that the
valua of the fimancial nstument will Tuchsaie due o changes in e market intemst mbes.

The obijeciive of inferes! rade fsk management & to formalise risk decision-making and risk managamant processes, which
inciudes icentification, meagusarment, monitsring and conirol of inderast rabe fsk scroes the bank and estabishing povernancs
rodes around interas rada risk management,

47.31

474

Operational Risk
Operational Risk s the fsk of loss resulling frem inadeguale or foiled inlemal processes, peopls and syslem or from sxbemal
Evenis

"The Bank has In place robust, duly approved various policies, procedures and & Bugingss Continuily Plan, Thase ara
conbimusarsly reviewsd 1o strengthan cparabionad confrols. Risk policy s&ts minimam sEndards erd requires af business unils
to identfy and assess risks. The business unils ane responsitie for day-to-day moniloring of operational risks and for Emiting
lossas a5 rmsull lhersol, They also repord operational sk events in the management repoding sysism.

Cparational fek tolerance levels, however, have not been established but a broad operatons sk direction i m
place. This procass will mowe further with the implementetion of Intemal Control Syaters ({080 complient in procesa) and
Ciparational Risk Managemant, Prasanily, thie fsk ks effactvaly managed thmagh rmobust operational polickss and procagiines.
Cparational Risk-Disclosures Basal || Spacific

Operations! Risk-Disclosurea Basel || Specific

Bank's approach 1o liquidity gk managemant |s fo ansure as far o pessiblo that it will slways have sufficlant iquidity to
mial s iabliites when due, The Fund Management Pooy Is formiutated keeping In view SBP's guidefines on risk managerment
and Basal Il principles on sound liquidity managorment.

Liguldity risk

The risk of losses normally refeciad dus to unavadlabiity of funds to moet short tesm demands, as the Bank’s: nomml
shatutory lguidity reserves are not suffickent (o meet s obigations,

Benk's approach to lquidity risk managament Iz to ensune as far as possipga that & will abways have sifficlant Boukdiby o
maaat s labilities when dus, The Fund Managemant Poticy s femiialed keseing In view S8P's guidsings on dsk mansgemant
and Basal | principhes on seund liquidiy managemant.

The Bank hag an Asset and Liablity Managarment Committes (ALCO) and a Markat Fisk Policy Commities (MRPC) that
ang parl of the famework for managemant of sk,

Tha ALCO / MAPC i$ responsitie for managing the composition of assets and Babilities, managemant of figuidity, mely
idantification of 2ources of markel and Bauidity fsk. pricing of deposits and advanoes, decding on he rmequinid makey
profits and the mix of incremental assats ang Eabilites, defning the interest rate view of the Bank and deciding on future
sirategles for ireasury, revbawing end ariculating the funding pallcy; and evaluaiing the market and Bouldity rsks involved
in-faunching of new producis.

Liguidily conlingency funding plans have been drovn up o snsure thal altermalive furding strategies s in place whan any
of inve inticatons being monitored anter o e warming arsirecs 2one and can be tmplemantad on a mely bagis © minimse
ther guicity raks that may ariza upon the ocowmence of an uraniicicalad change i marnket condtions,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

4T85

Derivative Risk

Adarvatve financial instnement i 8 fnancsl conitract betwean two parias whare payments ans depancant upon movamants
i R in On of fone undeslying Tnancial metruments, reference fabes of Indices, The printpal derivalias used by the
Bank are forwerd foréign exchange contracts, forsign exchanga swaps and equity futures, The Bank & present does nol
engage in struclured dervalive producks such as interest Rale Swaps, Forwand Rale Agreements and Forsign Exthange
Dptions,

A forwed fonsgn exchangs conlract is on agreemand oo buy or sell 8 specied amount of foreign Gurendy on 4 specified
future date af am-agraed rete. Equity fulures are exchange raded conlractusl agreaments to either buy or sef 4 specified
secufity at & specic price and date in the future. A foreign exchange swap is used by the Bank if & has a need to exchange
one curmency for ancther curnency on one day and then m-echange those cumenses &l a tater date.

The Bank enbers into thess contracts for the purpose of squaring currency © egully posiions.

Adl darivalives are recognized at their fair valse, Fair vabees are obieined from quoted market prices in ecfive: markets,
Derivadives are carried in the balance shaet a5 assets when thelr falr valve (s positve and as fabiitles when their falr value
iz negative,

Credit rigk in respect of darvative financial instruments anses from the potental for 8 counterparty to defeult on 8 contractual
cbigations. The principal amawn of the desdvative conlradt does ned rapresant msl axpasure o cradi fsk, which s limited
to the poslthve Talr value of ingbrumant. )

The details of commitments under foramcd forsign exchange confracts oulstanding at year-end has been given in noles
24,21 and 24.2.3,

The sccounting policias used o recogniss and dischose derfvative Instruments are given in note 6.7 .2, The risk managsstent
framework of derdvative Instruments fa ghean [n ot 47,

ISLAMIC BANKIMG BUSINESS (1BB)

In order to mest the guldelines for Sharta compliance in |sismic Banking Instituions (IBls), siatement of finencal position
and profit and loss accountof IBE are given in Annexure - 1. Further detefied disdosses are aleo givan in the said annexurs
T comphy with instructions issued by SBP to improve transparency o standardisation in 1Bs" profit end loss distribution,
pofcies and practices. Instnictons in this regard wera lssued by the S8F vide |BD Circular Mo, 3 dated Movember 19, 2012
sl BISD Gircular Mo S dated January 22, 2073,

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR IBEUE

The firencal stetements were authorized for issue on February 28, 2079 by the Board of Direciors of the Bank

165, Annual Repart 2018
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50 GENERAL

501 These fnancial slalements have bean prapaned it accondancs wilh the revised fammal for financial statemants of banks
lnpupd by the 58P through BPRD cireular iatter bio.02 of 2018 dated danuany 25, 2018,

50.2  Captions in respect of which no amounts exist may net be reproduced In these financial siatements except in case of
statement of financial position and profit and loss acoount.

o A OB U et

Syed Lingual AR Acvnat Tain Ehaid Ao Mirza Razhid Aldbar Chusghisd Shahzsd Emer Munad
Chisf Finencial Cificer President & CEOQ Diractor Clirectnr Erractar
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SILKBANK LIMITED
ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

The Bank is oparafing with 30 Islamic Banking branches at the end of 2048 (2017: 301

The statement of financial pogillon of these branches as 3t Decambar 31, 2018 are a5 follows:

ASSETS

‘Cagh and balances with reasury banks

Dalances with other banks

Due from Arancial instiutions

Investmeants 1
Tgdaemle Brancing and rolated assels - nal
Fiwed assels

intangible azsets

Due from Hesd Cffice

Ckhar aseets

3

LEABILITIES

Bl payable

Due o financial ms@utions

Deapogie and olfes aceaunis 3
Due Yo Head Cffics

Ciher Babilites

HET ASSETS
REPRESEMTED BY
lslamic kanking fund
Heserea

nerim an revakesion of Assals
Unappropriaied profits 5

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS -

183 Annual Report 2018

ANNEXLIRE - 1]
2018 2047
Rupses in 000
TR heE]

36,507 24 445
3,851,847 1,670,391
| 26,901,698 17,527,355
| 284,044 | 211,61
1,125 1,686

| 2233393 | B0 |
352472 21268834
480,421 | E08, 142

| 30,980,238 14,256,538
:_ﬂ!!.i!!‘ | 8,808,701 |
3799822 1B.674.381
3,412,850 2,584 453
2,325,000 2,525,000
[10,628) (6,481)

_ lussars 275,844
412,650 2,284,453

SILKBANK LIMITED
ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

ANMEXLIRE - 0l

The profit and koss account of the Bank's Islamic banking branches for the vear ended Decambear 31, 2018 is a5 follows:

Profid { retum sarmed
Frofit F relumn expensed
et Prodit / ratum

Other Incame

Fee and commission income
Fesreign mochange incore
(Loss) f income from derivatives
Zain on securities

s incoema
Total cthar income

Tokal income

Other expenses

{iparating sxpantes
Workes Welkare Fund

Oriiiew changes

Tolal othar expenses
Profit befors provisions
Provizions ard vl offs - net
Profit for the year

20148
| Cosd T { Coat |
Ve | Provisionfor | Swrplus /| Camrying | |
3 riimnd | | Aot
I . diminaution . {Drefiali) . Valus . ;
Rupess In 000

3,862,276 » [10,529) 3,851,647 1,676,882

- (10,820) 3,851,047 1,676,802

- [&a481) 1,670,391
- (B.481) 1,670,391

denirailion | (Defict) | Vake

SILKBANK > | 18¢

Y5 We Zan

2018 17
Rupeas in "G00
2506383 | | 1Zraa
(1.047908)| | (430,686)
1,458,385 783,681
P ot S

18,685 (84,963)
(8.868) 86,783

A3 k't

12,012 _Gsty

. #8515 46,585
1,507 500 B30, 347
{667,790) (410, 484)
{18,782} {8.205)
S - N I 1
(584,744) {415,888}
- B23,158 Fre]
| (4,068
822,335 408,470

2017

Provimian for | Sumpls/! | Canying |



SILKBANK LIMITED
ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

21

2141

212

21.3

214

185

Islamic financing and related assets - net

Murabaha

Musawammah

Diminishing Musharaka

Gross Islamic financing and related assets

Less: provision against Islamic financings
- Specific
- General

Islamic financing and related assets - net of provision

Murabaha
Murabaha financing
Advances for Murabaha

Murabaha recelvable - gross

Less: Deferred murabaha income

Less: Profit receivable shown in other assets
Murabaha financings

The movement in Murabaha financing during the year is as follows:

Opening balance

Sales during the year
Adjusted during the year
Closing balance

Murabaha sale price
Murabaha purchase price

Deferred murabaha income
Opening balance

Arising during the year

Less: Recognised during the year
Closing balance
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Note

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2
2.1.4
2.1.3

ANNEXURE - 1|
2018 2017
Rupees in "000
2,165,705 1,017,436
127,343 642,768
24,608,650 15,867,151
26,901,698 17,527,355
26,901,698 17,527,355
1,907,705 910,838
258,000 106,598
2,165,705 1,017,436
2,333,482 1,045,740
(159,048) (27,363)
(266,729) (107,539)
1,907,705 910,838
1,045,740 765,750
2,068,203 1,998,887
(780,461) (1,718,897)
2,333,482 1,045,740
2,174,434 1,018,376
(1,907,705) (910,837)
266,729 107,539
27,363 15,420
266,322 138,617
(134,637) (126,674)
159,048 27,363

SILKBANK LIMITED
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ANNEXURE - I
2.2 Advances include Rs. 301.52 millien (2017: Nil) which have been placed under non-performing status as detailed below.
2018 2017

Non
Performing Provision

Non

Performing Provision

Loans Loans
Rupees in "000
Substandard 114,687 - > .
Doubtful 186,828 - - 4
Loss - - - .
Total 301,516 - - -
2.3 SBP vide various circulars has amended Prudential Regulations in respect of provisioning against non-performing advances

under which the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) has been allowed for plant and machinery under charge, pledged stock
and mortgaged residential, commercial and industrial properties (land and building only) held as collateral against non-
performing advances upto five years from the date of classification.

2.4 As of December 31, 2018, the Bank has availed FSV benefits against all non performing advances. Had the benefit not
been taken by the Bank, profit would have been lower by Rs.122 miillion (2017: Nil), which shall not be available for payment

of cash or stock dividend / bonus to employees.

3 Deposiis

Customers

Current deposits
Savings deposits
Term deposits
Margin deposits
Others

Financial Institutions

Current deposits
Savings deposits
Term deposits

2018 2017
In Local In Forelgn In Local In Foreign
Currency | currencies TN Currency currencies L
Rupees in "000
2,348,847 320,404 2,669,251 3,777,484 567,196 4,344,680
14,189,530 321,442 | 14,510,872 1,946,935 133,442 2,080,377
3,975,426 1,191,260 5,166,686 2,557,479 960,420 3,517,899
29,433 . 29,433 54,036 - 54,036
52,384 - 52,384 17,723 - 17,723
20,595,620 1,833,106 22,428,726 8,353,657 1,661,058 10,014,715
4,045 447 4,493 . - -

8,370,906 - 8,370,906 4,218,007 - 4,218,007
156,100 . 156,100 23,816 - 23,816
8,531,052 447 8,531,499 4,241,823 - 4,241,823
29,126,672 1,833,553 30,960,225 12,695,480 1,661,058 14,256,538
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: ANNEXURE - 1) | ANNEXURE - 1) ,
| 2018 08T : Pood Managamant I
I Rupsas in ‘000 | The number and nature of pools maintained by the IBD along with thelr key features and rlsk and reward |
: 31 Composition of deposits | characteristics ams as Toliows: |
' = Inividuals 6,720,073 7.1 013 : Ermasn lslamiz Banking, the lalamic Banidng Dbvslon {[BO) of Silkbank Limited, has & welldafined profit and loss distribution :
I - Govermmant / Public Secior Entities 14,058,849 8, 000 & pool managerent framewark for creation of one or more pools of assels o be financed by diffevant types of daposits,
| iy Okl 3 865 47 : Currantly, the 13D has the policy of maintaining a single Mudaraba Peol, Al funds cbiained Brough Islamic Banking :
I A : operations are belng imeested in this Common Mudaraba Pool. The key festures and risk [ reward featuras of the sama
| = Mon-Banking Finencial Instiutions I.!!ﬂ.l!l 4 241,788 | kil : |
| < Sy _ B804 1884702 | o |
| 30,980,225 14,266 538 | Key Features |
[ | |
| 32  Thisinchdes deposits eligible 1o bo covwired under mnsurance arrangemients amounting to Fs. 7,11 million (2017; Re. 5.81 million) I Tiva Account Holder, in his capacity as e fund provider (cafled Rabbul Mal in Figh terminoiogy} authorisse the (B0 acting I
| | a8 the invesiment manager (called Mudarb in Figh terminclogy) o imeast the Account Holdar's funds on the basis of an |
| 618 2047 | unresicied Mudaraba agreement in Bee with rules and  peinciples of Shad'a; [
Rupees in ‘000 | |
! I Undar the unrestricted Muderaba agreamant, the B0 in s capachy a5 the fund manager invests the funds accepted from |
' 4 Charity Fund | Actount Holders in Shar'a compliant Nrancing and invesiments. The IBD recaives a pre-agrasd poroentage [Mudadib |
: el Bl . | Share) of the profit genemted from thess activities |
I i : I live wikth the principhes of commingiing Mudareha, whers the Mudarb & peemitted 10 cemmingle Bs own fands with tha :
I Recaived from customens on aceount of delayed payment 1,000 r funds recelved on the basis of the Mudaraba, and to comply with the regulations of the SBP on creation of an Islamic ,
I Payments / ulilisation during the year I | - ' Banking Fund (the "IBF*), Silkbank has created an [slamic Banking Fund of Rs. 2,325 mifion and deposited the same in J
| 4,000 = : e 'comimon Mudarsba pool. :
| i
| Ehwsions Belamn 1:000 = | Risk & Rewards Characteristics I
I | |
, 5 islarmis Banking Business Unappropriated Profit [ Accumaiatod (oss) | The profit B shaned betwesn the Rabiol Mal and the Mudarb as per the agroed ratio, while the (083, i any, |5 bomes by [
| Opening Batanca 275,944 {130,526} | the Rabbul Mal in proportion Lo his invested amount unisas the Mudanb is found o be nagligent or in breach of tha temms I
| Add: lslamic Banking profit for the period | 822535 4085 470 I &nd condiBons of the Mudaraba Agreement. |
Closl 088,279 | |
: o e - - i : | bn case of comméngling of fre Mudanb’s own funds with the funds of the Account Holdars, the Mudaris shall get the-full [
| " Cont - | profi of B8 own funds and bear the endire bess hereol. |
' Gusrarians 937,732 1512845 : leﬂhrhuﬂm:.nﬂﬂﬂkhilsMmhﬂﬁﬂammmmmIHEMﬁdwﬂ :
| g y ME!I A | funds, Its pariod and profil paymant frequency (details of the weighlsges sre svallabls In &l tha branches and Silkchank's |
I i &1 1,752,201 webslla). The bipger the size of the fund and the longer the tenure, the higher would be the weightage aliocated o the
| 2,550,736 3,765,060 : fund for proft detribution. :
|
| T Profit [ return earned of financing, iInvestments and piacemant : Frofit Rate and Walghtages announcement pariod :
|
| Earned on: | The profit sharing rallo, prof rate and weightages 2 announced when change |s required, Although SBP allows o revise |
. Finanting 2,411,558 1,202,681 | the prof sharing ratic & waightagos for the pericd concomed, EIB has rovised the Profit Sharing Rabio {(PSR) dusing the I
[ Ivesiments 84,757 o7, 430 | yaar 2018 and announcas tha sams on websibe and notica boards of branches. |
| Placemeants . 4738 | I
: 2,506,353 1.274 327 | Avenues | sectomn of sconomy | business whars Mudaraba bassd deposits have bean deployed |
I I
: 5 FmEon Ence e ol D Epa | Mudarabs based funds have been deployed to diversiliad seciors and svenues of the economy / businéss mainly o .
| Daposits and othar asoounls 991,658 449,015 I Govarnment, Financial Institutions, Construction, Manifaciuning and Services seclors. |
| D b Financial insbiutions 10,275 41,861 I I
| Cost of foreign curmency SWaps against forsign cumancy degosits | bomowings 48,035 - | |
: 1,047,868 A0, 66 I :
|
| | |
, I I
|
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ANNEXURE - It
Parameters usad for allocation of profit, charging expenses and provisions elc. along with & brief description of their
major componants

The profit of deposi| pool is calculaled on the eaming assels booked by ulilising the funds from the pool. No general or administralive
natura of expansa I charged to tha pool. The profit of tha poal It shared among the membars of tha pool on pré-defined machanisim
based on the weighlages announcs: before the profit calculation period.

Profit and loss distdbution In Commen Mudaraba Pool

2018
o Amount of ——
i R el | meingHEo o Wil shve P ightiges. | tmuforwdto | PrftRats | Proft Aats
| W | R | i | SR | WS Sl | et

Comiman 3 )

Mudersba 560,534 2.98% 193,552 Wonthly 22% 9.59% 8.00%

2017
darib Shars Amount of Mudarib share
s TerciHoaand | elofHbamd | Mudsishew | PREZRESR | SRR SRS PoftRats | Profit Rats
Depasiors | nsluding the inoluding the ﬁmub announcement | deposiiorsthrough | eamed (%) | distributed (%)
Mudarb Fas (000) | Mudenb Fee (%) | o PO period Hiba (%)
o
N 388,211 21,42% . Montity 0.00% 8.45% 521%
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“Excéllence

endures and sustains.

It goes beyond
moftivation into the
realms of inspiration.9 9
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HIGHLIGHTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS

We are determined to achleve excellence and that has
made it possible for us to showcase a decade full of
achievements. This also resulted in the celebration of
success at the conclusion of the year 2018. We are

committed to deliver the best banking experience to
our customers and make every coming year a milestone.

Annual Repart 2018




FULFILLING OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

Atraaf Urdu Essay Writing Competition

Maonthly Atraaf, in partnership with Silkbank, organized an Urdu
essay writing competition, In which students from several
unlversities and colleges partidpated from across the country.
The event was attended by many known personallties, which
Included Mr, Toshikazu Isomura {Consul General, Consulate
General of lapan In Karach(), Prof. Hasesb-ur-Rehman (Senatorh,
Dr. Wajih Uddin (Chaneellor, Jinnah University) and Qazi Asad
Abid (Director, Ibrat Group).

Mr. Toshikazu lsomura (Consul General, Consulats Ganeral of
lapat in Karachi) exprassed his gratitude in Urdu for being
invited to the event and congratulated Atraaf & Silkbank for
organlzing the event.

#r, Shaukat Tarin (Advisor to the Chairman, Silkbank) expressed
his views on the importance of Urdu language and its revival,
assuring that Silkbank will always assist in organizing such
events for promotion of the Urdy Literature in the eoming years.

“
Career Fairs & Internship Programs

In 318, Human Rescurces remained focused on employee
engagement and development, whereby various training sesslons
including but not limited to team building, perfarmance
management and service excellence were arranged, which helped
in enhancing the skill set of the employees. Employes Engagement
activities were also carrled out during the year, Increasing marale
and engagement of the empleyees. To promote ourselves as a
brand and achleve the status of Employer of Cholce, we participated
In job fairs organlzed by leading business Institutes of the
country, and recruited more than 100 students 'n our Summer
Internship Program to give them the professional experience
and develop a pipeline for future hiring. The Bank also participated
in the Annual Salary Survey, which helped in determining
compensation levels and understanding market positioning
among the peer banks that will facilitate in retaining top alent
and aligning the compensation structure with market standards
in the longer run.

Silkbank alse participated In the Career Fairs organized by |BA,
iaBM and Igra Unlversity, where we recelved an overwhelming
response. We briefed students about the career opportunities
we offer, to which they expressed great interest in joining
Silkbank. We also took this opportunity to brief students about
the services and products we offer in Retail, |slamic and Wholesala
Banking and counseled them for their upcoming professional
life, portraying a healthy and pesitive image of our Bank.

Akhuwat Sufi Night

Silkbank, as a part of its CSR activity, was one of the sponsors
of the fundralsing Sufi Night erganlzed by Akhuwat on November
17, 2018, at NIV Building In Karachi. All the proceeds ware used
te sponsor the cost of NIV's newly launched free hostel fadilities
for the underprivileged children across Paklstan who recelve
free education and boardThg.

Kyun Nikala Stage Play

Silkbank believes in asspciating itself with maaningful causes.
*Kyun Nikala®, is a stage play written by none other than the
maesiro himself, Mr. Anwar Magsood. The play was inspired by
the then current political scenario of the country. As part of aur
CER program, Sllkbank believes in serving businesses that not
only benefits our netwarks, but alsa mend the society as a whole.
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Leisure Leagues

Slikbank, in tollaboration with World Growp and Nokia, sponsared
a foothall event, *Ronaldinho and Frlends', in Portugal. The
event had 8 Intemational football superstars, including Davld
James, George Boateng, Luls Boa, Micolas Anelka, Robert Pires,
Roberto Carlos, Ronaldinhe and Ryan Glggs.

Silkbank is proud to take part In initiatives that allow Pakistan
to be represented on a global front. This not only delivers a
message of peace, but also porirays a pasitive image of the
country.

Silkbank has always encouraged such aclivities and will continue
to do so in future as well.
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One Day Salary to Diamer Basha and
Mohmand Dams Fund

Silkbank always stands with the idea of contributing for a good
cause and betterment of Pakistan. Therefore, with the consent

of its employees, the Bank contributed ene day salary to the
Diamer Basha and Mohmand Dams Fund.
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Other events:

Farman Christian College Alumni Sponsorship
Quald-e-Azam University Reunien Sponsorship
Corporate Table for DAKS Fundraisar for NICH
|BA Alumni Reunlon Sponsorship

Distingulshed Secretaries' Society of Pakistan
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the Trust

SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION

The confidence of our sharehalders In the Bank is
valuable and their interests are kept paramount.

It is their trust that has driven us through the years,
eventually leading to growth and profitability, With

the Silkbank Team's spirit high and morale touching
the sky, we are dedicated to reinforce the trust of
our stakeholders by bringing greater prosperity
and -growth in the future.



ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

SILKEANK LIMITED
COMBINED PATTERN OF COC & PEYSICAL SHAREHDLEINGS A5 AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
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ot | 680001 lo BB5000 |  6ea2a |t 1340001 1o 1345000 | 1.345,000
_ 5 | 695001 jo TCODOD | 3495000 | 3 1245001 o 1350000 | 4,046,806
3 | 700001 o 7OS000 | 2907481 | 1 | 1355001 to 1360000 | 1,359,764
b | FOSK o TIGNOD | 7OAsD0 |t 1375001 o 13BO0O0 | 1377215
i 715001 o 770000 720,000 2| 1385001 to 1400000 2,797,161
Ty [ 725001 to 730000 | 795070 f | 1400001 to 1405000 | 1400240
3 | TENE o FE5000 Eﬂﬂ-ﬂ,ﬁﬂﬂ 1 1410001 1o 1415000 | 1,440,884
4 | TEEOO fo FTODOD | TEEPM4 | 1 Lo 15007 to 1420000 | 1416000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

SLKBANK LIMTED
COMBINED PATTERN OF GDC & PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDINGS A5 AT DECEMSER 31, 2018

: Sharsholdings’ Stab P B Sharsholdings’ Siab

1 1435001 ba 1440000 139,641 i 3,300,C
1 1455001 o 1480000 1455500 | 1 | 3395001 to 400000 | 5399608
4 | 1495001 te 1500000 | GoeeBAl | 1 | 418001 o 3430000 | 3419082
i 1500001 o 1505000 | 1,600,100 1 350001 to 2565000 | 3,565,000
i 1540001 B0 1545000 1043528 1 | 3bB0D0Y o O58E50ED | 3.587,000
_ 2 | 1545001 fo 1550000 | 3086866 | 1 | 3900001 to 3805000 | 3,801,000
4 | 15M0001 te 1575000 | 1572820 | 1 | 4085001 te 4OTOGGO | 4065500
1 1575001 to 1580000 | 1576789 1 4075001 jo 4080000 | 4,076,176
¥ 1600001 to 1605000 | 1608800 & 1 4260001 to 4265000 | 4280918
S| 1645001 o 1650000 | 1660000 | 1 | 4415001 o 4420000 | 4417036
2| 1655001 o 1660000 | 3320000 | 1 ATADO0T fo AVASO00 | 4743500
2 1675001 ko 1680000 | 3,356 500 1 4805001 to 4810000 | 4 807 000
1 1880001 to 1685000 1683404 1 4006001 lo  SOQOOND | 5,000,600
_f 1885001 fo 1700000 | 1698701 1 5015001 o SO20B00 | 5015419
1 A700001 to 1705000 | 1700022 | 1 | 5000001 to 5085000 | 5080500
T4 | A7s00t o 1740000 | 1789500 | 1 | 535001 o 5990000 | 5386827
_1 745001 o 1750000 | t74rNME | 1 5620001 to 5625000 | 6621089
1 1750001 o 1765000 | 1753868 | 1 S640001 fo 5645000 | 5544500
A 1770001 fo 1775000 | 1770500 | 1 | 5685001 to BOOOOD0 | 6,000,000
i 17B5001 o 1790000 | 1,788 824 1 |  B175001 o 6180000 | 6,176,082
1 1600001 bo 1805000, | 1,802,000 1 B260001 fo 626500 | 5,263,000
| 1815001 o 1820000 | 1,818,600 1 B2B0001 o 6285000 | 6,268,209
1| 1885001 o 1870000 | 1868671 | 1 6710001 b 6715000 | 6713173
1 1875001 to 1880000 | 187756 | 1 6836001 fo 6840000 | 6,836,054
1| 1950001 o 1985000 | 1864857 | 1 | 6960001 1o EOGS000 | 6952676
1 1965001 lo 1870000 | 1965500 1 | 7260001 to 7265000 | 7269124
= 1995001 o 2000000 | 14000000 | 1 7345001 lo THS0000 | 7350000
1 2010001 o 2045000 | 2 015,000 1 7495001 o 7500000 | 7500000
1 2066001 ko 20680000 | 2067 402 1 TE16001 lo TE20DBD | 7618500
1 | a08E00Y to 2100000 | 2900000 1 | CEMSO01 o BE20000 | 8216128
1 | 2030001 to 2235000 | 2230500 | 1 | B2TO0DT o E275000 | 8272281
= 2280001 to 2086000 | 2282048 | 1 | 9806001 lo 9400000 | 9,600,000
1 | 2400001 to 2405000 | 2400018 | 1 | 9995001 to 10000000 | 10,000,000
) 2495001 fo 2500000 | 2500000 | 1| 10085001 to 10070000 | 10,086,500
1 2515001 o 2520000 | 2518500 | | 10436001 to 10440000 | 10436324
1 2535001 o 2540000 2540000 1 11780001 bo 11785000 1, 782 500
1 2546001  bo 2560000 2,560,000 1 | 12540001 o 12545000 12,543,798
_ 1 | 274D00Y fo UT4S000 | 2744500 | 1 | 12525001 o 12600000 | 12827719
4 | 2745001 he 27EOOD0 | 2750000 | 1 | 13170001 to 13175000 | 13,474,061
1 | 27SD001 to J7BS000 | 2751748 1 | 14008001 o 14010000 | 14,008,000
1| 2860001 o 2865000 | 2863183 | 1 | 14095001 to 14100000 | 14096500
| 783D001 te 2925000 | 2826000 0 1 | 45250001 to 15235000 | 15233500
2990001 lo 2995000 | 2991000 | 1 1465001 o 16470000 | 18,467,577
_ __ B0GDO0T b 3065000 |  §062,000 1| 20A0O0T 20685000 |  20,BBOAIT
1 3085001 o 3100000 3,100,000 1 22416001 lo F2420000 | 22 41B500
| 195001 to 3200000 | 3200000 | 1 | 25THGO0Y fo 23800000 | 23767288

|
SILKBANK > 200

Yk we can



PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

SILKBANK LIMITED

COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC & PHYSICAL SHAREHCOLDINGS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018
1 24720001 to 24725000 | 24,724,029 1 152880001 to 152385000 | 152,382,353
1 24995001 fto 25000000 | 25,000,000 1 253095001 to 254000000 | 254,000,000
1 28675001 to 286B0000 | 28,676,471 1 271555001 to 271560000 | 271,558,626

_3 34560001 (o 34565000 | 34,563,000 1 315775001 to 315780000 | 315,776,969
1 | 96225001 to 36230000 | 36,228,668 4 320510001 to 320515000 | 1,262,051,262
1 37495001 fo 37500000 | 37,500,000 1 356875001 to 356880000 | 356,676,342
1 55880001 fo 55885000 | 55,882,353 1 415625001 to 415630000 | 415,626,000
1 56095001 fo 57000000 | 57,000,000 1 418020001 to 418025000 | 418,020,288
1 62005001 fo 83000000 | 63,000,000 1 | 678125001 to E7B130000 | 878,126,000
1 77335001 fo 77340000 | 77,335,346 1 702685001 to 702690000 | 702,689,067
1 86345001 fo BA350000 | 86,349,442 1 2563000001 to 2563905000 | 2,563,901,924
1 114605001 to 114610000 | 114,607,807 8051 9,081,861,237
1 124365001 1o 124370000 | 124,368,193

“Excéllence

is the unlimited ability

to [IMProve the

quality of what you
have to offer.”

|
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